
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Planning & Zoning Peter A. Frisina


Dennis S. Dutton/Peter A. Frisina Wednesday, January 2, 2008


Discussion of multiple frontage lot setback requirements as requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals. 


 


A member of the Zoning Board of Appeals has requested that the issue of lots with multiple frontages be discussed, including the  


set-back requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 


 


See attached letter from Tom Mahon, Chairman of the Z.B.A. 


 


See attached Z.B.A. Minutes dated 10/23/06 and 05/21/07. 


Staff would like discussion and direction from the BOC regarding setback requirements for lots with multiple frontages. If changes 


are desired, staff will need to proceed with the routine for amending the Zoning Ordinance.


No


No


Discussion of the setback requirements of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance for lots with multiple frontages, as requested by 


the Zoning Board of Appeals.


●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●









		Multi-Frontage Lots ZBA Agenda Request File

		MultiFrontageLotsZBArequestbackup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Finance Review Complete


Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Purchasing Review Complete


Back-up Material Submitted?


Print Form


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS CAROL CHANDLER


Same, if needed Wednesday, January 2, 2008


Acceptance of appointment of Judith Moore by the Fayette County Democratic Party for a four-year term to commence February 1, 


2008, and to expire January 31, 2012.


We have been notified that the Fayette County Democratic Party has appointed Judith Moore to serve on the Board of Elections. Mr. 


Al LaMothe's term will expire on January 31, 2008. 


 


The Fayette County Board of Elections consists of three members. The Governing Authority makes one of the appointments and 


each of the two major political parties makes an appointment. While the appointments are made by the two parties, the Board of 


Commissioners "acknowledges" the appointments so that the County Clerk can file an affidavit with the Clerk of Court certifying so. 


 


Accept the appointment of Judith Moore to the Fayette County Board of Elections for a four-year term to commence February 1, 


2008 and ending January 31, 2012.


No


No


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


No












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Finance Review Complete


Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Purchasing Review Complete


Back-up Material Submitted?


Print Form


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS CAROL CHANDLER


Same, if needed Wednesday, January 2, 2008


Acceptance of appointment of David Studdard by the Fayette County Republican Party for an additional four-year term to 


commence February 1, 2008, and to expire January 31, 2012.


We have been notified that the Fayette County Republican Party has reappointed David Studdard to serve another term on the 


Board of Elections. 


 


The Fayette County Board of Elections consists of three members. The Governing Authority makes one of the appointments and 


each of the two major political parties makes an appointment. While the appointments are made by the two parties, the Board of 


Commissioners "acknowledges" the appointments so that the County Clerk can file an affidavit with the Clerk of Court certifying so. 


 


David Studdard was first appointed to fill the unexpired term of Richard Hobbs. This is his first full term appointment by the Party. 


Accept the appointment of David Studdard to the Fayette County Board of Elections for a four-year term to commence February 1, 


2008 and ending January 31, 2012.


No


No


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


No





		Board of Elections Studdard Agenda Request File

		Board of Elections- Studdard Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Finance Review Complete


Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Purchasing Review Complete


Back-up Material Submitted?


Print Form


County Commissioners Carol Chandler


Same, if needed Wednesday, January 2, 2008


Approval of reappointment of Bill Beckwith to the Fayette County Planning Commission for an additional three-year term to 


commence January 1, 2008, and to expire on December 31, 2010.


Mr. Beckwith is a long-time member of the Planning Commission who has expressed a desire to be considered for reappointment.


Take action to reappoint Bill Beckwith to the Planning Commission for a three-year term beginning January 1, 2008, and ending 


December 31, 2010.


No


No


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


No












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


TOPIC:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott


Tony Parrott January 2, 2008


Water Committee recommendation to the Board of Commissioners to not extend the boat ramp at Lake Horton.


A citizen request was made to extend the boat ramp at Lake Horton.  The Water System can do maintenance to the boat ramp, but 


the ramp should not be extended. 


 


Maintenance to the boat ramp would include hauling in rock to place at the drop off of the ramp to the lake bed.  Extending the 


ramp further is not recommended because when the lake is so low that the county has closed the lake, it is not recommended that 


people  be in the lake in boats under conditions that are not ideal to begin with.


Approval of Water Committee recommendation that the boat ramp at Lake Horton not be extended.


Yes November 29, 2007


No


 


Discussion of a recommendation from the Water Committee that the public boat ramp at Lake Horton not be extended as 


proposed.


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Finance Review Complete


Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Purchasing Review Complete


Back-up Material Submitted?


Print Form


County Commissioners Carol Chandler


Same, if needed Wednesday, January 2, 2008


Approval of reappointment of Tim Thoms to the Fayette County Planning Commission for an additional three-year term to 


commence January 1, 2008, and to expire on December 31, 2010.


Mr. Thoms is currently a member of the Planning Commission and has expressed a desire to be considered for reappointment.


Take action to reappoint Tim Thoms to the Planning Commission for a three-year term beginning January 1, 2008, and ending 


December 31, 2010.


No


No


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


No












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


TOPIC:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott


Tony Parrott December 5, 2007


Water Committee recommendation to the Board of Commissioners to approve the proposed change to the code to enable the 


Water System to take over individual community septic and drip irrigation systems within a subdivision.


The Board of Commissioners approved the Water Committee recommendation to own and operate community septic systems and 


community drip irrigation systems in Fayette County on February 7, 2007.  The County code needs to be updated to include the 


proposed changes and enable the Water System to take over individual community septic and drip irrigation systems as they are 


built to County specifications.


Approval of the changes to the code.  See Summary of Procedure for Fayette County Water System Community Septic and Drip 


Irrigation Systems that is attached.


Funding will be according to rates charged.  Residential rates will be $4.38 per 1,000 gallons of metered water used each month, 


with a minimum bill of $20.00. The rates for Industrial, Commercial and Multi Family are $4.85 per 1,000 gallons of metered water 


with a minimum of $20.00 per month.


Yes February 7, 2007


No


Water Committee recommendation to the Board of Commissioners to approve the proposed change to the code to enable the 


Water System to take over individual community septic and drip irrigation systems within a subdivision. 


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008





		Community Septic Agenda Request File

		Community Septic Backup 1

		Community Septic Backup 2

		Community Septic Backup 3

		Sanitary Sewer Appendix A

		Sanitary Sewer Appendix B

		Sanitary Sewer Appendix C












STATE OF GEORGIA


COUNTY OF FAYETTE


RESOLUTION
NUMBER  2008-01


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR FAYETTE COUNTY; TO
PROVIDE FOR THE LEASE RENEWAL AND LEASE PAYMENT APPROPRIATION FOR THE
PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE FAYETTE COUNTY JAIL EXPANSION AND JUDICIAL CENTER,
FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2008; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLIC
HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County is the duly authorized governing body for


Fayette County; and


WHEREAS, the lease of said property must be renewed each calendar year; and


WHEREAS, the lease payments must be authorized to be paid as scheduled each calendar year;


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:


1.


The lease with the Fayette County Public Facilities Authority, of Fayette County, Georgia for
the property known as the Fayette County Jail Expansion and Judicial Center, Fayetteville, Georgia
be renewed for the calendar year 2008.


2.


The lease payments as required by the existing schedule of payments be funded for the
calendar year 2008.


SO RESOLVED this 2nd day of January, 2008.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


By________________________
  Chairman


ATTEST:


_________________________
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Road/Public Works Phil Mallon


Zack Taylor Thursday, December 13, 2007


Bid award for Culvert repairs on Milam Road at Whitewater Creek 


GADOT sent Fayette County a bridge/culvert inspection report that defined a serious washout on the inlet end of the large 3-barrel 


concrete reinforced culvert on Milam Road. Public Works then prepared a bid for this repair work  (P638). After bid submittals were 


collected by Purchasing, it was recommended that the bid be awarded to North Georgia Concrete Inc. in the amount of $125,000 


with a "road closure" option with a $6,000 reduction in price. This brings the total cost to $119,000. 


 


The road closure clause was to perform guardrail installation while the road is closed for worker and travelling public safety.  The 


low bidder was submitting a bid on another project (Old Road curb and gutter install) and was rejected on this bid per letter to Tim  


Jones. 


Approve staff's recommendation to award a bid to North Georgia Concrete Inc.  to repair the culvert on Milam Road over 


Whitewater Creek, in the amount of $119,000.


These repairs were also placed into a CIP fund with the amount of $200,000. Mary Holland has confirmed this amount.


Yes CIP Discussions


No


Consideration of a recommendation from staff that North Georgia Concrete, Inc. be awarded the bid to repair the culvert on Milam 


Road over Whitewater Creek, in the amount of $119,000.


● ●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●





		Culvert Repairs Milam Road Agenda Request File

		Pw-backup documentation for culvert repairs- Milam rd










STATE OF GEORGIA


COUNTY OF FAYETTE


RESOLUTION
NUMBER  2008-02


WHEREAS, Fayette County operates an Emergency “911" System; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County is permitted by State law to impose a monthly “911" charge upon each
exchange access facility subscribed to by telephone subscribers; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County is currently imposing said fee in the amount of $1.50 pursuant to Fayette
County Resolution Number 90-07; and


WHEREAS, the continued implementation of Resolution Number 90-07 is necessary for the further
good of the public health, safety and welfare;


NOW IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County that Resolution
Number 90-07 is hereby re-adopted and incorporated herein as if set forth fully verbatim.


ENACTED this 2nd day of January, 2008.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF FAYETTE COUNTY


__________________________
Chairman


ATTEST:


___________________________
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk












STATE OF GEORGIA


COUNTY OF FAYETTE


RESOLUTION 
NUMBER  2008-03


WHEREAS,  Fayette County operates an Emergency “911" System; and


WHEREAS, Part 4 of Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Title 46 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, a amended by
Act No.  88, Georgia Laws 1998, authorizes local governments to impose a wireless enhanced
911 charge upon each wireless telecommunications connection subscribed to by subscribers
whose billing address is within the jurisdiction of the local government; and


WHEREAS, such charges may be imposed at a rate of up to $1.00 per month per wireless connection; and


WHEREAS, such charges may be imposed by any local government that operates or contracts for the
operation of an emergency 911 system which is capable of providing automatic number
identification of wireless telecommunications connections and the location of the base station or
cell site; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County operates or has contracted for the operation of an emergency 911 system which is
capable of providing automatic number identification of wireless telecommunications connections
and the location of the base station or cell site; and


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the question of imposing a wireless enhanced charge in Fayette
County, Georgia on March 25, 1999; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County is currently imposing said fee in the amount of $1.00 pursuant to Resolution
Number 99-03A adopted on March 25, 1999; and


WHEREAS, the continued implementation of Resolution Number 99-03A is necessary for the further good of
the public health, safety and welfare;


NOW, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County that Resolution
Number 99-03A adopted by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on March 25, 1999 is hereby re-adopted
and incorporated herein as if set forth fully verbatim.


ENACTED this 2nd day of January, 2008.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF FAYETTE COUNTY


__________________________
Chairman


ATTEST:


___________________________
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Lewis Patterson January 2, 2008


 


Proposed change to Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Policy.


FMLA leave is currently required to be taken concurrently with accrued sick leave.  The proposal would change this to require 


employees to use all available accrued sick and annual time before applying for FMLA.  This will be as equitable as possible to all 


employees regardless of seniority and accrued leave time.  The proposal would conservatively reduce the number of FMLA leaves 


by about 40% annually, translating into a cost saving to the county of $3,084 because of the reduction in administrative time 


needed to oversee these leaves.  The Board will not pay any additional sick leave over this extended period of leave as medical 


benefits for employees on approved medical leave are already paid by the county.  By shifting the FMLA leave to begin after 


accrued leave has been exhausted, additional job protection will be afforded to the employees along with a reduction of paperwork 


for bot the employee and the county, resulting in cost savings for both, as the employees will save out of pocket expenses they 


currently pay  to some health care providers who charge upwards of twenty or even thirty dollars to complete paperwork.


Approval of proposed policy change.


No


No


Consideration to approve the revised FMLA policy recommended by Human Resources. 


●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners  
 
From:  Lewis Patterson, Human Resources Administrator 
   
Date:  December 27, 2007 
 
Subject: Proposed Change to Family and Medial Leave Act (FMLA) Policy 
 
 
Currently, Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) approved leave must be taken concurrently with 
accrued sick leave providing the greatest benefit to employees who maintain minimum sick leave 
balances. The proposed change from concurrent to consecutive provides equity to all employees, 
regardless of seniority and accrued leave time.  The proposal would require employees to first 
exhaust available accrued sick time and annual time before applying for FMLA leave.  Included 
would be the option of using any accrued compensatory time.   
 
From calendar year 2004 to date there have been 481 FMLA leaves which equates to an average of 
120 per year.  Over the last five years, the average annual sick leave usage per employee is 
approximately 8 days. Meanwhile, the average length of service for Fayette County employees 
equals 8.48 years, which equates to an annual available accrual of 15 annual leave days.  Combined, 
the average employee accrues 23 days annually to use toward a qualified medical leave before they 
would have to apply for FMLA leave.   
 
By applying the 23 days to the graphs on the following page, FMLA leave and the accompanying 
paperwork would be reduced by 75% as a result of the proposed changes to the FMLA Policy.  
Realizing that every employee may not maintain the maximum accruals for sick and annual leave, 
the proposed policy change would conservatively reduce the number of FMLA leaves each year by 
65%, which translates into a cost savings of $5,011 per year due to the reduced amount of paperwork 
being processed in Human Resources along with the tracking and follow up on each case.   
 
In addition, employees can collectively realize an out of pocket savings of about $1,500 annually on 
fees that health care providers charge to complete federally required FMLA paperwork.  There are 
an increasing number of health care providers charging ten and fifteen dollars per page to complete 
paperwork for their patients with some even in the twenty to thirty dollar range. 
 
You can see by reviewing the graphs on the next page that the FMLA usage over the last four years 
is very consistent.  The bottom line on the graphs represents the number of days the leave lasted up 
to ninety.  The left hand column represents the number of FMLA leaves.  By shifting FMLA leave to 
begin after an employee has used their accrued sick and annual time, the number of short term leaves  







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
and accompanying paperwork will be significantly reduced, provide equity throughout the work 
force while achieving cost savings for both the employer and the employee. 
   


2004 FMLA Leave


0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90


1


11


21


31


41


51


61


71


81


91


101


111


121


131


1
3
8
 I
n


d
iv


id
u


a
l 
C


a
s
e
s


Days


                     


2005 FMLA Leave


0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90


1


11


21


31


41


51


61


71


81


91


101


111


121


131


1
3
4
 I
n


d
iv


id
u


a
l 
C


a
s
e
s


Days


 
 


2006 FMLA Leave


0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90


1


11


21


31


41


51


61


71


81


91


101


1
0


6
 I


n
d


iv
id


u
a


l 
L


e
a


v
e


s


Days


                      


2007 FMLA Leave


0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90


1


11


21


31


41


51


61


71


81


91


9
4


 I
n


d
iv


id
u


a
l 


L
e


a
v


e
s


Days


 
 
By amending the policy, the board will not be paying any additional sick leave, as FMLA leave is 
not required to be compensated.  The board already pays for medical benefits for employees who are 
on approved medical leave, so that cost will not increase.   
 
The current practice complies with federal law, but does not afford employees any additional 
benefits and in actuality is basically a recordkeeping burden.  By shifting FMLA leave to begin after 
accrued leave is exhausted, the employee receives extended job protection, over half of the FMLA 
leaves will be eliminated and in turn the paperwork will be reduced accordingly for both the  







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
employer and the employee, resulting in cost savings for both.  This will allow the board to improve 
benefits and morale without increasing cost. 
 
Attached is a copy of the current FMLA Policy with proposed changes. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this proposed policy change. 
 
Cc: Connie Boehnke 
 Jack Krakeel 
 
          







Fayette County Human Resources Family and Medical Leave Act Policy (FMLA) 
Policies and Procedures 408.011 


 


 Page 1 of 3 


Director====s Approval ___________ 00-00-00 


 


PURPOSE 


 


FMLA entitles eligible employees to take up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave each year for specified 


family and medical reasons. 


 


 


POLICY 
 
Employees who have been employed at least twelve (12) months and have worked at least 1,250 hours during 


the twelve (12) month period preceding the commencement of the leave.  


 


Eligibility 


 


 


Definitions 


 


1. "Serious Health Condition" is an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition that 


involves (a) inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential medical care facility; and/or (b) 


continuing treatment by a health care provider. 


 


2. "Parent" includes a biological parent or an individual who stood on loco parentis to the employee. 


 


3. "Child" includes biological children, adopted children, foster children, legal wards. 


 


4. "Spouse" includes only the legal marital partner of the employee. 


 


5. "Health Care Providers" includes doctors of medicine or osteopathy; podiatrists, dentists, clinical 


psychologists, optometrists, chiropractors, nurse practitioners, nurse-midwives and clinical social 


workers who are authorized to practice in the State of Georgia, Christian Science practitioners listed 


with the First Church of Christ, Scientist in Boston, Massachusetts, and any health care provider 


authorized to practice in the State of Georgia. 


 


Reasons for leave 


 


An employee is eligible for up to twelve (12) weeks of leave annually for one or more of the following reasons: 


    


1. Birth of a child and to care for that child (entitlement to leave for this reason expires at the end of one 


year after birth of the child and the employee is to provide at least 30 days notice, if foreseeable); or 


 


2. Placement of child for adoption or foster care of a child (entitlement to this leave expires one year 


after placement of the child, and if foreseeable, employee is to provide at least 30 days notice).  


Foster care is defined as requiring State action rather than just an informal arrangement to take care 


of another person's child; or 


 


3. Serious personal health condition making employee unable to perform his/her job functions more than 


(3) three calendar days: or 


 


4. Care of a parent, spouse, or child with a serious health condition.  A qualifying child must be under 18 


years of age or, if older, incapable of self care due to a physical or mental disability. 


 


Conditions of Leave 


 


1. Employee is required to use accrued sick and vacation time concurrently with the family and medical 


Comment [A1]: INCLUDES 


REVISIONS TO PROVIDE FOR 


FMLA BEING CONSECUTIVE TO 


SICK LEAVE.  See pages 2 & 3. 


Comment [A2]: clarification 







Fayette County Human Resources Family and Medical Leave Act Policy (FMLA) 
Policies and Procedures 408.011 


 


 Page 2 of 3 


Director====s Approval ___________ 00-00-00 


 


 leave before being placed on unpaid leave.  Employee is required to use accrued sick and vacation 


time prior to requesting Family and Medical Leave. 


     


2. Employee must give 30 days notice for all requests for leaves of absence for any planned medical 


 treatment, if possible. 


 


3. All requests for leaves of absence for a serious medical condition of the employee, spouse, parent or 


child may be accompanied by a physician's certification of the existence of such medical condition.  


Re-certification may be required every 4 weeks during a continuous leave of absence. 


 


4. Intermittent leave or a reduced schedule of work may be permitted for leave granted for serious 


health condition of employee, spouse, child or parent.  The County reserves the right to temporarily 


transfer the employee to an alternate position or shift with equivalent pay and benefits if the position 


better accommodates the occurring period of leave than the employee's regular position. 


 


5. If a husband and wife are both employed by the County, a combined total of 12 weeks of leave are 


applicable for a qualifying event. 


 


Responsibilities 


 


1. Employee:  The employee requesting family and medical leave must complete a FMLA Application 


and submit it to his/her department head for approval and forward to the Director of Human 


Resources.  Upon request, the employee may be required to provide a Certificate of Health Care 


Provider form within 15 days of the request.  Timely payment of any contributions or premiums due for 


coverage is required.  Re-certify every 4 weeks during a continuous leave.  Notify Department Head, 


5 days prior to the employee’s planned return. 


    


2. Department:  The Director, Chief or Department Head is required to approve leave for eligible 


employees who meet the criteria as outlined in this regulation.  Submit leave requests on behalf of 


employee when applicable conditions of leave exist.  Supervisors are prohibited from discriminating 


against employees who take family and medical leave in employment decisions such as performance 


appraisals, promotions or disciplinary actions.  Departments are required to keep posted the poster 


notifying employees of the provisions of the FMLA.  If an employee notifies a supervisor of a need for 


leave which may be eligible under this policy, the supervisor should inquire further of the employee to 


determine if FMLA is appropriate. 


 


3. Department of Human Resources:  The Department of Human Resources will serve as advisor to 


employees and directors, chiefs or department heads on the requirements of eligibility for family and 


medical leave and provisions of FMLA.  The Department of Human Resources will be responsible for 


providing the employee with an Employer Response to Employee Request for Family or Medical 


Leave form.  All medical records pertaining to family and medical leave will be maintained in a 


confidential employee medical file in the Department of Human Resources.  Department of Human 


Resources will maintain records of FMLA taken by County employees. 


 


Benefits During Leave 


 


The County will continue to pay their portion of applicable benefits throughout the duration of the leave. 


Employees will be required to continue to make any contributions/premiums that they made prior to taking 


leave.  Employees who fail to pay their portion may result in loss of coverage. 


 


1. Health Insurance:  The County will provide and pay for the same health care coverage during this 


twelve (12) week Family and Medical Leave in the same manner as for active employees. 


 


2. Life Insurance: The County will provide and pay for the same life insurance coverage during this 


Comment [A3]: Revised 







Fayette County Human Resources Family and Medical Leave Act Policy (FMLA) 
Policies and Procedures 408.011 


 


 Page 3 of 3 


Director====s Approval ___________ 00-00-00 


 


twelve (12) week Family and Medical Leave in the same manner as for active employees.  


 


3. Reimbursement Benefits:  The County will provide and pay for the same reimbursement benefits 


during this twelve (12) week Family and Medical Leave in the same manner as for active employees. 


 


4. Long-Term Disability:  The County will provide and pay for long-term disability during this twelve (12) 


week Family and Medical Leave in the same manner as for active employees. 


 


5. Short -Term Disability:  The employee will be responsible for timely payment of this benefit during this 


 twelve (12) week Family and Medical Leave. 


 


6. Optional Benefits:  The employee will be responsible for timely payment of these benefits during this 


 twelve (12) week Family and Medical Leave.                  


 


Restoration of Employment Following Leave 


 


Notification to return to work must be given to the Director, Chief or Department Head 5 days prior to the 


employee’s planned return. 


 


Failure to Return to Work 


 


Employees who fail to return to work upon expiration of the leave will be subject to termination unless an 


extension is granted.  


 


Use of Paid Leave and Family and Medical Leave 


 


An employee is required to take any available paid sick leave or vacation prior to requesting Family and 


Medical Leave.  Accrued sick leave must be used first, then remaining leave time.  An employee has the 


option of using accrued compensatory time.  Family and Medical Leave is taken consecutive to paid leave.  


For example, if an employee has available two weeks of vacation, then a 12 week Family and Medical Leave, 


the leave would consist of 2 paid vacation weeks and 12 unpaid leave weeks. 


 


 


 


 


. 


 


Comment [A4]: Added 





		FMLA Policy Change Agenda Request File

		FMLA Policy Change Backup One

		FMLA Policy Change Backup Two










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Finance Mary S. Holland


Wednesday, January 2, 2008


 


Authorization to recognize Sheriff's Criminal Investigation Division's reimbursement of $2,721.38 and increase expenditure budget 


for overtime $2,721.28.


Finance has received funds in the amount of $2,721.28 to reimburse Fayette County's Sherriff's department for Donald Mahlon's 


59.69 overtime hours from July 2007 through September 2007 working with the U.S. Marshals Service, Regional Fugitive Task Force.


Authorization to recognize overtime reimbursement of $2,721.28 and increase expenditure budget for regular overtime $2,721.28.


N/A


No


No


Authorization to recognize Sheriff's Criminal Investigation Division's reimbursement of $2,721.38 and increase expenditure budget 


for overtime $2,721.28.


● ●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●





		Sheriff CID Reimbursement Agenda Request File

		Sheriff CID reimbursement backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Finance Mary S. Holland


Wednesday, January 2, 2008


 


Authorization to recognize fire donation of $850 and increase expenditure budget for catered food $850.


Finance receipted two checks for Fire/EMS Thanksgiving dinner; 1) Blue Ridge Medial check for $500 receipt #1346273, 2) 


Omniflight Helicopter, Inc. check for $350 receipt #1346268.


Authorization to recognize fire donation of $850 and increase expenditure budget for catered food $850.


N/A


No


No


Authorization to recognize fire donation of $850 and increase expenditure budget for catered food $850.


●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●





		Fire Donation Agenda Request File

		FinanceFireDonationbackup

		FinanceFire Donation backup

		January 10, 2007 Fire Donation












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


TOPIC:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Finance Mary S. Holland


Mary S. Holland Wednesday, January 2, 2008


Authorization to adjust the county's travel expense reimbursement amount for traveling on official county business.


Provisions for adjusting the travel expense reimbursement rate are stipulated in the county's policy on travel, transportation, and 


allowances, as revised on March 7, 2007.  The policy covers county employees, non-county employees, elected officials, and others 


in the performance of official county business.  Current reimbursement for use of a private vehicle is 39.77 cents per mile, based on 


82% of the IRS calendar year 2007 rate of 48.5 cents.  The proposed rate is 41.41 cents per mile, based on 82% of the calendar year 


2008 IRS rate of 50.5 cents.


Authorization to increase the travel reimbursement rate from the current 39.77 cents per mile to 41.41 cents per mile.


No


No


Approval of an increase in the 2008 mileage reimbursement travel rate for use of a private vehicle from 39.77 cents per mile to 


41.41cents per mile, in accordance with the County's Travel Policy which governs employees travelling on official county business.


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
To:  Mary S. Holland 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  December 10, 2007 
 
Subject: Update of Travel Mileage Reimbursement Rate 
 
Each year the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) conducts a survey of fixed and variable costs of 
operating an automobile.  They prospectively update the mileage reimbursement rates that 
individuals can claim for business-related purposes in the upcoming year, based on the results of the 
survey.  The IRS rate set for calendar year 2007 was 48.5 cents.  The calendar year 2008 rate will be 
50.5 cents. 
 
Fayette County’s travel regulations, as updated March 7, 2007 stipulate that, “when an employee 
chooses to use his/her own vehicle in lieu of a county-owned vehicle, the employee will be 
reimbursed at 82% of the established IRS rate for business miles.”  This set the county’s travel 
reimbursement rate at 39.77 cents for calendar year 2007.  It is requested that the rate be updated to 
82% of the new IRS rate for calendar year 2008, which will be 41.41 cents. 
 
The total amount reimbursed for miles driven in fiscal year 2007 is estimated to be about $10,000.  
The cost of this mileage rate update would then be about $400.     
   





		Travel Reimbursement 41.4 Agenda Request File

		Travel Reimbursement 41.4 cents Backup










Workshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop Agenda
Board of Commissioners


    January 2, 2008
 3:30 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge to the Flag


Acceptance of Agenda.


ORGANIZATIONAL SESSION:


A. Election of Board Chairman for the year 2008.


B. Election of Board Vice-Chairman for the year 2008.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION


C. Recognition of Fayette County employees who have
successfully completed levels 1, 2, and 3 of the Management
Development Program offered by the University of Georgia
Institute of Government.


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of authorization to sign checks combining any of the
following two signatures for transactions exceeding $5,000:
Chairman, Vice-Chairman, County Administrator.


2. Approval of authorization to sign checks for transactions $4,999
or less: Chairman, Vice-Chairman, County Administrator.


3. Approval of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to execute
contracts, resolutions, agreements and other documents
approved by the Board of Commissioners.


4. Approval of proposed meeting schedule for 2008.


5. Approval of Resolution Number 2008-01 appropriating funds
necessary for the annual lease payment on the jail expansion
and courthouse.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Commissioners’ Chambers
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
First  Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


Every Second Thursday at 7:00 p.m.
i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


Phone: (770) 460-5730 ext.  5400
Fax: (770) 460-9412


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov







Workshop Agenda
January 2, 2008
Page Number 2


6. Approval of Resolution Number 2008-02 renewing Resolution Number 90-07 which imposes a
$1.50 monthly “911" charge upon each exchange access facility subscribed to by telephone
subscribers.


7. Approval of Resolution 2008-03 renewing Resolution Number 90-03A which imposes a $1.00
monthly “911" wireless enhanced charge upon each exchange access facility subscribed to by
telephone subscribers.


8. Approval of appointment of Scott Gilbert to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals for a
three-year term to commence January 1, 2008, and to expire on December 31, 2010.


9. Approval of reappointment of Tim Thoms to the Fayette County Planning Commission for an
additional three-year term to commence January 1, 2008, and to expire on December 31, 2010.


10. Approval of reappointment of Bill Beckwith to the Fayette County Planning Commission for an
additional three-year term to commence January 1, 2008, and to expire on December 31, 2010.


11. Acceptance of appointment of David Studdard to the Board of Elections by the Fayette County
Republican Party for an additional four-year term to commence February 1, 2008, and to expire
January 31, 2012.


12. Acceptance of appointment of Judith Moore to the Board of Elections by the Fayette County
Democratic Party for a four-year term to commence February 1, 2008, and to expire January 31,
2012.


13. Approval of a budget adjustment to accept a donation to Fire and Emergency Services for $850
and to increase the department’s expenditure budget account for Catered Food  by $850.


14. Authorization for acquisition of title and license tag for an additional vehicle obtained by the
Sheriff’s Department from the United States Marshals Service.


15. Approval of a budget adjustment to accept a reimbursement to the Sheriff’s Criminal Investigation
Division Sheriff’s Criminal Investigation Division in the amount of $2,721.38 and to increase the
departments expenditure account for Overtime by $2,721.28.


16. Approval of an increase in the 2008 mileage reimbursement travel rate for use of a private vehicle
from 39.77 cents per mile to 41.41 cents per mile, in accordance with the County’s Travel Policy
which governs employees traveling on official county business.


17. Approval of a recommendation from staff that North Georgia Concrete, Inc.  be awarded the bid to
repair the culvert on Milam Road over Whitewater Creek, in the amount of $119,000.







Workshop Agenda
January 2, 2008
Page Number 3


18. Approval to purchase 500 water saver kits to be distributed free of charge to Water System
customers in homes built prior to 1994, at a cost of approximately $3,500, as recommended by the
Water Committee.


19. Approval of a budget adjustment to accept a donation to the Library in the amount of $750. and to
increase the departments account for Books and Magazines by $750.


20. Approval of a budget adjustment to accept a donation to the Library of $375. and to increase the
department’s budget for Other Improvements by $375.


21. Approval of a recommendation by E911 Communications to enter into a contract with Motorola,
Inc. for equipment and software for two call-taker positions approved in the FY 08 budget and
authorization for the Chairman to execute said contract. 


22. Approval of September 5, 2007 Workshop Minutes, October 3, 2007 Workshop Minutes and
November 29, 2007 Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


D. Discussion of a recommendation from the Water Committee that the public boat ramp at Lake
Horton be repaired but not extended. 


E. Discussion of the Water Committee’s recommendation concerning proposed ordinance
amendments to the code to enable the Water System to take over individual community septic and
drip irrigation systems within a subdivision.


NEW BUSINESS:


F. Discussion of the setback requirements of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance for lots with
multiple frontages, as requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals.


G. Consideration to approve the revised FMLA policy recommended by Human Resources.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT
DEPARTMENT REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
STAFF REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION


ADJOURNMENT












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


TOPIC:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott


Tony Parrott January 2, 2008


Water Committee recommendation to the Board of Commissioners purchase of 500 water saver kits to be provided free to Water 


System customers in homes built prior to 1994.


The North Metropolitan North Georgia Planning District (District) has proposed these water saving kits.  Providing them will help in 


meeting the governor's 10% reduction.  Customers can pick up a kit at the Water System office on McDonough Road or Peachtree 


City City Hall.  The cost for 500 of these will be approximately $3,500.00.  Niagara Conservation has prepared these kits for purchase 


by communities in North Georgia due to the drought situation.  They have worked with the District to make them available at the 


discounted rate. 


 


These kits contain devices that detect leaks and change the amount of water needed  for flushing, showering and using the kitchen 


sink.


Approval to purchase 500 water saver kits to be distributed free of charge to Water System customers in homes built prior to 1994, 


at a cost of approximately $3,500, as suggested by the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District for use in Georgia's 


drought-stricken counties.


Funding will be provided through the water revenue collected for usage above 19,999 gallons.


No


No


Approval to purchase 500 water saver kits to be distributed free of charge to Water System customers in homes built prior to 1994, 


at a cost of approximately $3,500., as suggested by the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District for use in Georgia's 


drought-stricken counties.


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008

































		Water Saver Kits Agenda Request File

		Water Saver Kits Backup One

		Water Saver 1

		Water Saver 2



		Water Saver Kits Backup Two










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Library Chris Snell


Approval to increase the donation revenue account and the ICLE revenue account by $375.00 and to increase Other Improvements 


expenditures by $375.00 


The  Fayette County Public Library has been a host site for the University of Georgia Continuing Legal Education for over eight years. 


The donation is for reimbursement for the use of the Satellite/Distance Learning Center


Approval


N/A


Yes June 2007


No


Approval to increase the donation revenue account and the ICLE revenue account by $375 and to increase Other Improvements 


expenditures by $375. 


●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Library Chris Snell


 January 2, 2008


Approval to increase the donation revenue account  by $750.00 and  to increase Books and Magazines expenditures by $750.00 


 


For over ten years, the Rotary Club of Fayetteville has given the library this donation. The library buys books in honor of the weekly 


Rotary speaker.


Approval


N/A


Yes June 2007


No


Approval to increase the donation revenue account by $750 and to increase Books and Magazines expenditures by $750.


●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Finance Review Complete


Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Purchasing Review Complete


Back-up Material Submitted?


Print Form


County Commissioners Carol Chandler


Same, if needed Wednesday, January 2, 2008


Approval of appointment of Scott Gilbert to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals for a three-year term to commence 


January 1, 2008, and to expire on December 31, 2010.


This would be Mr. Gilbert's first term on the Zoning Board of Appeals. There are two vacancies on the ZBA, as Mr. Mahon and Mr. 


Mabra did not wish to be considered for reappointment. 


 


If Mr. Gilbert is appointed, there will still be a vacancy to fill.


Take action to appoint Scott Gilbett to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a three-year term beginning January 1, 2008, and ending 


December 31, 2010.


No


No


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


No












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Connie Boehnke January 2, 2008


 


Recognition of Fayette County employees who have successfully completed all three levels of UGA Management Development 


Program as of December 2007.


Fayette County employee's were recognized for the successful completion of all three levels of the Management Development 


Program facilitated in conjunction with the Carl Vinson Institute of Government at the University of Georgia, the Atlanta Regional 


Commission.  This program is a highly regarded training program for supervisors and managers.  The three course series cover 


leadership, coaching and management skills.  Level I consist of 42 classroom hours plus 1 personal coaching session.  Topics include: 


Critical Role of Management Skills, Developing Self-Awareness, Managing Personal Stress, Solving Problems, Coaching, Counseling, 


and Supportive Communication.  Level II consists of 42 classroom hours plus 1 coaching session and assigned outside reading.  


Topics include:  Power of Influence, Ethics, Motivation, Conflict, and Team and Group Dynamics.  Level III has 42 classroom hours 


plus 2 coaching sessions with an executive project due at the conclusion of the course.  Topics include:  Measuring Operational 


Performance, Problem Definition, Fundamentals of Management Projects, Information Gathering and oral and Written Presentation.


Recognition of Fayette County staff member's achievement


No.


No


No


Recognition of Fayette County employees who have successfully completed levels 1, 2,  and 3 management training from the 


University of Georgia.


●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●







The following Fayette County employees are being recognized for completing the 
Management Development Course through the University of Georgia’s Carl Vinson 
Institute of Government: 
 
Miguel Abi-Hassan Animal Control Director  
Terry Black   Lieutenant, Marshal’s Office 
Jennifer Estrada Assistant Water Plant Manager, Crosstown 
Phil Mallon  Transportation Director 
Greg Ownby  Maintenance Director 
Lewis Patterson Human Resources Administrator 
Tom Williams  Assistant Planning Director 





		MDP Course Graduates Agenda Request File

		MDP Course Graduates Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


TOPIC:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


Finance Mary S. Holland


Thursday, January 10, 2008


Authorization for acquisition of title and license tag for an additional vehicle obtained by the Sheriff's Department from the United 


States Marshals Service.


Vehicles and other assets are sometimes seized by law enforcement agencies because they were used in the commission of certain 


crimes, such as drug trafficking.  The Sheriff's Department has purchased one of these vehicles from the U.S. Marshals Service, using 


federal drug seizure funds.


Authorization to acquire title and a license tag for the newly acquired vehicle.


No


No


Authorization for acquisition of title and license tag for an additional vehicle obtained by the Sheriff's Department from the United 


States Marshals Service.


Yes







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
 
 
To:  Mary S. Holland 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  December 19, 2007 
 
Subject: Vehicle Acquired from the U.S. Marshals Service 
 
The United States Marshals Service manages and disposes of seized property that had been acquired 
by criminals through illegal activities.  The property may be seized as the result of work done by the 
Drug Enforcement Agency; the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives; the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, or other agencies. 
 
The Sheriff’s Department has acquired an additional vehicle through the Marshals Service.  It was 
paid for by a check written from the Federal Seizures account.  It will be used for confidential work. 
 
Authorization is sought to process tag and title documents to complete the acquisition of the vehicle. 





		Marshals UC Vehicle Agenda Request File

		FinanceUS Marshals Vehicle Backup










Workshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop Minutes
Board of Commissioners


October 3, 2007
3:30 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia met in Official
Session on October 3, 2007 at 3:30 p.m. in the Commissioners’
Conference Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140
Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Don Comer, Interim County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk


____________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the Workshop Meeting to order at 3:35 p.m., due to
Commissioner Maxwell’s absence.  The record will reflect Commissioner
Maxwell entered the proceedings at 3:46 p.m., a few minutes after Mr. 
Steve Vaughn began his presentation.


Acceptance of Agenda:


Commissioner Frady motioned to accept the agenda as printed and was
seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith asked if Item C
under Old Business be removed from the agenda because he it had been
voted on at the last meeting, and Interim County Attorney Don Comer had
informed him it would be inappropriate for the item to be on the agenda
until it was advertised again.  He asked Commissioner Frady if he would
amend his motion to approve the agenda as printed with the exception of
Item C.  Commissioner Frady amended his motion and was seconded by
Commissioner Horgan.  After hearing no further discussion, Chairman
Smith called for a vote on the motion.  Chairman Smith asked for the record
to reflect Commissioner Maxwell was not present for the vote.  A copy of
the October 3, 2007, Workshop Meeting’s agenda, identified as


“Attachment 1" follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIME
1st Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


Phone: (770) 460-5730 ext.  5400
Fax: (770) 460-9412


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 2


The motion to accept the agenda as printed with the exception of Item C under Old Business
passed with a 4-0 unanimous vote. 


Consent Agenda:


1. Approval to reimburse a petitioner’s fee paid for the filing of a rezoning petition that was not
completed.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


2. Approval of a budget adjustment increase for the Sheriff’s Department Field Division Repair
Account by $400 due to receiving a reimbursement check for damage to a patrol vehicle.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


3. Approval of Town of Tyrone’s request to add 0.570 miles to the July 5, 2006, LARP
Resurfacing Intergovernmental Agreement with the County to include Castle Hill,
Whisperwood Trail and Senoia Road.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval for Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County Water System and the
United States Geological Survey (USGS) for the operation and routine maintenance of real-
time stream-gauges on Line Creek below Highway 54 near Peachtree City and on Shoal
Creek at Highway 54 near Peachtree City, and approval for the Chairman to execute said
document.  A copy of the request and Joint Funding Agreement, identified as “Attachment 5",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


5. Authorization for the Chairman to execute tag and title documents for a 2007 Ford for the
Sheriff’s Department.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of bid award for final landscaping for Phase I of Kenwood Park to Trammell-
Horton, Inc., in the amount of $65,288.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of Minutes for Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting held on August 20,
Board of Commissioners Meeting held on August 23, Board of Commissioners Special
Called Meeting of September 13, 2007, and Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting
held on September 27, 2007.  


Commissioner Horgan motioned to approve all seven items on the consent agenda and was seconded by
Commissioner Pfeifer.  After hearing no discussion, Chairman Smith asked for a vote on the motion.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 3


The motion to approve all seven items on the consent agenda passed unanimously with a 4-0
unanimous vote.


Old Business:


E. Resolution supporting Clayton State University’s MBA program.  A copy of the request and
the Resolution, identified as “Attachment 8", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


Chairman Smith asked for the Board’s indulgence to allow Item E to be discussed first, and for the
remaining items on the agenda to follow in order.  No one objected to his request, so Chairman Smith
asked Mr.  Kevin Dunlap to explain what Clayton State University was planning to do in Fayette County.


Kevin Dunlap told the Commissioners Clayton State University is planning to offer degree programs in
Fayette County, beginning with a MBA degree for working professionals to begin in January at Aberdeen
Woods Conference Center.  He said Clayton State was considering offering even more classes in Fayette
County as administrative and class space could be secured, and the university’s goal was to eventually
offer all of the benefits of a full campus with full campus life.  He informed the Commissioners Clayton
State was presently pursuing a center so they could offer the MBA and added a possibility existed for the
university to offer bachelor degrees in fields such as applied science, psychology and integrated studies. 
He told the Commissioners the university was interested in targeting people who began college but never
completed their degrees.  He said the university also wanted to work with Fayette County High School so
the students could have dual-enrollment with the possibility of graduation from high school with a year or at
least a semester of college behind them.  He said Clayton State University’s Board of Regents was asking
for support from the local community and was requesting documentation to demonstrate support for the
university’s initiative.


Chairman Smith replied a resolution had been drafted and read it for the Commissioners.  Commissioner
Frady motioned to adopt the resolution as presented and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  After
hearing no further discussion, Chairman Smith called for a vote on the motion.


The motion to approve the Resolution supporting Clayton State University’s MBA program passed
with a 4-0 unanimous vote.


A. Steve Vaughn of Government Employee Benefits Corporation of Georgia (GEBCorp) will
present the Board with Additional Information regarding the findings of the Retirement
Study Group.  A copy of the request and the GEBCorp presentation, identified as “Attachment 9",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Chairman Smith asked Mr.  Steve Vaughn to give his presentation.  Mr.  Vaughn used a PowerPoint
presentation to guide the following discussion, and handed out hard copies to the Commissioners for
review.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 4


Mr.  Vaughn commended the Retirement Study Committee (RSC), Mr.  John Kimball, and the
Commissioners for a job well done, and said in his seven years of experience the study and reports
produced were among the best he had seen regarding the retirement issue.  Mr.  Vaughn’s presentation
can be divided into five sections: basic information, discussion of various Georgia counties and the
conversions to different retirement plans, benefits and risks to the retirement plans, employee
characteristics with comparisons between general employees and public safety employees, and the cost of
a Defined Benefit (DB) plan.


Mr.  Vaughn began the first part of his presentation telling the Commissioners some basing information
and informing them where the RSC began with their study.  He defined the Target Income Replacement
Ratio (TIRR) as terminology uses to answer the question: How will salary be replaced with other income at


retirement and what ratio of salary is appropriate to be replaced?  He said answers range from 65-100%
due to factors such a longer life spans, higher medical and supplemental medical costs, and rising inflation. 
He told the Commissioners the RSC worked on a TIRR to replace 90-100% of income at retirement with
the assumption Social Security would provide 40-42% TIRR and the remaining 50-60% provided by the
retirement plan.  He said some of the remaining 50-60% TIRR could be made up by the county’s 401(a)
retirement plan and the supplemental 457 deferred compensation (DC) plan which is available to the
employee as a matching basis for additional 401(a) money.  He gave more examples of how the remaining
50-60% TIRR could be supplied from other funds such as payroll deductions, IRAs, and employee
investment in housing, stocks, bonds and inheritance.  He also mentioned the 50-60% TIRR could be met
by employer and employee participation.  He asked the Commissioners to remember the RSC did not look
at TIRR as a single number, but as a replacement ratio for each year of service and the RSC calculated
general employees to retire at age 65 and public employees to retire at age 55.  He referred to page six of
his presentation, and said the four risks encircled in green were risks all employers faced regardless of the
type of retirement plan offered.  Those risks were withdrawals, retiree spending, savings and inflation.    He
said the risks encircled in red were shared by the employee, employer or both depending on the retirement
plan in place.  He said if a DB plan was enacted, the risk would be on the employer, but if a DC plan was
utilized the risk would fall on the employee.


Mr.  Vaughn began to address the various retirement plans adopted by counties throughout Georgia.  The
focus of this discussion dealt with pages seven through nine of his presentation.  He explained the
counties colored dark green had DB plans administered through GEBCorp and counties colored light green
had DB plans not administered by GEBCorp.  He said the majority of counties with a DB plan
supplemented those plans with a secondary 401(a) and a 457 DC plan to be paid by the employee alone. 
He said only three counties had converted from a DB plan to a DC plan since 2002 compared to five
counties who converted to a DB plan from a DC plan.  He added another county is going to convert to a
DB plan in January, 2008.  He said Rabun, Douglas, Henry, Rockdale, Walton, Jackson, Lumpkin and
Cherokee Counties had converted to a DB plan for their public safety employees.  He mentioned
Cherokee, Walton and Effingham Counties were all using DB plans in the early 1990s, converted to DC
plans in the late 1990s, and reverted to DB plans.  The trend was for counties to convert to a DB plan, he
explained, even though the trend was against the conventional wisdom broadcasted in the media.  He
added private sector employees were abandoning DB plans, but public sector or governmental employees







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 5


generally were not.  He told the Commissioners Fayette County was not alone by having active
discussions regarding a DB plan, stating two other counties were considering a DB plan at the same time.


Mr.  Vaughn moved to his third section by emphasizing there are pros and cons to both the DB plan and
the DC plan, a debate on the topic could last for hours, and both plans have their place.  He explained
priorities and policy preferences should be the determining factor when deciding between one retirement
plan versus the other.


Mr.  Vaughn next began his comparison between general employees and public safety employees.  For
this topic, he referred often to pages 10-18.  He explained the average age and years of service for
Fayette County employees were slightly higher than other counties participating in DB plans with
GEBCorp, and the average employees’ contribution rate to the 401(a) was significant because it indicated
a good number of employees were not taking full advantage of the county’s existing match.  Public safety
employees have an average age of 38 years, he said, compared to general employees with an average
age of 45 years.  He said public safety employees have an 10 years average service compared to general
employees who have 8 years average service.  He said the averages indicated more mid-career
employees were being hired into general employee ranks than were being hired into public safety ranks,
and more than 25% of general employees were over 65 years old compared to 7% of public safety
employees over age 65.  He informed the Commissioners 16% of public safety employees and 22% of
general employees have minimum participation in the county’s retirement plan, meaning those employees
receive only the base 401(a) and do not contribute at all to the 457 plan.  He said 44% of public safety
employees and 31% of general employees take full advantage of the county’s retirement plan, meaning
those employees contribute 8% in the 457 DC plan.  One lesson to be learned from the statistics, he
added, was the biggest participation group is attained at whatever percentage is set as the maximum
match for the county.  If the match were lowered, he continued, the participation rate would be similar even
though the participants would not save as much money.  He showed 10% of public safety employees and
13% of general employees were contributing over 8% to their 457 DC plan.


Mr.  Vaughn referenced page 16 saying the RSC did some projections based on a 3% salary increase per
year and a 7% average return from a DC plan, and calculated all employees would retire at age 65.  He
asked the Commissioners to look at TIRR Models One and Two located on page five of his presentation
related them to the findings on page 17.  He said with TIRR Model One projecting 12% participation level
and by using the employees’ existing balance, it would be possible for employees to reach 90% TIRR.   He
compared those finding to TIRR Model Two with a 16% contribution for 40 years, before concluding it was
possible to reach 100% TIRR.  He compared those finding to the bar graph on page 18 where only public
safety employees were calculated to retire at age 65.  He explained this distinction was made because
governments generally want their employees to retire at a younger age with full benefits.  He said the
statistics showed if public safety employees contributed 16% of their income to the current retirement plan,
a little less than half would attain 90% TIRR, and if they contributed 20% of their income only 62% would
retire with 90% TIRR.  He added TIRR Model Two demonstrated virtually no public safety employee would
retire with 100% TIRR.  The reason for such dismal figures, he explained, was because public safety
employees would have ten years less to save under TIRR Model Two but would have ten more years of







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 6


retirement.  He concluded the numbers were not pretty for public safety employees to retire at age 55
under the county’s current retirement plan.  


Mr.  Vaughn next spoke about the costs for various DB plans and referred often to pages 19 and 20 of his
presentation.  He first explained the future service DB plan with a 1% multiplier as a base-line DB plan with
no other enhancements.  He explained if an employee worked under this retirement plan for 30 years, the
employee would draw 1% income for every year of service resulting in 30% TIRR.  He said the plan would
cost the county 3.7% covered payroll compared to the county’s 4% current retirement expenditure.  Most
counties pay 4.25% covered payroll for their retirement plans, he told the Commissioners, but Fayette
County would pay less since its public safety employees are younger.  He mentioned if a Cost of Living
Adjustment (COLA) was added to the DB plan, the cost of the DB plan would rise.  Mr.  Vaughn next
explained the all past service DB plan with a 1% multiplier, pointing out its costs would increase only
slightly since it was assumed if an employee wanted credit for past service the employee would pay for the
credit at full actuarial value.  He drew a distinction between a future service only DB plan and an all past
service DB plan saying if an employee worked for 22 years, 20 of which were under the county’s current
retirement plan and two under a 1% future service only DB plan, the employee would retire with only 2%
TIRR.  If the same employee worked for 22 years, he explained, 20 years under the county’s current
retirement plan and two years under an all past service DB plan, the employee would be able to retire with
22% TIRR of his final average salary.  He said if a DB plan were enacted with a 2% multiplier, the cost to
covered payroll would essentially double.  He said the way a 2% multiplier could be provided for essentially
8% cost of covered payroll was due to the fact there are winners and losers.  The winners, he explained,
are long-tenured, older employees and the losers are employees with high mobility and turnover.  He
illustrated his assertion with a scenario of 100 people who were all hired when 35 years old.  He said the
number of employees would decline until retirement age was attained.  Under the DB plan, as the
employees grow older, he elucidated, they would receive a proportionately higher benefit.  He expanded
his scenario to include employees who left their employment at age 45 but returned to collect their benefit
at age 65.  He said those employees could receive their benefit, but the benefit would be calculated for age
45 instead of age 65.  He said the DB plan would benefit from his scenario saying turnover was a benefit
since it kept the DB cost down.  He gave a second scenario where 702 employees were hired at the same
time and age, none ever left, and they all retired at the same time.  He said the DB plan would have a very
high cost under the second scenario.  He mentioned, based on the statistics, turnover was taking place
meaning a DB plan is a more cost efficient way to provide a retirement benefit.


Chairman Smith asked if the additional cost that would be incurred was based on the assumption the
county would leave its DC plan intact.  Mr.  Vaughn said it did not matter if the county kept or replaced the
DC plan.  The county is paying an average 6.32% (rounded down to 6% for his example) for its current
retirement plan, he said.  He explained if the county adopted a DB with a 1% multiplier on top of its current
DC plan, and if the employee did not contribute to the DB plan, the county would have to pay an additional
3.7% covered payroll with a total 9.7% covered payroll for its retirement benefits.


Chairman Smith asked, if the county changed its matching philosophy by putting money into a DB plan and
did not encourage employees to use the money, and if the county could not afford a 2% multiplier DB plan







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 7


without paying more than the 6% current expenditure, would the county bear the cost of the DB plan alone
or could there be a match for employee participation.  Mr.  Vaughn said what Chairman Smith was really
talking about was changing from a DC plan to a DB plan, and the percentage of covered payroll was the
cost for the plan.  He said if an all past service DB plan with a 2% multiplier was enacted the cost would be
7.9% covered payroll.  He said the employee could pay 2% or 4% or whatever the Commissioners decided
of the 7.9% cost to covered payroll.


Commissioner Frady asked where the 6.3% contributions were coming from, and Mr.  Vaughn responded it
was coming from the average match employees were getting from the county.  Commissioner Frady asked
if all employees completely participated would the average match be 8%.  Mr.  Vaughn said it would. 
Commissioner Frady asked if every employee would come under a DB plan.  Commissioner Maxwell
answered all employees would at least come under a future service only plan.  Mr.  Vaughn told the
Commissioners it was possible to allow the DB plan to be an elected plan, but if it was an elected plan all
contributions to it would be post tax contributions.  He said mandatory DB plans could be non-contributory
in nature or if contributions were allowed they would be pretax contributions.  Commissioner Frady said
there were 774 Fayette County employees and 109 of those employees were not participating in the
current retirement plan.  He wanted to know if a DB plan was enacted would the county support only the
employees who participate in the plan or if those who do not participate would also be supported.  Mr
Vaughn said the county would not support the 109 employees who do not participate.


Commissioner Frady said there were employees who were currently contributing 8% of their salary but
receiving 16%.  Mr.  Vaughn said Commissioner Frady was correct since employees were able to keep the
8% contribution they made plus receive an additional 8% county match.  Based on the information,
Commissioner Frady said the current retirement plan sounded pretty good.  Mr.  Kimball said the key idea
to grasp is the county current retirement plan total is 12.92%, and the total was divided with 6.32%
contributed by the employees and 6.6% contributed by the county.  He said the figures show the county is
paying 2.6% more than the minimum 4% the county could contribute.  He concluded if a person looked at
the 12.92% current county cost and compared it to an all past service DB plan with a 2% multiplier which
costs 9.55% covered payroll, then certain questions would arise and would need to be answered.


A DC plan is more inefficient for a retirement plan, Mr.  Vaughn continued, but its strength was it gave the
employees more flexibility with their money.  He informed the Commissioners close to half of all employees
who leave employment with a DC plan spend their money effectively becoming a termination bonus
instead of a retirement plan.  Chairman Smith said it sounded like a DC plan encouraged turnover since
the employee could take the money and do what they want.  Mr.  Vaughn clarified he was not trying to say
a DC plan encouraged turnover, but was only saying vested employees could take their money from the
DC plan.  He maintained employees generally do not leave employment in order to pull money from their C
plan, and those who leave for that reason are really the fringe element.


One of the biggest arguments the Commissioners were hearing against a DB plan was if a DB plan was
adopted it would bankrupt the county, Chairman Smith said.  He asked Mr.  Vaughn what counties with DB
plans were bankrupt or on the verge of bankruptcy.  Mr.  Vaughn said no county with a DB plan was







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 8


bankrupt or on the verge of bankruptcy before adding the average cost for the ACCG program for an
employer was about 11%.  Chairman Smith asked if the 11% was government funded or did it include
employee matching.  Mr.  Vaughn replied the 11% was total funding including employee matching.  He
said 25% of the DB plans had employee matching and 75% did not.  He said counties with a DB plan with
a 1.5% or higher multiplier usually have employee contributions, and those counties with a DB plan under
a 1.5% multiplier do not require employee contributions.  Commissioner Frady wanted to know what
participation rates were under discussion, and Mr.  Vaughn clarified employee contributions as a
percentage of payrolls were being discussed.  Commissioner Frady asked if the percentage under
discussion was the amount the employee would enter into a DB plan, and Mr.  Vaughn said it was.


Commissioner Frady wanted to know what was the advantage of adopting a DB plan.  Mr.  Vaughn said a
DB plan was the most efficient way to create and have a high probability of attaining a certain TIRR.  Mr. 
Vaughn linked the answer to explain why counties were converting to a DB plan saying there were two
main reasons for converting.  The first reason he gave was counties were concerned their employees
would retire in place.  He reminded the Commissioners of the many physically demanding jobs in the
county, and if an employee retired in place the desire to work would diminish, productivity levels would
decline, and the county could incur higher health care costs, higher worker’s compensation costs, and
higher liability costs.  The second reason he gave was based on the fact counties viewed themselves as
long-term employers with a long-term interest.  He maintained the DB plans addressed those two reasons
by promoting the government’s long-term interests enabling the county to have an adequate amount of
retirement, and the plan provided an effective method for transitioning employees out of the workforce
resulting in higher employee productivity.


Commissioner Frady said information given in the CREF study revealed neither a DB plan or a DC plan
would affect how long employees would work.  After asking, Mr.  Vaughn was informed the CREF study
was about designing a public pension plan and concluded the people at TIAA-CREF must not have
discovered any discernable difference regarding the length of employment.


Commissioner Frady said the county’s current retirement plan ensured an employee if they contributed 8%
they would receive 16%.  He wondered where a person could go to get similar results, before concluding
the county’s current plan was hard to beat.  He said the employees who were not participating needed to
be encouraged to participate.  Commissioner Frady mentioned the information presented about public
safety employees did not reflect what he was being told.  He said he was told public safety had higher
turnover compared to general employees, but the findings in the presentation suggested differently.  Mr. 
Vaughn said the average turnover rate may be deceptive due to the “barbell effect”, meaning a large
number of short-term employees made up one “barbell” and the other “barbell” consisted of mid-to-long
term employees.  Chairman Smith asked Sheriff Randall Johnson is Mr.  Vaughn’s speculation sounded
accurate, and the Sheriff indicated it did.


Chairman Smith said it appeared three counties converted from a DB plan to a DC plan and 11 counties
converted from a DC plan to a DB plan.  He wanted to know what motivated those counties to migrate to
the various plans.  







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 9


Mr.  Vaughn answered the question by speaking about the three counties with DC plans and followed by
speaking about the 11 counties with DB plans.  He said Chattahoochee, Gwinnett and Dawson Counties
had converted from a DB plan to a DC plan.  Chattahoochee County had a post-tax elective CB plan with a
1% multiplier and the employees were required to contribute 5% to the plan, he explained.  He said since
the plan was basically an employee funded retirement plan, the employees wanted to own it and control it,
so they converted the plan from a DB plan to a DC plan.  Gwinnett County had a classic case of what he
termed “benefit creep”.  Gwinnett County’s “benefit creep” began, he explained, when the county adopted
a DB plan in the late 1980s or early 1990s, raised the benefit in 1994, raised it again in 2000, and raised it
once again in 2004.  He said the “benefit creep” caused the DB plan to grow from a cost of 10% to 20%. 
He explained, as a result of “benefit creep”, Gwinnett County’s staff looked at the trends and did not like
what they saw, not to mention the $300,000,000 unfunded liability the incurred for post-retirement medical
care the county also provided.  He said, based on those figures, Gwinnett County converted to a DC plan
in order to cut their costs over time, but added the DB plan was not frozen out completely although it was
closed to new Gwinnett County employees.  Dawson County’s DB plan was costing the county 6.7%
covered payroll, but they were concerned the costs were getting out of hand.  Dawson County told their
employees they would not receive anything if they did not contribute, but if they contributed 4% to their 457
plan they would receive 4%.  He added an analysis of Dawson County’s plan was conducted and if their
employees are presuming the county’s retirement plan will take care of them there will be some problems
in the long-term from a professional standpoint.  He said Dawson County’s plan will not be sufficient and its
employees will need to have something else for decent income replacement.  


Mr.  Vaughn said three or four counties originally had a DB plans but converted to DC plans in the late
1990s when everyone wanted their own accounts because of the 25% margin.  He said they reverted back
to a DB plan because they did not believe they could continue to provide adequate benefits under a DC
plan, but the new DB plans were adopted were downsized from the original plan and required employee
contributions.  He said Cherokee County was one of the counties he had just described.  Next, he spoke
about Jackson County and how they adopted an all past service DB plan for their public safety employees
while keeping their general employees under a DC plan.  He said Rockdale and Douglas Counties had DC
plans for a long time, but 10 or 15 years ago they realized their retirement plans were inadequate to
replace income even if the employees contributed their fair share.  Mr.  Vaughn added the biggest entities
trying to enact DB plans were public safety employees.  He also clarified all of the counties that converted
from a DC plan adopted a modest or non-contributory DB plan or one which was fairly significant and
contributory.  Retiring in place, he reiterated, was also a driving factor for counties to adopt a DB plan.


Commissioner Frady said he understood if an employee worked at the county for 20 years and received
1% credit for each year of service under a DB plan, and if the employee made $40,000 at retirement, the
employee would have an annual $8,000 retirement.  He wanted to know if the retirement was based on
any contribution made by the employee or only on county contributions.  Mr.  Vaughn said Commissioner
Frady was talking about a DB plan, its cost could be divided, and the division would be a policy issue to be
decided by the Commissioners.  







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 10


Commissioner Frady mentioned he had asked for comparative projections showing an employee working
for the county for five years under a DC plan and its projected outcome compared to the same employee
working for the same time under a DB plan and its projected outcome, but those projections had not yet
been supplied to him.  He said those who wanted to participate in the plan certainly should be able to
participate.  Mr.  Vaughn said participation could be required by the Board, and Chairman Smith added
participation should be required.


Chairman Smith noted the State Auditor’s Office had recorded all of the DB plans in the State along with all
of the plans’ percentage funding ratios.  He noticed the ratios varied based on whether or not the plans
were funded, and understood if everyone retired at the same time the DB plan would have to be totally
funded.  He asked Mr.  Vaughn what was a reasonable percentage of funding the county should not go
below, and when should panic ensue because the plan is grossly underfunded.  Mr.  Vaughn said the
answer was relative depending on the State in question, but added if a county has a retirement plan it  is
required to fund the retirement plan.  Unfunded liabilities can come from a number of sources, he
explained before giving examples such as of providing an all past service plan without requiring employees
to pay for it, bad investments, lower than expected turnover, and higher than expected salary increases. 
He said alarms should sound when funding is around 40%.  He gave an example where the county could
sign a contract enacting an all past service DB plan on January, 2008, fund the plan without accepting
employees’ contributions, and thereby create a $22,000,000 or $24,000,000 unfunded liability.  He said on
January 1, 2008, the county would have $22,000,000 in unfunded liabilities, but would have no assets and
a zero percent money ratio.  He said the county would still have the right, by law and practice, to amortize
plan changes at 20 year amortization and amortize new plans at 30 year amortization.  He explained his
scenario was similar to a person taking a second mortgage on a home creating an unfunded liability, but if
payments are made when they are due, the person is in complete compliance.  He added other states
such as Illinois and New Jersey use different funding methodologies, but Georgia is a conservative state
and requires its counties to use one of several actuarial methods.  To his knowledge, he added, no county
had missed its required contribution payment.


Chairman Smith stated, regardless of the type of plan, he had a couple of problems when talking about
retirement plans.  He said his first problem was if it was assumed the county was offering a retirement plan
so an employee who has worked for the county for a long time has a reasonable ability to retire it was clear
the county was failing miserably since the employees would not be able to enjoy anything close to a
reasonable retirement based on their returns.  He said it was a problem to be corrected, but while the DB
plan seemed to address the problem there were risks associated with the DB plan.  He asked for the risks
and how those risks could be managed in order to make them acceptable.  Mr.  Vaughn said there were
three or four risks, the biggest being “Board Risk” when three of five hands go up, give a benefit, and
create an unfunded liability the moment the benefit is approved.  Chairman Smith asked Mr.  Vaughn to
draw from his experience and answer if “Board Risk” was the biggest risk involved.  Mr.  Vaughn said it
was the biggest risk without a doubt.  Mr.  Vaughn said the next risk, and it is the risk always brought up, is
“Market Risk”.  He said DB plans began in 1990 through a diversified-asset management program which
was previously an insurance program.  He said after the diversified-asset management program morphed
from the insurance company program, professional money-managers were hired, and the program







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 11


diversified into small-cap, large-cap and international funds.  He informed the Commissioners since 1990
until the present time, including the down years of 2001 and 2002, the average return for the program has
been around 9.01%, but since actuaries project an average return of 8% annually for evaluation purposes
the average returns are 1% higher on average.  He said the biggest risk comes when an employer has
been with a DB plan for 30 or 40 years and is very asset heavy in the plan when the down years come and
last for about three years, similar to what occurred in 2001 and 2002.  The said the difference between the
projected rate of 8% a year for three years and the actual accumulative rate was 32%.  He said those
figures would immediately cost those who are asset heavy between 1.5% and 2% for a 15 year period, but
since the cost is a fixed cost it could be spread out for 15 years.  He emphasized his scenario was the
biggest risk in terms of investment risks.  He mentioned the years 2001 and 2002 were the worst to occur
since the mid-1940s, and they were even bigger than the 1970s downturn.  


Chairman Smith asked if he understood the actuarial projections were based on 7%.  Mr.  Vaughn
answered the DC replacements took every individual with their existing account and existing contribution
rate, projected it with a 3% annual salary increase, and gave a 7% annual return until retirement.  He said
those figures were used by the RSC to determine the adequacy and inadequacy of the retirement plan
based on income replacement ratios.  The RSC, he explained, projected professionals would make 8% in
a balanced diversified portfolio for each DB plan, so it thought 7% would be gracious to anyone who had a
401(a) or a 457 plan.  He added 7% was a standard return.


Commissioner Frady asked if the retirement plan discussion influenced any other benefits such as medical
benefits.  Mr.  Vaughn said it did not affect any other benefit.  Commissioner Frady asked if there could be
bridging, and was told bridging was possible should the Commissioners decide to do so.  


Commissioner Frady asked Mr.  Vaughn to comment on why General Motors was departing from their
pension plan.  Mr.  Vaughn said there were fundamental differences between public sector pension plans
and private sector pension plans since different laws, rules and regulations were involved.  He said all of
the regulations meant to protect the Pension Guarantee Benefit Corporation (PBGC) were imposed on the
private sector, influenced how they valued, and resulted in a very dramatic and negative impact on the
volatility of their financial statements.  He expanded his comment explaining Verizon Wireless is an
example of a healthy company and it had a very healthy DB plan, but since they were a private company,
the fluctuation they saw on their balance sheets were more than they cared for, so they dropped their DB
plan.  He explained the airline and steel industries are facing bankruptcy and so they are winding up their
pension plans, and they are different from Verizon Wireless or General Motors.  He informed the
Commissioners the Wall Street Journal compared regular employee pension plans to executive deferment
plans, and reported executive deferment plans were the fastest growing of the two plans along with the
underfunding of those plans.  What he found interesting was the report did not receive much media
attention even though it said regular employee plans were the healthiest and had little or no underfunding. 
He maintained DB plans are still a liability for the private sector, and since their liability is coupled with
numerous regulations in the pension plan, the private sector companies are compelled to leave the DB
plan.  Commissioner Frady pointed out private sector corporations would have the ability to write off their
pension plan on their taxes, but Chairman Smith said manipulating tax laws got the corporations into







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 12


trouble.  He explained corporations were able to write their pension plans off their taxes but did not have to
fund those pension plans resulting in generous benefits with huge unfunded liabilities and two huge
problems.  The first problem evolved, he continued, when the Pension Act was established and the IRS
said corporate liabilities could not be deducted from taxes until the corporations funded their retirement
plans.  He said the second problem exacerbated the first problem when corporations, which previously did
not have to record their unfunded liabilities on their financial statements, were required to record their
unfunded liabilities.  He stated the problem could not be repeated since funding rules and regulations
require benefits to be funded if promised.  Commissioner Frady said SunTrust Bank had announced
several months ago they were stopping their pension plan but would retain their 401(k) before he asked if
SunTrust had a good plan.  Mr.  Vaughn reminded Commissioner Frady there was a basic divergence
between the private sector and the public sector and the latest figures showed 20% of private sector
employers are keeping DB plans compared to 90-95% public sector employers who maintain a DB plan.


Chairman Smith said the CREF study implied a hybrid plan was the “coming thing” and many entities are
either converting to or setting up hybrid plans, but he noticed the GEBCorp presentation did not appear to
recommend them.  He wondered why?  Mr.  Vaughn explained if the goal was to meet the TIRR then a
pure DB plan would be the most efficient retirement plan.  He informed the Commissioners there were six
to eight counties with hybrid plans meaning they have a DB plan with a matching 401(a).  He conceded
hybrid plans have some value but reiterated they lose their efficiency to meet the TIRR.  He explained
counties with hybrid plans had adopted their plans out of fear of jumping into a DB plan with a 2% or 2.5%
multiplier, and they were hesitant to place all of their eggs into one retirement package.  He said the
answer for their fear was to adopt a base benefit and then add a matching 401(a) to encourage employees
to contribute.  He encouraged counties with hybrid plans to make the DB base-plan non-contributory with
the total cost paid by the county, just as Fayette County does with its current plan.  He mentioned there are
several reasons counties were favoring hybrid plans.  The first reason, he said, was if the county did offer a
DB plan with a 1% multiplier, and if an employee contributed nothing to the retirement plan, the employee
could retire after 30 years service with 30% TIRR which would be bolstered by 40% Social Security.  The
second reason hybrid plans were finding favor, he added, was they offered a high enough retirement
incentive to keep employees from retiring in place.  A third reason hybrid plans found favor is they are cost
sharing plans so if the employee wanted a better retirement they would have to pay for it, he said before
concluding the fourth reason hybrids were favored is they allow for more bridging.  He said there were
many options a county could utilize with a hybrid plan, but maintained hybrid plans were not the most
effective way to achieve TIRR.


Chairman Smith asked if it was possible for the county to make enough changes to the DC plan to get it
close to what was provided in a DB plan.  Mr.  Vaughn said it was possible to do, but it would require the
investment return to look more like a DB plan, and would tell employees they could not longer manage
their money.  He said the county could provide a full benefit guaranteeing an employee who did not attain
to a base-level after 20 years would be raised by the county to the base-level.  He said a provision could
be installed into the retirement plan guaranteeing if an employee remained with the county for ten years,
the county would ensure they would have a 7% return, but if the employee left the before ten years service
the employee would have no guarantee.  He maintained a DC plan could be modified to look like a DB plan







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 13


but small, incremental steps would have to be taken due in part to the current culture.  He explained if the
county took away the employees’ investments the employees would say they have a right to their
investments making changes to a DC plan very slow.  He said Hall County is seriously looking at boosting
their contributions and limiting investments to roughly five asset allocations.  He said Fayette County’s total
contribution for a retirement plan is 12%, but 16% would have to be contributed in order to reach the TIRR
so the Commissioners would have to decide if it is reasonable to for the county and the employees to pay
16% to meet the TIRR when the same goal could be reached for 12%.  


Chairman Smith thanked Mr.  Vaughn for his presentation for his efforts with the RSC, noting the
tremendous amount of work, information, and benefit he brought to the RSC.  He thought the
Commissioners would not have not progressed as quickly as they did without his input and thanked
GEBCorp for their work.  He said GEBCorp’s work was a significant contribution to the county, and if the
county had to pay for the information, the cost would have been substantial.  On behalf of the county, he
thanked Mr.  Vaughn and GEBCorp for their contribution.


Chairman Smith told the Commissioners the RSC and GEBCorp had answered the question presented to
them by saying a DB plan was feasible and preferable since it allows employees to retire with full benefits
and has a lower contribution rate than the current retirement plan.  He said the Commissioners needed to
decide if they were interested in taking the next step in the DB process by determining what retirement
plan would be best for the county and determining what options would flesh out the plan.  Commissioner
Frady replied he did not mind looking at the plan and he did not favor one retirement plan over the other. 
He said he could not support a plan which appears to lead to brick wall down the road, as seemed to be
the case with DB plans, but maintained he would look at the DB plan.  He also said he could not support a
plan where employees would not contribute.  Chairman Smith replied the RSC had recommended
employee participation, and so he was in agreement with Commissioner Frady.    He thought employee
contribution was reasonable because most employees already are participating.  He said the
Commissioners would have to determine what the retirement plan looked like, but if the plan included
employee contributions he would have no problem with it.  


Commissioner Frady wanted to know how long the county had allowed contributions to the 401(a) and 457
DC plan.  Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel said the county began matching contributions to the
457 DC plan in either 1994 or 1995, and the 401(a) existed in the 1970s.  Executive Assistant Carol
Chandler said the 401(a) plan was improved about ten years ago.  Commissioner Frady preferred to
enhance the existing program, but conceded he did not know how many employees would be willing to pay
money into the retirement plan.


Mr.  Krakeel reminded the Commissioners if they were interested in a future service only DB plan then
employees’ participation would not be optional and would be similar to the employees’ health care
insurance where employees’ contributions are established.  He said if the Commissioners were interested
in an all past service DB plan, the employees would have the liberty to elect whether or not they wanted
past service since no one could force an employee use their 401(a) or 457 DC plan to purchase prior years
of service.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 14


Chairman Smith said there was a process the Commissioners would need to go through and the next step
would be isolating policies, such as whether or not an employee should be given the ability to purchase
past history or if the plan should be participatory, before a plan could be designed.  He said once a plan is
designed, its cost and practice would be known.  He asked Mr.  Vaughn if there was a decision tree in
place.  Mr.  Vaughn said there was a hierarchy to the decision process and the first question to answer is if
there is interest in a DB plan.  He said if there is interest, the next question should be if the plan is to be a
future only DB plan or an all past service DB plan.  He said if the plan would be a future service only DB
plan the next decision would be who pays for the plan and if or how the cost is shared by the employer and
the employees.  He said the precise decision would not have to be made during the decision process since
flexibility could be built into the decisions.  


Commissioner Frady asked if Mr.  Vaughn had mentioned the employees should contribute 75%
mentioning the employees were already paying 8% and getting 16% in return.  Mr.  Vaughn reiterated
payment for an all past service DB plan was different because there was actuarial costs associated with
everybody’s individual past service, and one question to answer was how to fund the liability.  He
explained if the county funded the liability with no employee contribution the county could incur
$22,000,000 to $24,000,000 in debt, but stressed the county could allow the employees to pay for their
past service credit.  


Commissioner Frady asked if it was possible for the Commissioners to tell employees who are not
contributing to current plan they have to contribute to the DB plan.  Chairman Smith said they could make
employees contributions mandatory if they wanted.  Commissioner Frady retorted mandatory participation
to a retirement plan would lead to a bigger turnover and he did not want to make people do what they did
not want to do, but maintained he thought employee participation was good.


Chairman Smith asked if there was any interest in a DB plan and if Mr.  Vaughn should be asked to put
together a hierarchy tree to help the Commissioners determine what the DB plan would look like. 
Commissioner Maxwell said he did not know how anyone could vote against studying something and
thought the Commissioners had interest in the plan.  Commissioner Frady maintained he did not mind
studying the plan while emphasizing he would not force anyone to join a retirement plan.  Commissioner
Horgan suggested an employee survey should take place to gauge interests and desires.  Commissioner
Frady agreed since he would not tell 150 to 200 employees to join a retirement plan and terminate them if
they do not join.  Mr.  Krakeel reminded the Commissioners if they wanted employees contributions to be
pretax the DB plan would have to be mandatory, but if employees could elect to participate their
contributions would be post-tax.  Commissioner Maxwell suggested Commissioner Frady’s concerns could
be solved since employees who would leave due to mandatory requirement contributions were the same
employees who are not contributing to the current plan.  He said he would be surprised if there was not
huge employee participation.  


Mr.  Krakeel said the Board needed to be careful since two fundamental issues were in play.  The first
issue, he explained, was if the county required total participation as a policy issue the pretax equation
would exist.  The second issue was if the county made participation on a future service only plan electable







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 15


the contributions made would be post-tax contributions and would result in a substantial difference in terms
of dollars allocated to the plan.  Chairman Smith said the Board was not at that point, but rather needed to
determine if they were interested in a DB plan so Mr.  Vaughn could comprise a list of policy issues for
discussion and clarification.  Commissioner Frady asked if Mr.  Krakeel said contributions under a
mandatory DB plan were tax deferrable, and Mr.  Krakeel replied he did not say contributions were tax
deferrable.  Mr.  Vaughn said if the Commissioners enacted electable employees’ contributions to a 401(a)
those contributions would be taxable since the contributions would be placed in the 457 plan.  


Commissioner Maxwell said one issue was very clear which was if the DB plan created an unfunded
liability there was no need to consider it.  He wanted the DB plan to have employees contributions tied to it,
said a decision on what multiplier they wanted would have to be made, and mentioned discussion should
take place to decide if a separate category should exist for public safety employees.  Commissioner Pfeifer
said the county already has no unfunded liability and already requires employee contributions.  He asked
when, if a DB plan replaces a DC plan, would the money’s ownership transfer from the employees to the
plan.  Mr.  Vaughn said under the current plan the money employees contribute to the 457 plan was the
employees money the moment they make the contribution.  He said the money’s ownership would switch
based on the policy parameters in regard to vesting.  He said under the typical ACCG plan, and employee
who worked five years would be 100% vested, but if the employee worked one day less than five years the
employee would have no vesting.  He said some jurisdictions stagger their vesting so an employee who
works two years has 25% vesting, has 50% vesting after three years, 75% vesting after four years and
completely vested after five years.  He said he knew of a plan with a seven-year vesting period and said it
was possible since government plans were not subject to Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(ERISA).  Chairman Smith informed the Commissioners vesting was basically designed for employee
retainage, and explained if an employer is trying to stop employees from leaving, vesting is the proverbial
carrot enticing them to stay with the employer.  He explained, based on statistics, if employees stay with an
employer for five years or more, the turnover rate for those employees is not very rapid.


Commissioner Horgan expressed interest in a DB plan but added an employee survey should take place. 
Commissioner Frady agreed with Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith asked all the Commissioners if
that is what they wanted, and they all acknowledged it was.  Chairman Smith asked Mr.  Vaughn to
compile the information needed so the Commissioners could address some specific policy issues in
relation to a DB plan.  Mr.  Vaughn said he would be glad to compile the information.  Chairman Smith
thanked Mr.  Vaughn and said Mr.  Krakeel would be glad to assist.  Mr.  Vaughn said he would run a
couple of drafts by Mr.  Krakeel to ensure the policy issues were addressed.  Chairman Smith told Mr. 
Vaughn he was welcome to stay for the remainder of the Workshop Meeting, but was also free to leave if
he wanted.  Mr.  Vaughn thanked the Commissioners and left the meeting.


The consensus of the Board was to have Mr.  Steve Vaughn compile specific policy issues for
consideration and for an employee survey to take place.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 16


B.          Consideration of the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance
regarding Article III.  Definitions (Cabana, Covered Pool or Covered Deck, detached; and
Swimming Pool Screened Enclosure); Article V.  General Provisions, Sections 5-10. 
Accessory uses and structures; and Section 5-11.  Guest Houses as presented by the
Planning and Zoning Department.  The Planning Commission instructed staff to forward the
proposed amendments to the Board of Commissioners Workshop schedules for October 3,
2007.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


Mr. Dennis Dutton said he would like to address each of the proposed amendments beginning with Article
5-10, found on page two and described it as a housekeeping change only.  He stated Article 5-10.B.4
regarding pumps and well houses was removed (resulting in revisions and amendments to the numbering
system) and was added to Article 5-10.B.2.  He said Article 5-10.B.5 dealt with private swimming pools but
now had three more items added to it: pool deck, pool equipment, and screen enclosure.  He explained
four more accessory uses and structures were added to Article 5, staring in sequence from Article 5-10.B.9
to Article 5.10.B.12 and included in respective order: Cabanas, Storage Buildings, Detached Carports, and
Detached Covered Patios and Decks.  He explained cabanas, storage buildings, and detached carports
already had definitions in the ordinance, but had not previously been listed.  He mentioned, in order to
simplify the ordinance, those three items were given their own special listings.  He implied detached-
covered patios and decks were not previously defined in the ordinance and were only recently added.


Commissioner Frady said the proposals were a start.  He said the original ordinance began with two 900
square feet building which could not be attached, and he was concerned about it.  He praised the Planning
Commission’s work and said he was in favor of all the proposals save one which he would address later.  


Mr.  Dutton said Article 5-10.C had some redundancy regarding the square footage of removed detached
garages, and Article 5-10.D.2 clarified the definition of a front yard especially in relation to accessory
structures for single-family and double-frontage lots.  He said the ordinance already addressed detached
garages by requiring garages could be no further than 35 feet from the principal structure and needed to
be attached by a breezeway.  He said the Planning Commission proposed adding raised decks and
pergolas to the ordinance as an option to the breezeway and those proposals would also work to maintain
the appearance of connectivity between the principal structure and the detached garage.  He stressed only
detached garages were being discussed at this point, since only detached garages were allowed to be
built in the front yard while all other detached structures had to be built to the side or rear of the principal
structure.  He said the proposed amendments would also add architectural standards to comply with the
principal structure.  


Commissioner Frady preferred to have the distance between the principal structure and the garage to be
no more than 35 feet, but also preferred the breezeway to be optional since it added nothing to the
detached garage or the principal structure.  Chairman Smith wanted to know why a breezeway was
required.  Mr.  Pete Frisina said the purpose of a breezeway was to enable a special allowance for having
a detached garage in the front yard, and stated the front yard is established by the front building line to the
street.  Chairman Smith asked if a detached garage was built to the side of the principal structure would it







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 17


require a breezeway.  Mr.  Frisina said no breezeway was required if the detached garage was built to the
side or rear of the principal structure.  Commissioner Frady, referring to page three, wanted to know what
was meant about half of the garage being built in front of the building line and half build to the side of it. 
Mr.  Frisina said the Planning Commission wanted some limitation on how far the garage could be in front
of the principal structure, and since they did not want a detached garage built directly in front of the primary
structure, a provision ensured the detached garage could only go so far in front of the principal structure. 
Commissioner Frady asked if there was a difference between a building line and a house line.  Mr.  Frisina
answered the front line of the primary structure established the front yard and maintained if a detached
garage was built in front of the primary structure, it would nee to be attached by a breezeway to give the
appearance of connectivity.  


Commissioner Horgan asked if there was a regulation on how far in front of the house the detached garage
could be built.  Mr.  Frisina said no more than 50% of the garage could be built in the front yard of the
principal structure.  Commissioner Horgan asked if the setbacks still had to be maintained when the
garage was built.  Mr.  Frisina said the setbacks would still need to be maintained, but said the bigger
question was “why the attachment?”  He said the attachment would go in the front yard to make the garage
appear as part of the principal structure.  He mentioned when the ordinance was first adopted, the
breezeway was the best available option to have an open-aired structure and maintain the appearance of
connectivity between the principal structure and the detached garage.  Chairman Smith asked if the
ordinance applied if the principal structure had a double front yard.  Mr.  Frisina said as long as the
detached garage was going to be built in the front of either yard it would have to be attached by a
breezeway.  Chairman Smith asked why an attachment should be built if the detached garage was built on
the front yard not directly in front of the principal structure.  Mr.  Frisina said the secondary front yard could
be located next to someone else’s front yard so the ordinance required an attachment in order to keep the
detached garage in range of the principal structure.  He said the Planning Commission had attempted to
address this issue by defining primary and secondary front yards, and the full effect of the ordinance would
apply to primary front yards since secondary front yards could actually be at the side of the primary
structure depending on the orientation of the primary structure and its front door.  The Planning
Commission, he added, tried to ensure the ordinance was workable for those types of situations.  Mr. 
Dutton defined the primary front yard as the yard with a front door entrance into the primary structure, and
said the Planning Commission feared someone would block their front door with a detached garage which
would not be appealing.  He said the secondary front yard would be a street-side yard without a front door
or the appearance of an entry into the principal structure.  He concluded the 50% regulation applied only to
the primary front yard and the detached building could not be more than 50% in front of the primary
structure.  Chairman Smith asked again why a detached garage built on the secondary front yard required
a breezeway.  Mr.  Dutton said a breezeway was required since the secondary front-yard was still street-
side.


Chairman Smith asked why the breezeway, pergola or raised deck only had to appear to be attached.  Mr.
Frisina said one problem the Planning Commission had was involving the building department since the
building department was maintaining more regulations and engineering requirements were needed if
actually connectivity was required.  He explained the proposed amendment would allow the breezeway to







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 18


be freestanding as long as the separation is six inches or less which would give the appearance of
connectivity.  Chairman Smith wanted to play devil’s advocate for a while, and gave a scenario where he
built a raised deck between his principal structure and the detached garage and planted boxwood
shrubbery in front of the raised deck.  He said the boxwood shrubbery grew together and obscured the
view of the raised deck from the street.  Based on the scenario, he asked why he would need a raised
deck at all.  Mr.  Frisina said the raised deck was needed since there was no guarantee shrubbery would
be planted.  Ms.  Robyn Wilson said the question to answer was if someone could be permitted to put a
swimming pool in their front yard since a swimming pool is also an accessory.  She said a distinction was
being made between a detached garage and a regular accessory structure such as a tennis court or a
swimming pool, and the ordinance would give some semblance of connectivity to the primary structure. 
Chairman Smith said he could give a semblance of connectivity with landscaping.  Mr.  Frisina said
landscaping may or may not last but structures have greater longevity.  Ms.  Wilson asked the Chairman if
he preferred to have swimming pool with only landscaping around it.  Chairman Smith said there were
regulations in place regulating swimming pools, so he was failing to make the same connection Ms. 
Wilson was making between a detached garage and a swimming pool.  Ms.  Wilson explained both pools
and detached garages are considered accessories and have the same requirements except detached
garages could be built in front yards.  Mr.  Frisina said the Planning Commission was hanging onto the
concept of providing a connection, but with raised decks and pergolas given as options to the breezeway,
the appearance of connectivity is easier than the appearance provided by a breezeway.  He also reminded
the Commissioners the options were only recommendations by the Planning Commission and would only
be official if the Board chose to adopt them.  He said the Board would have to give direction to the
Planning Commission on how to proceed.  Commissioner Frady said he wanted connectivity to be optional
and property owners should be able to do what they want.


Chairman Smith noted a new insertion to the ordinance stating a detached garage cannot exceed over
50% of the principal structure’s width that faces the street.  Mr.  Dutton said if the width of the primary
structure is only 50 feet, the structure would not be able to be larger than 30 feet.  Chairman Smith
understood the detached garage could be offset in front of the principal structure but could not be built
directly in front of it.  Commissioner Horgan asked about the regulation stating no more than 50% of the
footprint of the detached garage may be located beyond the front building line of the principal structure. 
Mr.  Frisina explained a building line is drawn from the front of the house across the entire front yard and
ends at the street.  He said, based on how the building line is drawn, the detached garage could not be
built in front of the building line.  Commissioner Horgan asked if only 50% of the detached garage could be
built in front of the building line as long as it was detached.  Mr.  Dutton said Commissioner Horgan was
correct but added the detached garage had to have some type of attachment between it and the principal
structure.  Chairman Smith quipped the detached garage had to only appear to be attached even though
the walkway could not be seen since it was covered by shrubbery.  Ms.  Wilson agreed shrubbery would
be sufficient until it died.  Mr.  Frisina informed the Commissioners connectivity was a major controversy
with the Planning Commission since some did not want connectivity and others were complying with the
ordinance for the past 27 years.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 19


Commissioner Horgan asked at what point a detached garage would not require an attachment if it was
built at the side of the primary structure.  No attachment was required, Mr.  Frisina said, if the detached
garage was behind the front building line.  Commissioner Horgan asked for clarity if they said no
attachment was required if the front of the detached garage was built behind the primary structure.  Ms. 
Wilson said the back building line was the front yard.  Commissioner Horgan asked again if he built his
detached garage behind the building line if it would need an attachment.  Ms.  Wilson said if the detached
garage was built behind the building line it would not require an attachment.  Commissioner Horgan said
the result would be people would build their detached garages one foot behind the building line to avoid
being any connector.  


Chairman Smith said there was a proposal stating the design of the detached garage shall match with the
general architectural style inherent in the existing principal structure, including, but not limited to roofline
pitch, roof facade, facade, residential windows, and residential doors.  He questioned the word “facade”
and wanted to know how it was defined.  He wanted to know if the principal structure was made of brick
would the detached garage also need to be made of brick.  Mr.  Frisina said that was the Planning
Commission’s intent.  Chairman Smith asked if it was a change from what was previously on the
ordinance.  Mr.  Frisina said it was.  Chairman Smith asked if there was a way to get away from making the
detached garage an exact match.  Mr.  Dutton said the detached garage would have to be an exact match. 
Commissioner Horgan asked if the requirement applied if the detached garage was built behind the
building line and did not need any connector.  Mr.  Frisina said even though the detached garage may not
need a connector, it would still need to match the facade of the principal structure.  


Chairman Smith said he wanted to discuss Article 5-10.E and compare sub-points (a) and (b).  He admitted
his uncertainty if he was reading points (a) and (b) correctly but he did not like what he was reading.  He
understood point (a) to mean a person could have two accessory structures not to exceed 900 square feet,
totaling a potential maximum of 1,800 square feet.  He juxtaposed point (a) to point (b) which he
understood to mean a person could have one accessory structure with 900 square feet maximum, and
another structure not to exceed 700 square feet unless it is combined with a guesthouse, and if there is a
combination of guesthouse-accessory structure it could not exceed 1,200 square feet, meaning sub-point
(b) allows 2,100 square feet of accessory structures, and asked if his understanding was correct.  Mr. 
Frisina said the ordinance allowed for that understanding.  Chairman Smith wanted to know why he would
be limited to 1,800 square feet of accessory structures, but if he added a guesthouse he would be allowed
2,100 square feet maximum.  Mr.  Frisina said a provision was made to allow for guesthouses since only
detached garages and cabanas were the only two structures permitted to be added to guesthouses. 
Commissioner Frady said he thought the conversation was about 1,800 square feet.  Mr.  Frisina told
Commissioner Frady he was speaking about a third option, and informed the Commissioners there were
now three options in place where previously there were only two options   He told the Commissioners the
previous ordinance said a person could have two 900 square feet accessory buildings generally
considered utility buildings.  Mr.  Frisina said the second option was for a person to have one utility building
plus a guesthouse with additional square footage allowed if the guesthouse was attached to a cabana or
detached garage.  Commissioner Frady wanted to know if there was consideration to remove the second
option.  Mr.  Frisina said removal of the second option was not under consideration and recommended to







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 20


keep it.  Mr.  Dutton said if the second option were removed, many people would be brought into a status
of non-conformity.  Mr.  Frisina explained the third option was a person could have one accessory structure
larger than 900 square feet.  Chairman Smith asked if a person taking the third option was limited to one
building because they would cross the threshold of 900 square feet.  Mr.  Frisina said the person was
limited to only one accessory building if they crossed the 1,200 square feet threshold.  He explained once
a person crossed the 1,200 square feet threshold, the person would be permitted to have one building no
larger than 1,800 square feet assuming 700 square feet of accessory structure could be allowed for a
heated guesthouse.  He mentioned a caveat to the ordinance required no accessory structure could be
constructed if it is larger than the principal structure.  


Chairman Smith wanted to discuss temporary access storage found in Article 5-10.G.  He asked if there
should be some limit to the size of the pods, or there was a practical limit to them.  Mr.  Frisina said pods
range from metal storage containers to canvas-covered structures placed on driveways, but since they are
temporary structures, they are not dealt with in depth.  He said two pods are permitted since houses in
Fayette County are growing bigger and bigger and may not be sufficient to hold furniture or other large
items if a family was working in their basement or trying to rehabilitate their house.  


Chairman Smith next wanted to discuss cabanas as addressed by Article 5-10.K and wanted to know why
the rear wall must be fully enclosed.  Mr.  Frisina said the ordinance for cabanas was written in the past
and required cabanas to have at least one solid wall, two other walls to be 50% enclosed, and the front of
the cabana (supposing the rear wall was solid) could be open.  He said the Planning Commission was only
trying to explain the ordinance.  Chairman Smith pictured a house on a lot facing the street and a lake to
the right of the house.  He said if a person wanted to place a cabana between the house and the lake, the
back wall of the cabana would be facing the house and would also block the view to the lake.  Mr.  Frisina
said there were options available for covered decks and patios so the view would not be obscured.  He
conceded cabanas are in high demand as people want more living areas, and cabanas are basically a
room that can include kitchens, fireplaces, and dining room sets.  Chairman Smith asked if it was
acceptable to have one wall be solid without specifying the rear wall.  Mr.  Frisina reiterated the cabana’s
definitions, as found in the ordinance, was given when the ordinance was first written and the Planning
Commission had not planned to drastically change it, but he would not mind working on the definition since
covered patios and decks almost met the same criteria.  Chairman Smith agreed and said he wanted the
definition of a cabana to be a little restrictive as possible.  Mr.  Frisina mentioned many people want solid
walls in their cabanas since they have changing rooms, a feature not found in covered decks and patios,
and people store pool equipment in the cabana.  He was unsure why the word “lake” was in the ordinance
since no building would be permitted to be built next to a water facility in the first place.  Mr.  Frisina said
the Planning Commission would work on the old ordinance in order to loosen the definition of a cabana so
it will not be so restrictive.  He said when the ordinance was first enacted, the logic was half the structure
had to be enclosed, and they wanted to maintain their understanding with a cabana while knowing there
had to be some open areas.  Commissioner Horgan asked if the difference for the cabana was based on
the type of construction required.  Mr.  Frisina said the ordinance was a way to back away from the half-
open half-enclosed logic.  Commissioner Frady believed cabanas should be governed much like garages
since garages are not built open to the street.  Chairman Smith added outdoor structures had changed in







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 21


the past four to five years.  He said he had recently been to a house with a cabana and pool area rivaling
the size of average houses, and the cabana’s solid wall was not the rear wall.  Mr.  Frisina agreed.  


Chairman Smith asked if Mr.  Frisina needed anything else from the Board.  Mr.  Frisina said he would like
to go back and “wordsmith” the ordinance and asked if he should bring it back to the next Workshop
Meeting for the Commissioners’ evaluation.  Commissioner Maxwell replied it would be helpful if the issues
were addressed in smaller bites, explaining the conversation began with a discussion of 900 square feet
buildings and morphed into an “elephant”.  He preferred to deal with one topic at a time instead of
addressing all of the issues all at one time by jumping from one topic to the other.  Commissioner Frady
said he was comfortable with the proposed changes to the ordinance since he had been working on them
for months.  Mr.  Frisina explained the current ordinance allowed for over 900 square feet but once a
person exceeded the threshold, the person was limited to only one accessory structure as long as the
accessory building in not larger than the principal structure.  Chairman Smith said they were not
addressing Commissioner Maxwell’s point and restated it was about the discussion starting off with 900
square feet accessory structures and ballooning into changing an entire section of the ordinance. 


Mr.  Frisina told the Commissioners while the proposed changes were being drafted, people were walking
in the door who wanted to have a covered deck or patio only to be told they were not allowed, and that was
one reason the Planning Commission was trying to make allowances.  Commissioner Frady replied there
was very little prohibited in the ordinance.  Mr.  Frisina reiterated the great majority of work the Planning
Commission did was an attempt to clarify the current ordinance.  He said there were a couple of new items
to be added, but they could be addressed at a separate workshop meeting.  He acknowledged there were
many changes already being proposed, and he did not expect the Commissioners would take one look at
the information and approve it as soon as they saw it.  He recapped the reason he brought the proposed
amendments to their attention was so they could absorb it, and address it at the next workshop meeting.


Commissioner Maxwell asked if the changes acquired all zoning classifications.  Mr.  Frisina said they did. 
Commissioner Maxwell asked if A-R was included.  Mr.  Frisina said A-R zoning was included.  Mr.  Frisina
said it was included.  Commissioner Maxwell said a bigger concern of his regarded different rules for lots
bigger than five acres.  Fr.  Frisina replied there were already different rules for bigger lots since there are
five-acre rules and ten-acre rules.  He explained a five-acre rule includes provisions for a certain sized
agricultural building since it would be linked to agriculture.  He mentioned if a house is in a subdivision but
zoned A-R it would not really be agricultural and residential restrictions would apply to it, but if the house
was located on large acreage and had hay and cows it would have less limitations imposed on it. 
Commissioner Maxwell said his concern was not about barns since fewer barns will be built as land prices
continue to rise.  His concern was to allow people to have some flexibility to build something nice on their
expensive piece of property instead of limiting them to build something with walls.  He referred to home
magazines picturing beautiful homes with accessory buildings located in north Atlanta, and said he was
concerned Fayette County was “cutting off their nose to spite their face” by requiring cabanas to have solid
walls when cabanas should have as many open walls as they have sides.  Next, he reiterated the topics
should be addressed one at a time- beginning with 900 square feet accessory structures.  Mr.  Frisina
asked if Commissioner Maxwell was saying 900 square feet buildings are not as appropriate on five-acre







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 22


property as they are on one-acre pieces of property.  Commissioner Maxwell said it was appropriate for
small lots to have smaller accessory structures, and the accessory structures should not be built in the
front yard, but he was trying to think of the bigger picture.  He explained it made no sense to build a garage
directly in front of a house, but he understood why people would want to offset their garage in their front
yard and build a three or four-car garage there because they like the lay of the land.  He said writing an
ordinance requiring the garage to be attached could “muck up” the entire design.  Chairman Smith clarified
it only applied if the detached garage was in the front yard.  Commissioner Maxwell agreed, but said he
was not talking about building literally in front of a house, but rather in the front sight-line.


Commissioner Horgan asked if the accessory structure could be larger than a 2,000 square feet principal
structure as long as it was built to the side of the principal structure.  Mr.  Frisina answered even if the
primary and accessory structures were located on a five-acre property but used for residential purposes
only, all residential restrictions would apply.  Commissioner Horgan said he understood because a person
with a five-acre property, if not hindered by the regulations, could build a house on the property resulting in
two houses on one parcel of land.  Commissioner Frady agreed with Commissioner Horgan before adding
he did not mind if a cabana had a solid wall and he was satisfied with the proposed amendments to the
ordinance.


Chairman Smith suggested the proposed amendments could be addressed at the next Workshop Meeting
and the Planning Commission should make the changes as discussed.  Commissioner Frady said he was
happy with the proposed amendments, but he would go along with the other Commissioners. 
Commissioner Horgan said he was okay with the proposed amendments as long as they were clarified. 
Chairman Smith thought the cabana definition needed work.  Commissioner Pfeifer said the issue
concerning walls in cabanas was the only change needed.  Commissioner Frady said some wall was
needed in a cabana, but he did not want to tell people where they could build something even though at
times it had to be done.  Commissioner Pfeifer continued saying the Planning Commission had “beaten
them to death” and it was difficult to define everything but what was proposed was a good start. 
Commissioner Frady agreed.


Chairman Smith directed Mr.  Frisina to make the discussed changes and come back to the next Workshop
Meeting.  He hoped the changes would be the final draft.  Mr.  Frisina said since the Planning Commission
had worked on the proposed amendments for so long, they may as well get them right.


Recess:


Chairman Smith said the meeting had taken a considerable amount of time before motioning for a recess. 
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  Chairman Smith called for a vote on the motion.  


The motion to recess for a short break passed with a unanimous vote. 







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 23


D. Further discussion of RFP Bid 612 to Diversified Adjustment Service for Bad Debt
Collection Service (EMS Services).  This item was tabled at the September 27, 2007, Regular
Meeting.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


Commissioner Maxwell preferred to speak about this item since he was the one who asked for it to be
tabled at the last regular meeting, and since he had reviewed the request.  He told the Commissioners he
was ready to vote for the RFP as presented, but had some observations to make.  He reminded the Board 
when Fayette County first started considering the RFP, it was working under a different legal system since
Bill McNally was the county attorney but now the county had decided to use an in-house attorney and he
was not sure if a letter could be sent under the in-house attorney’s name in order to “raise the stakes”
before a collection agency became involved.  He asked if a process could be used to ensure outstanding
bills did not go immediately to a collection agency.  Mr.  Krakeel said an external billing agency would
handle the collection process, and the collection process consists of three letters.  He said there was no
reason one of the letters, likely the last letter, could not reflect the direction Commissioner Maxwell was
seeking.  Commissioner Maxwell said his concern had nothing to do with the RFP, but if that concern could
be alleviated it should be.  Mr.  Krakeel said the Commissioner’s concern could be handled externally with
the existing contract since the county has the latitude to define was is in the letters mailed as part of the
billing process.  He added the county could also mandate the language used by the collection agency in
any correspondence they have on behalf of the county.


Commissioner Maxwell said he was concerned about the heavy amount of collections the county is already
involved in, especially since the average outstanding bill ranges from about $400 to $600.  He said he did
not expect to have many cases litigated based on such a small amount, but wanted to know if the litigator
would be empowered to litigate on behalf of the Board, and if so, what process would the Board use to
authorize someone to file a lawsuit on a collection case.  He felt uncomfortable giving blanket authority to
sue on the Board’s behalf and wanted the litigator to come before the Commissioners for approval to file a
suit.  Mr.  Krakeel informed the Commissioners the county had not filed a lawsuit in the past on this issue. 
Commissioner Maxwell reiterated he did not expect a lawsuit, but he did not want to learn of the lawsuit
just as soon as he received a subpoena to testify in court.  


Chief McCullough informed the Commissioners an extensive billing policy was already in place, but after
the RFP was approved with a collection agency, language would be included into the contract that
addresses collections.  He said after the language was added the additions or changes would be brought
back before the Board.  Mr.  Krakeel added once the Board approved the RFP and selected a vendor, the
county would do a contractual arrangement with the vendor where many of the issues, including terms of
litigation, could be clarified in the contractual language.  


Commissioner Maxwell motioned to approve Diversified Adjustment Service for a one-year period and was
seconded by Commissioner Pfeifer.  Chairman Smith asked Mr.  Comer if the agenda item needed a
resolution or a motion, and Mr.  Comer said it could be passed by motion.  Chairman Smith said he had a
motion and a second to award the bid for collection of services to Diversified Adjustment Services with the







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 24


contract to come back before the Board.  He heard no further discussion and called for a vote on the
motion.


The motion to award the bid for collection of services to Diversified Adjustment Services with the
contract to come back before the Board passed with a unanimous vote.


New Business:


F. Discussion of possible sale of the old Fire Station 6 in Brooks or exploration of a
public/private partnership for the establishment of an indoor youth baseball training facility
in that location.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.


Mr.  Krakeel introduced Mr.  Alfred Dingler to the Commissioners, and said Mr.  Dingler had presented the
county with a very comprehensive document about the old fire station in Brooks.  He informed the
Commissioners of Mr.  Dingler’s long history of community involvement in athletics ,was one of the
principal fund-raisers for the Field of Hope, and has a dream of bringing the Little League World Series to
Fayette County.  He told the Commissioners part of fulfilling the dream involved establishing a training
facility for youth which would operate during the off-season with a possibility of operating during the regular
season, and the ideal location for his dream is in Brooks, particularly the old fire station.  Mr.  Krakeel
informed the Commissioners there are at least two approaches the Board could use if they had any
interest in Mr.  Dingler’s proposal: first, sell the property outright, but the process would include a sealed
bid process since it would be the disposition of an asset.  He said the second option would be to establish
a public-private partnership, similar to a lease program, between the county and Mr.  Dingler.  He asked
Mr.  Dingler if he had encapsulated the proposal properly and allowed Mr.  Dingler to join in the discussion. 


Mr.  Dingler said Mr.  Krakeel had done a good job presenting the proposal, but wanted to add he had
recently received a letter from a challenger program in Peachtree City which mentioned a third option to
convert the old fire station into a Little League museum.  He said the letter had the support of Linda North
and Nick Harris.


Mr.  Krakeel said there had been other interest expressed about an indoor training facility in Fayette
County.  He explained the Recreation Commission had received a similar request inquiring about the
Kiwanis facility on Redwine Road.  


Chairman Smith asked how the old fire station is currently used.  Mr.  Krakeel said the old fire station is
used as the county’s storage facility for all county records.  He explained a mezzanine had been built in the
facility where the fire apparatuses used to be stationed, and records are stored above and below it.  In
addition to storage of county records, he explained the facility is also used to store equipment for field
maintenance.  Commissioner Horgan asked what was the square footage of the old fire station.  Mr. 
Krakeel said it was about 3,000 square feet, and described it as a three bay structure with an office, living
quarters, and a bedroom.  Chairman Smith asked how much of the building was in use.  Mr.  Krakeel
estimated the facility was at 50-75% capacity.  Chairman Smith asked if there an alternative site for records







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 25


storage.  Mr.  Krakeel said there was no site available.  Commissioner Maxwell wanted to know what the
contingency plan was if Mr.  Dingler’s proposal was accepted.  Mr.  Krakeel said the contingency issue
would have to be addressed and decisions would have to be made regarding what needed to be done with
the records, where they were to be located, and how the relocation would take place.


Commissioner Maxwell wanted to know what was the annual cost to maintain the old fire station.  Mr. 
Krakeel replied the county is not investing a significant amount of money to the maintenance of the old fire
station since only utility costs are being paid.  He told the Commissioners if Mr.  Dingler’s proposal for a
public-private partnership was accepted, the county would be required to bring the building into compliance
and doing so would cost the county approximately $5,000 to $7,000 since the station required window
replacement, guttering, painting and other work.  Commissioner Maxwell since the building is used for a
storage facility it is a poor storage facility for a number of reasons including its lack of climate control.  He
said he had not been to the site, but it was reported to him the old fire station was a mess even though
there were a variety of records pertaining to elections and purchasing stored there.  Mr.  Krakeel confirmed
a variety of records were stored at the old fire station, and reminded them of the county’s efforts to store
the records electronically.  He said Georgia State law requires some documents to be kept in their original
paper form and also determines how long the county must keep those records.  He added there are some
documents which must never be destroyed, regardless if they are stored electronically elsewhere.  He told
the Commissioners the county shreds records on an annual basis after the county is no longer required to
keep them, but conceded there is no good system in place for county records retention.


Commissioner Frady asked again if there was any other storage building the county could use to store
records, apart from storing records at the administrative complex.  Mr.  Krakeel said there was no other
storage building, but said two potential sites had been suggested.  The first site, he said, was the old fire
station in Woolsey, but he added the it was smaller than the old fire station in Brooks and in similar
condition.  Commissioner Frady said the records storage site should be fireproof.  Commissioner Pfeifer
recalled a storage building had been proposed in the CIP, but it was amazingly expensive.  Mr.  Krakeel
agreed cost was a fundamental issue and noted original cost estimates for a records building was
substantial.  He was uncertain whether so much money would need to be spent for a records storage site,
but was sure the issue would have to be addressed eventually.  He said the second potential storage sites
would be located at the county’s water facilities since there are closed, circular structures under some of
the water towers.  He said they are also not climate controlled.  Commissioner Frady agreed climate
control was important and suggested a building be built on some land already owned by the county.


Chairman Smith told Mr.  Dingler he thought all the Commissioners would be like to do something with the
old fire station in Brooks, but the evident problem is there is no alternative site for county records.  He
suggested staff could research what alternative storage sites are available, and if there is availability, what
are their locations and conditions.  He speculated if the old fire station was sold in a sealed bid process the
funds could be used to build a true records storage facility so it would not only be an equitable trade-off but
also the location could be closer than the south end of the county.  Commissioner Frady suggested several
acres on old Highway 92 which is already owned by the county, could be cleaned up and used.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 26


Commissioner Maxwell told Mr.  Dingler he wanted to support the project but he could not support getting
rid of one building and incurring the cost of another building in order help the project.  Commissioner Frady
wanted to know if there was another site Mr.  Dingler could use on a temporary basis since he also wanted
to support the proposal.  The implied answer was there was no alternative site.  Commissioner Maxwell
said disposing of surplus property was another problem.  Chairman Smith and Commissioner Frady said
the building would have to be disposed through a public auction.  Mr.  Krakeel pointed out Mr.  Dingler’s
concern stating the cost for the building may not be cost effective for him depending on the potential sale
of the property, and someone may build something at the location other than what Mr.  Dingler desired.  He
suggested some vacant building to Mr.  Dingler and proposed they could be suitable sites.


Mr.  Dingler said he liked the old fire station’s location, and Brooks liked his idea since the facility could be
beautified instead of maintained as the county’s storage facility.  He said another reason the location was
ideal was its proximity to the Brooks baseball field which could be reached without crossing the road.  He
knew there were problems with storage of county records, and suggested the third floor of the courthouse
could be used since he understood it to be vacant.  He also suggested another site south of Melear’s Bar-
B-Q located on Highway 85 and said the site was good since it was in proximity to the county’s
administrative complex.  He said as a citizen he was concerned about the county’s record storage.  He
said he looked through the windows of the old fire station and could clearly see financial statements and
blueprints.  He said the Commissioners should be concerned since the building was not secure, adding it
had broken windows, no security system, and was easy for someone to break into.  He said his fear was
the county would invest money to bring the building back to standard, sell it in a sealed bid process, and
someone would purchase it for something other than promoting a World Series Little League team and
museum.  He informed the Commissioners other counties south of Fayette County had been able to
achieve similar goals, but they did it with planning.  He informed the Board the biggest Little League district
in the United States is located in Peachtree City and Brooks, so there should be an attempt to meet the
goal.  The Town of Brooks, he reiterated, welcomed the idea since they build the facility and gave it to the
county.  He suggested there would be no cost to the county if there could be an agreement between the
county and himself- the county could keep the facility in inventory and let him bring the museum and youth
activities next to the Brooks ballfield.  


Commissioner Pfeifer thanked Mr.  Dingler and said his proposition was fantastic, but emphasized the
Commissioners had some concerns.  Another potential problem, he added, is there are two other
organizations in the county offering similar services, and he was concerned about the county partnering
with a private citizen to effectively go into business with private citizens.  


Anita Godbee added the Baseball Association had inquired about the Kiwanis facility during the winter in
order to train athletes in pitching and batting practice.  She said the Recreation Commission had not been
informed about the inquiry since it had come very recently, but their question was worthy of exploring as
well.  She reminded the Commissioners Kiwanis Park is landlocked, and the Brooks Association, who is
contracted with the county, wanted to turn the fire station into a recreation center where more than
baseball would be offered.  She agreed Mr.  Dingler’s proposal was great, but suggested other classes
could also be offered including ballet and arts and crafts.  She wanted to explore if Brooks wanted that







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 27


possibility.  She added while the “baseball idea” is in its infancy, it would be coming up in the budget and
the Recreation Committee needed to determine whether they could recommend it for Kiwanis Park.


Chairman Smith amended his earlier suggestion to allow the Recreation Committee to give the
Commissioners a recommendation on the facility’s use since there was some other interest in it.  Mr. 
Dingler reminded the Commissioners he had asked in his proposal if he could meet with the committee to
discuss his proposal, and reminded them he was available to discuss what a good use of the facility would
be.  Chairman Smith said the answers would come from the Recreation Committee.  He also emphasized
the need to investigate alternatives for records storage.  He asked the Commissioners if they agreed with
his direction, and they indicated they did.  Mr.  Dingler reiterated his big goal concerned the Little League
World Series and asked if there was any direction for someone from the county to continue the discussion. 
Chairman Smith informed Mr.  Dingler the discussion was now under the purview of the Recreation
Department.  He closed agreeing Mr.  Dingler’s proposal was wonderful and he would love to see the
county have the World Series since it would be a wonderful crown of achievement for Fayette’s ball
players, even if they only watched.  Mr.  Krakeel said he would forward the documents from Mr.  Dingler to
Ms.  Godbee and he would communicate with her, she would set a time for him to meet with the
Recreation Committee.  Mr.  Dingler thanked the Commissioners for considering his proposal and left the
meeting.


The consensus of the Board was for the Recreation Commission to recommend how the facility
should be used, and for staff to research the location, cost and condition of record storage
facilities.


G. Discussion of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding Article V.  General
Provisions, Sections 5-17.  Height Limitations of Walls and Fences as presented by the
Planning and Zoning Department.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Mr.  Dutton said a situation was occurring with a fence which was encroaching on a right-of-way, and a
request for relief had arrived from the property owner.  He said he went to the property and conducted a
field investigation where he determined the wrought-iron fence with brick columns did not meet the
county’s ordinance that limits fences to a maximum height of four feet in the front yard- similar to a picket
fence.  He said the county has many fences taller than four feet and there is no mechanism in place to
prevent the ordinance violation.  The problem is complicated since many of the fences are very attractive
and have great value, and they are needed since many of the houses in the county are mini-mansions with
beautiful landscapes.  He said the Planning Commission was looking for direction to reevaluate the zoning
ordinance as it relates to the height of fences, fences interfering with emergency vehicles, and the height
of archways.  He informed the Board the Planning Commission had already addressed the width of fences,
but wanted direction if it should also be reevaluated.  He concluded the Planning Commission wanted the
Commissioners to give direction to investigate the ordinance for fences and walls.  Commissioner Frady
wanted to know if the primary concern was with safety vehicles getting in and out of fences.  Mr.  Dutton
said he had recently spoken to David Scarborough and learned many fences have been constructed with
entrances 12 feet wide, but the ordinance requires the entrances to be 14 feet wide.  He said no one







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 28


actively is sent to measure the width of entrances into fences and suggested the county may want to
consider instituting fence permits.  He, answering Commissioner Frady’s question, said the issue could
result in life or death.  He added another potential problem existed with property rights and whether access
is granted to enter the gates. Commissioner Frady asked if permits were required to build a fence.  Mr. 
Frisina said no permit was required.  Commissioner Horgan wanted to know why a person could not get a
pool permit if they did not have a fence.  Mr.  Dutton said there is a particular chapter and code regulating
fencing around swimming pools and suggested the Building Department would need to be involved in the
ordinance discussion because of footings for the columns were faulty, the fences and columns could fall
into the right-of-way.  Mr.  Frisina said the county does not know if a fence is under construction until it is
already built, and said Peachtree City requires city approval before a fence is constructed.  Commissioner
Frady said something similar to Peachtree City’s policy should be enacted since emergency vehicles need
access through the fence.  


Mr.  Krakeel said this problem is currently addressed when, after Fire and Emergency Services staff
observe an impediment to access, a certified letter is sent to the property owners putting them on notice
about the impediment and informing them emergency service could be significantly hindered due to the
impediment.  He admitted this tactic does not solve the problem but did inform the property owners.  He
said archways are also impediments since the newly purchased quints are taller than the county’s fire
trucks, and they were not going to remove the top of an archway with a truck which costed the taxpayers
over $500,0000.  He agreed there should be an inspection process to ensure appropriate accessibility to
the structures.  He said there was a program in place allowing people to provide Fire and Emergency
Services with a code to their gates then the property owner is in contact with Emergency 911.  He said the
information is protected, but it is sent to the staff on site or in route and it enables them to open the gates. 
He agreed the fences added a tremendous amount of value to the property, and the houses and
landscape demanded large fences, but also agreed a permit or some post-construction process should be
enacted.


Commissioner Frady said safety has always been required.  He remembered there had been similar
problems with flag lots when emergency access was being impeded and said that did not need to happen
again.  Commissioner Pfeifer thought the ordinance should be explored by the Planning Commission. 
Chairman Smith conceded the ordinance had been broken, and said the choice was to either ignore the
rules or change them.  He thought, based on his own observations, the ordinance probably needed some
adjustment and suggested the Planning Commission should review the ordinance and return with
recommendations for change.


Commissioner Frady asked if there were permits required before entrances to subdivisions could be built. 
Mr.  Frisina said there was no permit required for subdivision entrances and said the Planning Commission
would look at it during their review.  Commissioner Frady asked if there was a height requirement for
subdivisions, and Commissioner Horgan asked if the height requirement was based on the sign ordinance. 
Mr.  Dutton said there was a sign ordinance, and Mr.  Frisina said those questions would also be explored
since the number of ornate subdivisions entrances were increasing.  Chairman Smith asked if there were
size regulations allowing for fire trucks and Emergency Services vehicles to enter and leave subdivisions. 







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 29


Mr.  Frisina said there were regulations for subdivisions’ width, but the height issue, while not widespread,
was new to the county.  Commissioner Frady said he wanted this issue dealt with.  Chairman Smith
thanked Mr.  Frisina and Mr.  Dutton for the information.  Mr.  Frisina and Mr.  Dutton then left the meeting.


The consensus of the Board was for the Planning Commission review ordinance regarding fencing
and subdivision entrances, and return with recommendations. 


H. Discussion of Bob Barnard’s request to extend existing concrete stairs at the rear of his
property, known as Burks Square, with a walkway connecting the stairs with the Public
Library’s parking lot, at no cost to the County.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Mr.  Krakeel said he was approached by Mr.  Barnard several months ago about this request, and he
informed Mr.  Barnard the appropriate way for his concern to be addressed was to write a letter to the
Board.  He said he saw Mr.  Barnard a couple of weeks ago, and when Mr.  Barnard asked about the
status of his request, he was informed the letter was never received.  He said Mr.  Barnard had now
drafted the letter, and his request was to extend the stairs to connect them with the public library’s parking
lot.   


Commissioner Maxwell told the Commissioners this topic concerned him since he was in partnership with
an attorney who is involved with the Burks Square project.  He said he felt too close to the issue to
participate in the discussion and was reluctant to do so.  Mr.  Krakeel informed Commissioner Maxwell he
could also abstain from the vote.  


Mr.  Krakeel said he understood Mr.  Barnard’s request had come before the county’s administration
previously and administration had denied his request.  He said he went to the property and has some
concerns about it and the possible liability associated with it.  Mr.  Krakeel explained the stairs terminate at
the county’s property line, and at the stairs there is a grade of about five feet covered in pine straw.  He
was concerned someone could walk down the stairs and if the pine straw was wet it could cause a fall onto
county property.  He said the problem need to be mitigated and suggested a fence or other improvements
needed to be built to eliminate the fall hazard.  Commissioner Horgan asked why the request was denied
in the past.  Mr.  Krakeel said he was not sure.


Commissioner Pfeifer said the problem with the stairs was they were not intended to be a connection for
parking, but that is what they had become.  Mr.  Krakeel replied Commissioner Pfeifer had raised the
secondary issue and he thought parking was the reason administration had rejected Mr.  Barnard’s request
the first time.  He said he understood parking was a problem, but the bigger concern was the county’s
possible liability.  Commissioner Pfeifer said that was why he thought a fence a fence should be
constructed not to mention parking spaces could not be found at the library.  Mr.  Krakeel said he did not
know how the possibility could be eliminated without some sort of fencing.  Commissioner Pfeifer admitted
the idea of a fence had not occurred to him.  Mr.  Krakeel clarified he was not saying “build a fence” but
reiterated his belief it would be the only way to eliminate potential liability.  







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 30


Commissioner Frady asked who owned the stairs.  Mr.  Krakeel answered the stairs belong to Burks
Square, and the construction of a concrete walkway would connect the stairwell to the edge of the curbing. 
He said the request was bolstered with the rational that it is consistent with the liveable city initiative where
people can walk through the community using the sidewalks and the expansion currently being built in and
around Fayetteville.


Chairman smith asked if the Burks Square parking lot was already full requiring people to park at the
library.  Mr.  Krakeel said he was not sure, but since it was made up mainly of business-professional
offices, it seemed reasonable to believe there was less parking there than at a retail business.  He
mentioned the same problem is occurring with the county’s administrative complex’s parking lot. 
Commissioner Horgan reminded the Commissioners if a function took place at the library and additional
parking was needed, people could park at Burks Square during the times when the professional
businesses were closed- so parking worked both ways.  


Commissioner Frady said he did not have a problem with the request as long as one more step was added
as well as a handrail.  Mr.  Krakeel suggested handrails should be installed on both sides of the stairs and
any work performed to the stairs should be coordinated with county maintenance.  He emphasized Mr. 
Barnard would pay for the work and the work should be overseen by the county’s maintenance
department.  Commissioner Horgan asked if there were any regulations on how wide the steps should be
and if so, were the steps wide enough.  Mr.  Krakeel said there were no such regulations, but there were
height requirements and the stairs appeared to be in complete compliance.  Commissioner Horgan said if
the stairs met regulations and had handrails added to them he would have no problem with Mr.  Barnard’s
request.  Chairman Smith understood there was a problem with parking but thought the fall liability was the
bigger problem.  He said it was incumbent to contact the library director and learn if she thinks the request
would have a positive or negative effect, learn if the library is having parking problems, and learn about
alternatives to mitigate the parking problem.   He knew the fence would physically stop the falling problem,
but did not believe it was a reasonable alternative.  Mr.  Krakeel said he could not think of a reason why
signs could not be placed stating the library’s parking lot was for library patrons only in order to discourage
others from parking there.  Commissioner Frady suggested the signs could be placed at the administrative
complex’s parking lot as well since people were parking in it and walking to Burks Square to go to work. 
Commissioner Horgan mentioned approval of the request with the previously recommended conditions
would be good for the city’s connectivity and a fence would hinder connectivity.  


Commissioner Frady motioned to approve the request with the condition that one step and handrails
should be added.  Chairman Smith asked if Commissioner Frady would amend his motion with more
conditions including: the stairs meet all health and safety regulations, the county would incur no cost, and
the library director would have to agree that acceptance of the request would cause no adverse problems
for the library.  Commissioner Frady said public money could not be spent on private property, so there
was no need to add that amendment to the request.  Chairman Smith said the steps would end on county
property so the amendment was needed.  Mr.  Krakeel asked Mr.  Comer if he knew of any potential
problems since this request dealt with both county and private property.  Mr.  Comer said the county may
want to provide a temporary easement to allow for construction on its right-of-way.  Commissioner Horgan







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 31


seconded Commissioner Frady’s motion.  Chairman Smith announced there was a motion and a second to
approve Mr.  Barnard’s request with the following conditions: one step and handrail were to be added, the
construction would meet all health and safety regulations, the county would incur no cost, the library
director would have to agree there would be no adverse effects, the county’s maintenance department
would have oversight of the construction, and a temporary easement would be granted for construction on
county property.  After hearing no further discussion, he called for a vote on the motion.  The motion to
approve Mr.  Barnard’s request with the described conditions passed in a 3-1-1 vote with Commissioner
Pfeifer voting in opposition and Commissioner Maxwell abstaining from the vote.  


The motion to approve Mr.  Bob Barnard’s request with detailed attachments passed in a 3-1-1 vote
with Commissioner Pfeifer voting in opposition and Commissioner Maxwell abstaining from the
vote.


Administrator’s Report:


Invitation to Clayton State University
Mr.  Krakeel informed the Commissioners they, their families, and their friends had been invited to Clayton
State University’s Lake’s soccer games by the university’s president to take place on October 6, 2007.  


Wellington Place Subdivision
Mr.  Krakeel reported the speed-tables were installed at Wellington Place subdivision.  He said they were
going to be used as a pilot program, and a study wold take place in a couple of weeks after people were
given time to adjust to them.


Service Awards Luncheon
Ms.  Chandler announced the annual service awards luncheon for employees who had served Fayette
County for 20 years would take place on October 18, 2007 at Village Café.


Kenwood Park Grand Opening
Ms.  Chandler reminded the Commissioners Kenwood Park would open at 11:00 on October 6 ,2007.  She
also mentioned the film Charlotte’s Web would show at 7:30 p.m. the day of the opening.


Attorney’s Report:


None.


Department Report:


None.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 32


Board Report:


Archery Complaint
Commissioner Maxwell said he was investigating the archery issue raised during public comment at the
last regular meeting, but had not done anything with it formally.  He said he read the complaint, and it
seemed valid.  He explained he was a deer hunter, and he was an archery hunter, and it appeared abuse
was occurring since someone was putting a deer stand too close to someone else’s property.  He
mentioned the lady who made the complaint had not left an address or contact information, but he did
have her name.  Chairman Smith said he had her name and contact information, and would forward the
information to Commissioner Maxwell.  Commissioner Maxwell did not think the problem was primarily a
public safety issue, but rather a matter of common decency.  He said hunting should not occur so close to
someone else’s property.  He explained he had hunted all his life, and if a deer was shot with a gun it
would probably drop but if it was shot with a bow it would probably run.  He concluded the deer was show
with a bow and ran to the lady’s property to die.  He summarized the hunter had just created his own
problem.


Joint House and Senate Study Committee on Transportation Funding
Chairman Smith notified the Board the Joint House and Senate Study Committee on Transportation
Funding was going to meet on October 4, 2007 to discuss how to best fund the transportation shortfall in
metro-Atlanta.  He said he would be in Atlanta that day and would probably attend the discussion.


Executive Session:


One Personnel Item
Chairman Smith said he had one personnel item to discuss in executive session.  Commissioner Frady
motioned to adjourn to executive session in order to discuss one personnel matter, and was seconded by
Commissioner Horgan.  After hearing no discussion, Chairman Smith called for a vote on the motion.  The
motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss one personnel item passed unanimously.  The workshop
meeting adjourned to executive session at 7:13 and reconvened to regular session at 7:20 p.m.  The
executive session was a Board only session- no staff was present during the executive session.  Chairman
Smith asked for the record to reflect only one personnel item was discussed and no action was taken.


Executive Session Affidavit
Commissioner Pfeifer motioned to authorize the Chairman to sign an executive session affidavit stating
one personnel item was discussed, and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  After hearing no
discussion, a vote was taken on the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The Executive Session
Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for October 3, 2007
Page Number 33


Adjournment:
Commissioner Frady motioned to adjourn the Workshop Meeting and was seconded by Commissioner
Horgan.  After hearing no discussion, a vote was taken on the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Workshop Meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m.


________________________ __________________________
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk        Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia, held on the 2nd day of January, 2008.


________________________
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk












Workshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop Minutes
Board of Commissioners


September 5, 2007
3:30 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia met in Official
Session on September 5, 2007 at 3:30 p.m. in the Commissioners’
Conference Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140
Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Don Comer, Interim County Attorney
Peggy Butler, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk


____________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the Workshop Meeting for September 5, 2007, to
order at 3:30 p.m.


Acceptance of the Agenda:


Commissioner Frady motioned to approve the agenda and was seconded
by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith said there were two items on
the agenda needing to be postponed.  He said Item 14 on the consent
agenda was one of the items to postpone since Tyler Technologies was
unable to get a contract to the county in time for review and as soon as the
county received the required information then the item could be addressed. 
He said Item G in New Business also needed to be postponed because
there were some unresolved issues remaining.  He motioned for Items 14
and G to be removed from the agenda, and was seconded by
Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith announced there was a motion
and a second, called for discussion, heard none, and asked for a vote on
the motion.  The motion to remove items 14 and G from the consent
agenda passed unanimously.  Chairman Smith asked if there was
discussion on the original motion to approve the agenda as modified, heard


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Commissioner’s Conference Room


Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIME
1st Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


Phone: (770) 460-5730 ext.  5400
Fax: (770) 460-9412


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 2


none, and asked for a vote on the motion.  The motion to approve the agenda as modified passed
unanimously.  A copy of the September 5, 2007, Workshop Meeting’s agenda, identified as “Attachment
1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Consent Agenda:


1. Approval of supplemental budget adjustments for fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


2. Approval for the Chairman to sign the Fiscal Year 2008 Appropriation Certificate for the
1998 Georgia Local Government Equipment Pool Lease.  A copy of the request and the
Appropriation Certificate, identified as “Attachment 3", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


3. Approval for the Board of Commissioners to deny Forsyth County access to Fayette
County’s 800 MHZ frequencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval for E-911 Communications to retain the law firm of Holland & Knight to assist in
the Rebanding of the 821 MHZ radio system.  A copy of the request, service agreement, and
conflict waiver, identified as “Attachment 5" follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


5. Approval for E-911 Communications to dispose of old, worn, faded and torn E-911
employee uniforms.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of the Vehicle Replacement Committee’s recommendation for the Sheriff’s Office
Field Operations Division to replace six vehicles, and to transfer $201,802 from the Vehicle
Replacement Fund for this purpose.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Proposal #623 for Water System Building
Cleaning to the company offering the best price which was C&T Janitorial Services at a cost
of $710 a month.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes  and
is made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award bid #627 for chemicals to low bidders General
Chemical Performance Products, Brenntag Mid-South, Industrial Chemicals, Southern Lime
and Pristine Water Solutions for phosphates at $82.50 per pail.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is an official part hereof.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 3


9. Approval of Water Committee’s recommendation to grant permission to Planterra Ridge
Golf Course for temporary construction access for trucks off the existing right-of-way.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


10. Approval of staff’s recommendation for Water System participation in the American Water
Works Association Research Foundation Project with $3,000 being transferred from the
Renewal and Extension Fund to cover this expenditure.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Approval of Resolution 2007-14 approving ownership of Betty Jean Lane in the Jerl Estates
Subdivision.  A copy of Resolution 2007-14, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of Resolution 2007-15 authorizing the provision of office space in the McElroy
House for the Georgia Clean Air Force.  A copy of Resolution 2007-15, identified as “Attachment
13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


13. Approval of Resolution 2007-16 authorizing the county to accept conveyance of right-of-
way for the portion of Sneed Road between Chappel Road and Old Grandville Road.  A copy
of Resolution 2007-16, identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


15. Approval of Annual Report of E-911 Collection and Expenditures and authorization for the
Chairman to execute the report.   A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 15", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


16. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioner’s meeting held on August 1, 2007.


Chairman Smith announced the first order of business was to approve the consent agenda and asked for a
motion to approve Items 1-13 and Items 15-16.  Commissioner Frady motioned to accept the agenda
excluding Item 14 and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith announced he had a
motion and a second, and asked for discussion.  Commissioner Maxwell said he wanted to discuss Item
16, and asked Commissioner Frady if he would amend his motion to exclude Item 16.  Commissioner
Frady amended his original motion to approve the consent agenda excluding Items 14 and 16 and was
seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith clarified a motion was made to approve the consent
agenda excluding Items 14 and 16.  He asked for discussion, heard none, and asked for a vote on the
motion.  The motion passed unanimously.


Commissioner Maxwell addressed Item 16 of the consent agenda.  He said at the end of the meeting on
August 1, 2007, before adjourning to an executive session, he announced he had one legal matter to
discuss alongside Mr.  Jack Krakeel’s one real-estate item.  He said Commissioner Pfeifer had questioned
the legal item because no attorney was present, but he had already pushed away from the microphone







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 4


and was going down the ramp when he replied it did not matter if the item was discussed as a legal item or
a personnel item.  He conceded, in retrospect, the item should have been considered a personnel item,
and stated the executive session affidavit reflected a real-estate item and a legal item was addressed.  He
said the executive session really should reflect a real-estate item and a personnel item was discussed.  
He asked for the minutes of August 1, 2007, to be amended to reflect his statement regarding the legal
item could be discussed as a personnel item.


Chairman Smith asked Attorney Don Comer how to correct the minutes and the executive session affidavit. 
Mr.  Comer said there would need to be a motion to amend the minutes in order to reflect Commissioner
Maxwell’s statement, followed by a second motion to amend the executive session affidavit so it reads one
real-estate item and one personnel item was discussed.  Commissioner Maxwell motioned to amend the
minutes for August 1, 2007 stating a personnel item was discussed instead of a legal item, and the motion
was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith asked for discussion, heard none, and called
for a vote on the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  Commissioner Maxwell made a second motion
to amend the executive session affidavit correctly stating the reason for adjourning to executive session
was to discuss one real-estate item and one personnel item, and the motion was seconded by
Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith asked if there was any discussion, heard none, and called for a
vote on the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  Commissioner Maxwell made a third motion to
approve the minutes as amended and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith asked if
there was any discussion, heard none, and called for a vote on the motion.  The motion passed
unanimously.  


Old Business:


A. Discussion of Resolution 2007-18 affirming authorization for the Interim County
Administrator to retain the services of an attorney to assist the County in legal matters on
an interim basis.  A copy of Resolution 2007-18, identified as “Attachment 16", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Chairman Smith announced Item A under Old Business as the next topic, and read its introduction from the
agenda.  He explained the reason this item was on the agenda was because the Board believes it has the
authority to direct the interim county administrator to select an attorney but was unsure if the authority was
officially given.  He said the item was on the agenda in order to reflect authorization was given to the
interim county administrator to obtain legal services by the Board, and to record legal services were
actually attained on August 3, 2007.  Commissioner Pfeifer motioned to accept Resolution 2007-18 and
was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith asked for discussion, heard none, and called
for a vote on the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.


B. Report from the Retirement Study Committee.  Copies of the Retirement Study Committee’s
Report, identified as “Attachment 17", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Chairman Smith announced Item B under Old Business as the next topic, read its introduction from the
agenda, and asked Attorney John Kimball to give his presentation.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 5


Mr.  Kimball’s presentation can be broken down into several sections: general introduction, an overview of
the Retirement Study Committee (RSC), the RSC’s findings, a brief overview of current county
expenditures, available retirement plan options, unanswered questions, a summary, and a time for
questions and answers.  The minutes will reflect various sections of Mr.  Kimball’s presentation.


Mr.  Kimball introduced himself as a lawyer and a citizen of Fayette County.  He said he has a practice in
residential real-estate, and had previously worked in public service as a staff attorney to Mr.  Don Comer. 
He said Mr.  Krakeel knew his background, and asked if he would consent to sit in the RSC, review the
county’s current retirement plan, and determine if a Defined Benefit (DB) plan is feasible for the county.


Mr.  Kimball said the RSC convened in June and has had numerous meetings before reaching their
conclusion.  He said GEBCorp had been enlisted to help the RSC in their review.  He told the
Commissioners GEBCorp had done an actuarial study using information supplied by the RSC related to
general and public safety employees.  GEBCorp, he explained, is an entity half-owned by private
enterprise and half-owned by the ACCG, is an inter-manager for a host of public entities in the State of
Georgia, and performed the study for the RSC at no cost to the county. 


Mr.  Kimball stated the feedback from GEBCorp demonstrated a DB plan is feasible for the county.


Mr.  Kimball said the most important information in the GEBCorp findings was what the county is already
spending on its retirement plan.  The county, he explained, contributes 4% into the 401(a) plan and
matches approximately 2.6% of employee contributions into the 457 plan, meaning the county’s total
expenditure for its current retirement plan is about 6.6%.  He said county employees voluntarily contribute
about 6.32% of their salary so if their voluntary contribution is added to the county’s expenditure the total
amount spent for the county’s retirement plan is approximately 12.92%.  


Mr.  Kimball said since the retirement plan for the county already costs approximately 13%, several options
were available.  He asked the Commissioners to look at the table on page 16 of his report explaining
various retirement plans were listed for their review, and those retirement plans were distinguished as
either Deferred Compensation (DC) plans or DB plans.  He said the descriptor “all” refers to all Fayette
County employees regardless of service performed but the descriptor “PS” referred only to public safety
employees.  He quickly pointed out the various costs of each plan saying the Board would have to decide
what component would belong to the DB plan if they wanted one.  He focused on all-past service DB plans
explaining they all have unfunded liabilities attached to them.  Unfunded liabilities, he clarified, are the
carte blanche costs for giving credit for an all-past service DB plan.  He told the Commissions the RSC
discussed the all-past service DB plan at length because they did not want the county to take on another
financial obligation, but what became apparent were the current funds on balance in the 401(a) plan and
the 457 plan were more than adequate for most employees to pay into and receive credit for an all-past
service DB plan, meaning the county would incur little to no unfunded liability expense.  He repeated an all-
past service plan was feasible if the monies on balance in the 401(a) plan and the 457 plan were used to
purchase past credit, and the county would have little to no unfunded liability obligation.  He informed the
Board of what other counties had done, namely when they set a random dollar figure and tell the







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 6


employees if they want credit for past service they had to pay that amount, but juxtaposed their practices
saying it would not make sense for Fayette County to follow their example because the cost for a five-year
county employee would not be the same for an employee who had worked for 25 years.  He said the best
course of action would be for the employees to purchase their own all-past service credit by using their
own 401(a) plan, 457 plan, or some other source.  He mentioned employees could be surveyed to
determine if they want a DB plan, and if so, what version of the plan.


Mr.  Kimball reminded the Commissioners of some remaining, unanswered questions printed on page 17 of
his presentation.  He read the questions out loud, but singled out question five as the most salient of the
questions, because if a small minority of the employees wanted a DB plan the process would have to be
reconsidered.  


Mr.  Kimball continued saying a DB plan was feasible for the county, and continued emphasizing the
county’s current expenditure and what could be obtained for the same amount of expense.  He mentioned
the other reports he had supplied demonstrated the DC plan currently in use by the county was not
adequate addressing the retirement issue.  


Chairman Smith asked if he had really heard Mr.  Kimball say a DB plan was feasible to do with the
county’s current contribution rate, and the county could actually save money.  Mr.  Kimball said Chairman
Smith had correctly heard and understood the DB plan was feasible and could save the county money.  He
qualified his remarks saying he was no actuary, and he had not written the reports or presentation the
Commissioners had before them.  He asked the Commissioners to look at the information located on
pages 11 of the report, and explained some employees (represented as little green circles) would exceed
the Target Income Replacement Ratio (TIRR).  He said TIRR Model One projected a 50% replacement
ratio and TIRR Model Two projected a 60% replacement ratio.  Social Security, he explained, would give
approximately a 40% replacement ratio, so a DB plan working in tandem with Social Security would supply
approximately 90-100% TIRR.  Referring to page 11, he said those employees who exceed the TIRR
generally save their money and therefore benefit from the principle of compound interest.  He pointed out
at a good number of employees currently will not retire with TIRR, and said that number compelled the
RSC to look at other methods to improve the current retirement plan.  He asked the Commissioners to look
at the chart on page 12 where a 4% base increase is calculated with the current plan, and explained the
only effect to the retirement plan was the numbers shifted upward from the plan on page 11, and many
employees still would not attain TIRR.  He compared the finding on pages 11 and 12 depicting DC plans to
those on pages 13 and 14 picturing DB plans, and concluded DB plans are more efficient for getting
employees on a linear path for the TIRR.  He mentioned the model on page 14 was for a 2% future service
only plan for all employees, the cost for the plan was located on page 16 of the report, and added the cost
was total funding not limited to only employer funding. 


Chairman Smith asked if the funding cost could be paid by a mixture of employer and employee
contributions.  Mr.  Kimball implied it could, but hastened to add the RSC did not express any opinion on
what the mix draw should be.  He said if the Commissioners wanted to have a DB plan, they would have to
determine what the mix draw should be.  He continued to page 16 showing the percentage of covered







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 7


payroll generally increased by ½% if a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) was added to an all employee
DB plan.  He confessed when he first became the chairman of the RSC he believed adoption of a DB plan
would not be prudent, and his belief was compounded since so many entities are dropping DB plans in
favor of DC plans for various reasons.  The GEBCorp staff, he said, was incredibly conservative and they
reserved a 7% return annually while performing their actuarial studies.


Commissioner Frady asked what percentages were under discussion.  Mr.  Kimball said the percentage of
salaries was under discussion.  Commissioner Frady asked if all salaries were being discussed.  Mr. 
Kimball replied they were all being discussed.  He explained the county contributes 4% as a base-level
contribution and another 4% could be contributed based upon employee participation, clarifying every
dollar an employee contributes is doubled by the county’s contribution.  The county’s contributions, he
explained, are placed into the 401(a) plan and employees’ contributions are placed in the 457 DC plan. 
Employees are generally contributing 6.32% of their salary, he said, meaning the county’s contribution rate
was approximately 6.6%.  He totaled employee and employer contribution rates as approximately 12.92%,
and, referencing page 16, pointed out what plans could be created with the 12.92% current contribution to
the retirement plan.   


At this point, Mr.  Kimball admittedly moved off the topic to address a related issue.  The findings from
GEBCorp are counterintuitive from what is reported in the media, he explained, due to the youth of Fayette
County’s employees.  He said the studies revealed most of the county’s employees are younger in
comparison to other counties, and over half of the employees do not live in the county, meaning the county
has to attract and retain employees from other areas.  As chairman of the RSC, he established a study
using five-year windows to study county employee retention rates.  He told the Commissioners, based on
page six, 65.5% of county employees have less than 10 years of service, meaning employee retention,
especially in relation to public safety employees, is not good.  He further explained his findings using the
Sheriff’s Department as his example.  He said 190 employees were separated from the Sheriff’s Office,
and while some of them were dismissed due to job performance, many of them left for some other form of
service.  He conceded some of the turnover is systematic since the Sheriff uses the Detention Officer
position as a proving ground to weed out those employees who do and do not have a future in law
enforcement.  He continued building on his example, and told the Commissioners if they looked at the
number of people who have come and gone in comparison to the number of employees’ on the Sheriff’s
staff, they would notice some positions have been replaced a multiplicity of times resulting in an almost
100% turnover rate in the last five years.  Commissioner Horgan asked if the RSC received a report of the
exit interviews.  Mr.  Kimball said the RSC had received the report, reported approximately 31% of staff
from the Sheriff’s Department found other employment related to a law enforcement agency for one reason
or another, and added many dollars were being spent to train employees who are not remaining employed
with the county.


Chairman Smith asked for clarification if an employee who worked for 30 years in a 2% DB plan would
retire with 60% retirement.  Mr.  Kimball verified a DB plan, using Chairman Smith’s example, would enable
the employee to have 60% retirement.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 8


Mr.  Kimball, Chairman Smith recalled, had mentioned an employee buyback for all-past service credit, and
Chairman Smith wanted to know if the employees’ buyback was a requirement to make the DB plan
feasible.  Mr.  Kimball said it was not a requirement for employees to purchased credit for past service in
order to make a DB plan feasible, since the Board could simply allow for the employees to participate in a
future service only plan.  He mentioned the county could save money if it chose to adopt a future service
DB plan, and demonstrated his assertion by reviewing the costs located on page 16.  He added if the
employees want an all-past service DB plan there would be a small cost to the plan and the employees
would have to surrender their money to the plan at the net present value.


Commissioner Frady asked if he understood if an employee was hired at 20 years old and retired at age
60, would the employee be able to retire at age 50 with 60% retirement.  Mr.  Kimball replied the scenario
was not entirely correct because the employee would have an actuarially reduced benefit, clarifying the DB
plan assumes employees will retire at age 65.  Commissioner Frady drew from his scenario, and asked if
what was being said was the employee would have to work from age 20 to age 65 before drawing 60%
retirement.  Mr.  Kimball acknowledged Commissioner Frady was correct, adding the employee would have
to work from age 20 to age 65 before immediately drawing from the DB plan.  Commissioner Frady noted,
based on the answer, it did not matter if the employee worked 30 years.  M.  Kimball said the DB plan
would have caps before conceding the RSC had not addressed the minutia details of the plan since their
only goal was to determine if the DC plan was feasible.  Commissioner Frady asked if there were any
figures indicating the amount of dollars an employee would receive at retirement.  Mr.  Kimball said
GEBCorp had taken data such as life expectancy and projected years of service, and used the data to
generate the cost of funding figures.  Commissioner Frady repeated his question of whether there were
any figures indicating the amount of dollars an employee would receive at retirement.  Mr.  Kimball told
Commissioner Frady the employee would be able to draw 2% of average salary based on the employee’s
last five years of service, clarifying the actuaries’ work of projecting employees’ income for the last five
years of service, averaging the income, and concluding the average would be the TIRR to be attained.  He
gave an example of an employee who earned an average yearly salary of $50,000 for the last five years of
employment, and said the TIRR would seek to replace $40,000 to $45,000.


Chairman Smith said he understood the DB plan was an integrated Social Security plan, and wanted to
know if he correctly understood only 60% of salary would be replaced.  Mr.  Kimball said Chairman Smith
was correct, adding the remaining 40% of TIRR would be supplied by Social Security.  He said if 50% of
salary was replaced and if Social Security would supply approximately 40% of salary, the TIRR would be
90%.  He told the Commissioners additional TIRR could be added to the DB plan by allowing the
employees to continue contributing money to a 457 DC.  He mentioned the retirement plan itself was not a
plan where the employee would have a certain amount of money but there would be no actuarial cost for
the benefit since it is based on a formula for income replacement based on years of service at retirement
age.  


Commissioner Frady, basing his question on the rising age for retirement, asked what age new employees
would have to attain before they could draw from Social Security.  Mr.  Kimball said the age would likely be
around 70 to 75 years of age.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 9


Commissioner Pfeifer said the citizens considered the retirement benefit discussion to be a major issue,
and suggested at least three public meetings could be held throughout the county for the citizens to hear
and make a decision.  Chairman Smith said even the Commissioners did not have enough information to
make a decision, and suggested the Commissioners review the information before deciding if they want to
reconstitute the RSC or establish a new committee to determine what a new plan would entail.  He said the
decisions regarding a retirement plan would take some time and he did not envision any action to be taken
on a retirement plan in the near future.


Commissioner Frady asked how many employees are participating in the current retirement program.  Ms. 
Connie Boehnke reported 80% of county employees are participating in the current DC plan.  She asked
the Commissioners to refer to page seven of the report before pointing out 51% of the employees
contribute 8% or more of their salary to the DC plan.  Mr.  Kimball quickly added 109 employees, meaning
16% of employees, do not contribute at all.  Commissioner Frady asked if there was a way to project how
employees under both the DC plan and the DB plan would fare in 30 years.  Mr.  Kimball said it was
possible, the RSC had answered the question, and referred to pages 11 through 14 for a recap of the
information contained.


Commissioner Frady wondered how often employees are able to change their plan after they are vested. 
Ms.  Boehnke said employees could change their plan every month.  Commissioner Frady replied the
retirement plan was actually more like an investment program, adding he did not think anyone ought to try
to make money from it.  He asked if it would be possible for employees to change the plan if it were a DB
plan.  Mr.  Kimball said it would not be possible since the new retirement plan would be a DB plan and not
“a bucket of money”.  Commissioner Frady asked for clarity if under a DB plan the employee could not
touch the money, and was told his understanding was correct.  Chairman Smith added the county would
have the option to hire a professional money-manager who would manage the money.  Commissioner
Frady agreed, said he knew of some employees who wanted to change their retirement plan on a daily
basis, and acknowledged his question was answered.  


Commissioner Maxwell thought the next question was “where do we go from here”.  He said since he sat
on the RSC he was ready to have further study, but acknowledged some of the other Commissioners had
not been through the three and four-hours marathon sessions, had not heard from the GEBCorp
representative, and realized come of the Commissioners would need to hear the professional GEBCorp
presentation.  He conceded when he sat on the RSC, he was skeptical if a DB plan could be adopted on a
revenue neutral basis with no tax increases or additional county contributions, but he had learned a DB
plan could be adopted meeting his criteria by using 401(a) money should the employees chose to buy
credit for past years of service.  He said it was interesting to learn what is being attempted is not replacing
100% of an employee’s salary, but what was being attempted was replacing only 50% or 60% of
employees’ salaries with Social Security replacing the remaining 40%.  He added if the employees
contributed another 10% from outside funding they could virtually have a 100% retirement.  He recapped
on his earlier statement about the need for the other Commissioners to hear the actuarial side of the
information as presented by a GEBCorp representative and gave another option to establishing another
committee to answer the questions on page 17.  Other questions would arise such as when a DB plan







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 10


would come into effect and how much would it take to purchase past credit, he said before adding he was
ready to study those questions.  He confesses there were “unknowns” out there, but reiterated the
actuaries were saying a DB plan is feasible and can be adopted in a revenue neutral scenario.  He
mentioned the criticism the DB plans are facing in the corporate world, explaining the abandonment of the
DB plan was due to corporations funding those plans with current income.  He juxtaposed the county’s
potential DB plan with DB plans in the corporate world, and said the county would not fund their DB plan
with current income because there is $20,000,000 belonging to the employees in 401(a), and if the 401(a)
money could be transferred to DB plan, the DB plan would be fully funded.  He added if the transfer of
funds from the 401(a) occurred, the DB plan would be able to be funded on an annual basis just as the DC
plan is currently being funded, and the danger of having unfunded liabilities would be eliminated.  He
closed saying he did not know if his information helped the Commissioners make a decision one way or
the other, but he was ready to establish a committee to answer the previously mentioned six questions.


Chairman Smith said Commissioner Maxwell had given a true statement since, if a future service DB plan
was adopted, there would be no prior service cost, but if an all-past service DB plan was enacted the
employees would have to fund their own past service cost.  He asked Commissioner Maxwell if there was
enough money in the employee pool so if everyone chose to buy their past service there would be no
unfunded liability the county would have to pay.  Commissioner Maxwell said there was enough money in
the employee pool freeing the county from paying for unfunded liabilities. 


Commissioner Maxwell asked Interim Fire Chief Allan McCullough if he had anything he would like to add
to the discussion.  Chief McCullough said what Mr.  Kimball had reported covered most of his major points. 
He added the findings from GEBCorp mirrored Fire and EMS’ internal documents and demonstrated a high
turnover not only in Five and Emergency Services and the Sheriff’s Department, but also in Emergency
911 Communications and the Animal Shelter.  Commissioner Maxwell stated one interesting fact was
Fayette County was the only county in the southern crescent of metro-Atlanta without a DB plan.  He linked
the issue to  the related fact of a 11-year gap between the average age of public service employees and
the average age of general employees, juxtaposed to an average of one year differential between those
classes of employees.  Commissioner Maxwell stated those numbers reflect a high turnover rate as many
employees are being lost to counties such as Henry County and cities such a Fairburn.  He noted Fairburn
had recently acquired some of Fayette County’s command staff along with five other employees.  He
informed the Commissioners it takes an average of five years to train a public safety employee in order for
the employee to be fully competent, but those employees are leaving Fayette County’s service after five to
seven years because their new employers have DB plans.  He emphasized the dedication of public safety
employees and how they were dedicating their lives for public safety, but they were, generally, going to
Henry County, Clayton County, Griffin and Peachtree City because those jurisdictions have DB plans.  He
recapped the county’s retirement plan could be changed without spending a dime, and by doing so Fayette
County would be brought into competition with other counties and cities.  He asked why other counties and
communities could have DB plans, but Fayette County could not before suggesting the answer to his
question was based on reluctance to change.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 11


Commissioner Frady said he would look at the reports very closely, but wanted to know what was the
difference between the DB plans in discussion and the DB plans the business world is abandoning. 
Commissioner Maxwell gave two parts to his answer.  The first part, he said, is there is a distinction
between public sector employees and private sector employees.  He explained the private sector is
generally running from the DB plans, but the employees working in private sector have a higher wage rate
than do employees working in the public sector.  He explained public sector employees are willing, in
general, to give up a portion of their income for a better benefit since governments generally offer better
benefit packages.  He told the Commissioners Fayette County has operated, in a large part, like a private
corporation for a long time.  He admitted his reluctance when he jointed the RSC, and wanted to know why
there was a need for change.  He repeated if the DB plan was going to cost the county money, he would
resist changing to the DB plan, but if the change could occur and be revenue neutral he would be willing to
consider it.  The second part of his answer to Commissioner Frady’s question was corporations are
abandoning their DB plans because the corporations robbed the assets out of their DB plans and spent
them, or they did not fully fund the plan in the first place.  He concluded similar problems would not occur
with the proposed DB plan because the county would not be able to touch the money, he would “throw a
fit” if the money was touched, and mentioned the DB plan could be structured so its money could never be
touched.  


Commissioner Frady said the county is conducting studies on salaries so the county should not be out of
line with private industry.  He repeated the county was striving to pay proper salaries, was paying a
significant amount of money to have surveys accomplished, and was already in line, as far as he knew,
with the pay experienced in private industry.


Chairman Smith understood Commissioner Maxwell was intricately involved in the RSC’s process and
wanted to go forward, but he was reluctant to go forward since he was not part of the process.   He
recommended the retirement discussion could be resumed at the next workshop meeting, and by doing so
the Commissioners would have time to digest the information they just received.  Commissioner Maxwell
replied he would like to have the GEBCorp representative address the Commissioners about the
retirement plan.  He also understood Commissioner Pfeifer’s concern about public participation but said
the public was able to come to the meetings, and they were aware the topic was being discusses since he
was receiving phone calls at his home from citizens who were both for and against the DB plan.  Mr. 
Kimball suggested the public discussions could be held in the Commissioner’s Chambers enabling the
citizens to come and review the information for themselves.  Chairman Smith said citizens could come to
the workshop meetings.  He recapped his recommendation, thanked the RSC for their hard work, and
mentioned the documents reflected the many hours of hard work committed to the study.  He told Mr. 
Kimball he and the other members of the RSC were to be commended on a job well done and they did
exactly what was asked of them.  He concluded saying from one standpoint the work of the RSC was
finished, but he would like to reserve the right to possible enlist the RSC for a future date to hopefully
answer the questions when the time comes.  Once again, he thanked them for their past service and
expressed his anticipation for their future service.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 12


The consensus of the Board was to further discuss retirement benefits at the October 3, 2007,
Workshop Agenda Meeting and to have a member from GEBCorp address the Commissioners.


C. Further discussion of Transportation issues.  Tabled from the August 20th Special Called
Meeting.


D. Further discussion of Special Service Districts for: (1) Storm Water; (2) Community Septic;
(3) Street Lights; and (4) Traffic Calming.  Tabled from the August 20th Special Called
Meeting.


Chairman Smith announced Items C and D under Old Business were the next items of business.  He
mentioned those items had been carried over from the last meeting and asked if they could be tabled until
the end of the current meeting where they would be addressed should time permit.  He asked if there was
any objection, and there was none.


E. Further discussion of a policy to waive the fee for GIS data requests from any nonprofit
organizations and consideration of Resolution 2007-19 amending the County’s existing GIS
Data Fee Schedule and Policy.  A copy of the request and Resolution 2007-19, identified as
“Attachment 18", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Chairman Smith announced Item E under Old Business was the next item of business, read its introduction
from the agenda, and asked Mr.  Krakeel to address the item.


Mr.  Krakeel told the Board they had requested, at the last meeting, for staff to look at the current policy
regarding GIS data.  He said the booklet they were provided included recommended language for inclusion
into the current policy in lieu of developing a separate policy pertaining only to nonprofit entities.  He
believed the language could be incorporated into the current policy under those institutions not charged for
receiving GIS data including the Federal Government, state governments, state authorities, regional
development centers, local governments and educational institutes.  He said nonprofit organizations would
be added to the current policy’s single-user agreement with two qualifiers.  The first qualifier, he said, was
the nonprofit organization could not sell the data under a commercial license agreement.  The second
qualifier, he continued, was the nonprofit entity would have to agree not to use or permit the use of GIS
data by any other entity for any purpose deemed adversarial to the county.  He added Mr.  Comer had
prepared a resolution to amend the GIS Data Fee Schedule and Policy to reflect the changes.


Commissioner Pfeifer motioned to adopt Resolution 2007-19 and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan. 
Chairman Smith asked if there was any discussion, heard none, and called for a vote on the motion.  


The motion to adopt Resolution 2007-19 passed with a unanimous vote.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 13


New Business:


F. Discussion of Resolution 2007-20 authorizing the abandonment of any interest that Fayette
County may have in a site on Handly Road known as the “Old Stop Courthouse”.  A copy of
Resolution 2007-20, identified as “Attachment 19", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


Chairman Smith announced Item F under New Business was the next item of business, read its
introduction from the agenda, and asked Mr.  Krakeel to explain the item.


Mr.  Krakeel said the situation began over 100 years ago when a property owner provided the county a
parcel of land for the use and construction of a structure to be used for a voting district.  He said ten years
ago, information regarding the parcel of property was researched, and it was determined the voting
precinct was not built on the parcel of land deeded to the county, but on a separate piece of land very
close in proximity to the original parcel of land.  When the error was discovered, he explained, the county
corrected the mistake by issuing a quit claim deed to the heirs of the estate for the unused piece of land. 
He said the current owners are now trying to develop their property in order to sell it, but the land directly
underneath the voting precinct belongs to the county due to acquired property rights.  He emphasized no
other land belongs to the county except for the land directly underneath the voting precinct.  He described
the condition of the voting precinct as a concrete block structure with fallen-in walls, no roof, and trees
growing out of it.  He stated the way to legally correct the mistake was for the county to provide an
appropriate conveyance by abandoning the section of property the concrete blocks are lying on back to the
original property owners.


Chairman Smith added the county could have potential legal liabilities should someone visit the dilapidated
building on county property and incur consequential damages.  


Commissioner Pfeifer motioned to approve Resolution 2007-20 and was seconded by Commissioner
Horgan.  Commissioner Horgan asked if there was any cleanup cost associated with the abandonment the
county would incur.  Mr.  Krakeel said the property owners indicated they would take care of any cleanup
costs for removing the blocks.  Chairman Smith asked for further discussion, heard none, and called for a
vote on the motion.


The motion to approve Resolution 2007-20 passed with a unanimous vote. 


H. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding
Article III.  Definitions, Business Vehicles and Article VI.  District Use Requirements, Section
617.  O0I, Office-Institutional District regarding the parking of business vehicles and on-site
maintenance or fueling facilities as presented by the Planning and Zoning Department.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 20", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 14


Chairman Smith announced Item H under New Business was the next item of business, read its
introduction from the agenda, and asked the Planning and Zoning staff to begin their presentation.


Mr.  Dennis Dutton reminded the Board they adopted, on July 26, 2007, to allow non-emergency transports
into the O-I district, namely into the hospital district.  In light of their action, he informed the Commissioners
the Planning Commission now had three other related items to address: 1) defining the business vehicles
in the O-I zone, 2) requirements for vehicles to park to the side or rear of the building and 3) prohibiting any
on-site maintenance or fueling facilities.  He said the reason for these concerns is because O-I is
transitional zoning, meaning it is mainly a low-density development and intended for professional
developments, and the Planning Commission did not want to see an overload of commercial vehicles
parked in the front so they were bringing their concerns to the Board for consideration.


Commissioner Horgan asked if the word “trailer” could be defined as a 18-wheeler.  Mr.  Dutton said the
definition was tied to utility trailers.  Commissioner Horgan asked if someone could park a 18-wheeler in
the O-I.  Mr.  Pete Frisina replied no 18-wheeler would be allowed to park in an O-I, but there was no
expectation to see a 18-wheeler in an O-I.  He added utility trailers could be used by an O-I business, and
the intent of the proposed amendments was to ensure those trailers would be parked to the side or rear of
the building.  Commissioner Horgan said he saw trailer bodies, parked at the side of buildings, being used
for filing and storage of items, and over time they became a “permanent fixture” to the side of the building. 
Mr.  Frisina stated he would not expect to see those in an O-I district, and Mr.  Dutton added the trailer
would not be permitted.


Chairman Smith asked what would be the prohibition if he bought a tractor trailer, painted the name of his
business on it, and parked it in front of his O-I business.  When Mr.  Dutton began to explain permitted
uses in an O-I, Chairman Smith interrupted him, and restated his scenario saying he bought a tractor-
trailer, parked it in front of his O-I building because his permitted square-footage of signage was not
enough for him, painted the name of his business on it, and asked what would prohibit him.  Mr.  Dutton
said a person would have to meet M-1 or M-2 in order to have a tractor-trailer.  Chairman Smith interrupted
him again saying the tractor-trailer was his business vehicle and he drives it to visit his clients.  Mr.  Frisina
conceded the Planning Commissioner would have to work on the question.  


Commissioner Horgan pressed the question of what would prevent him from parking a trailer body on the
side of his building as Chairman Smith quipped “his side of the building happens to face the highway”.  Mr. 
Dutton said he could not address the signage issue.  Commissioner Horgan told him to forget about the
sign, but only to answer what would prevent him from parking a trailer body on the side of his building,
store files and other materials in it until it is full, then park another trailer body next to the first one.  Mr. 
Dutton admitted the difficulty he had explaining the ordinance, but said if a tractor-trailer was making a
delivery it would be permitted and if it is used for any other reason it is not permitted.  He conceded the
ordinance was open to interpretation and could result in an argument, but the purpose of the ordinance
would dictate its interpretation.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 15


Mr.  Krakeel asked if the proposed amendments would address the problems in discussion.  Mr.  Frisina
said if “trailer” was interpreted in the broadest of contexts, then certainly a 18-wheeler would be under the
definition of “trailer”.  He admitted he did not have the actual ordinance in from of him, could not recall if
there was current wording in the ordinance prohibiting 18-wheelers parked in an O-I district, and added
most other districts require some kind of screening process in order to park large business vehicles.  


Chairman Smith asked how the proposed amendments would be enforced, and asked more specifically
how would law enforcement know what is a business vehicle.  Mr.  Frisina said vehicles owned by
businesses are business vehicles.  Chairman Smith asked a second time how would it be determined a
vehicle is a business vehicle and hypothesized if law enforcement would have to “run plates” on every car
parked in front of a business.  Mr.  Frisina said continually running plates was not necessary unless the
situation becomes noticeable.  He assumed if a business closes at 5:00 p.m. and reopens the following
morning it would be safe to assume vehicles parked in the parking lot would be business vehicles.


Commissioner Frady asked if there were an ordinance prohibiting mobile signs.  Mr.  Frisina said there was
no such ordinance.  Commissioner Frady asked if it was possible to remove the wheels from a vehicle and
store it in front of a business.  Mr.  Frisina said the ordinance prohibits making a vehicle inoperable so it
cannot be driven, and the vehicle would be considered a sign if its only function was to supply information
about a business.  He mentioned if the vehicle is operable and has business information on it, there is no
regulation mitigating it use.


Chairman Smith asked if the proposed amendments were intended to regulate parking after business
hours.  Mr.  Frisina explained the original discussions revolved around ambulance-type vehicles, but the
Planning Commission waned to expand the ordinance so there would not be a clutter of business vehicles,
especially vehicles with logos and advertisements painted on them, parked in front of a business.  He
clarified the purpose for the proposed amendments was to bring a more pristine look to the O-I district as
opposed to allowing the O-I district to appear like an industrial district.  


Commissioner Horgan said the definition of “truck” could also be interpreted broadly since a truck could be
understood to refer to a Ford F-150 or a 24' moving vehicle.  He acknowledged consideration was being
made for ambulance-type vehicles, but was concerned the application of the proposed amendment could
be interpreted broadly.  Mr.  Frisina maintained most vehicles in the O-I district would be passenger
vehicles such as vans, trucks, and possible utility trailers.  Commissioner Horgan asked about the uses of
utility trailers, such as those used by landscapers.  Mr.  Frisina said landscaping equipment would normally
not be seen in an O-I district and added the Planning Commissioners wanted “trailer” included in the
definition since it could also have a design or logo on it.


Chairman Smith asked Sheriff Randall Johnson if the amendment was practical to enforce.  Sheriff
Johnson said practicality depended on what was required, but from what he was hearing the proposals
were not practical to enforce.  Lieutenant Colonel Wayne Hannah said procedures for enforcing the
ordinance could entail checking vehicle registrations to determine if the vehicle belonged to a business
before concurring with Sheriff Johnson’s assessment.  







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 16


Commissioner Maxwell said he had a problem with the proposed amendments since Mr.  Comer had not
looked at them and he was under the impression the proposals dealt only with aesthetics.  He drew on his
experience as an attorney, mentioning he had seen these types of situations in the past where a person
could place the vehicle in their personal name, instead of the business, and paint the vehicle in whatever
manner they chose.  After asking if and learning his interpretation was correct, Commissioner Maxwell said
the ordinance was not a good ordinance.  He mentioned if the ordinance was enacted many businesses
would be brought into a status of nonconformity and gave examples of business on the outskirts of
Peachtree City.  He concluded the proposed amendments would need much work.  Mr.  Frisina said the
changes would be geared mainly for office buildings since there are not many commercial buildings in an  
O-I district.  


Commissioner Frady wondered how the distinction would be drawn between vehicles with information
painted on their sides compared to vehicles with attached magnetic signs.    Mr.  Frisina reminded the
Commissions of the Planning Commission’s desire for direction.  Commissioner Maxwell said the proposed
amendments would need to be reviewed by Mr.  Comer.  


Mr.  Krakeel reminded everyone the reason for the workshop meetings was so questions could be asked
and answered away from the Thursday night regular meeting.  New initiatives come from a number of
sources, he reminded the Commissioners, and the workshop meetings allowed them to have adequate
information, allowed staff to answer questions, and allowed staff to seek direction on how to proceed.  He
added no more time would have to be spent on this particular issue during this meeting, but added his
suggestion was entirely for the Board to decide. 


Chairman Smith asked the Commissioner how they wanted to proceed.  Commissioner Frady quipped the
Board would not like to see a tractor-trailer parked permanently in front of a building.  Chairman Smith
asked if the proposed amendments should be sent to Mr.  Comer for review or should they be dropped. 
Commissioner Horgan answered the proposals needed to be addressed before he recommended they
should be sent for legal review and revision.  Commissioner Frady agreed with Commissioner Horgan. 
This was the consensus of the Board.  Chairman Smith closed saying he was confident the Board did not
want to see any on-site maintenance and fueling facilities in an O-I zone.


The consensus of the Board was to send this item to Mr.  Comer for legal review and revision.


I. Consideration of request from the Engineering Department to approve the Board of
Education’s request to run a sanitary sewer line along Jenkins Road in the County right-of-
way to a Town of Tyrone sanitary sewer manhole located on a neighboring property.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 21", follows these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


Commissioner Frady asked who was going to own the sewer line.  Mr.  Phil Mallon replied the sewer line
would be an extension fo the City of Tyrone’s sewer line equipment.  Commissioner Frady asked if it would
be in the right-of-way.  Mr.  Mallon said it would be in the right-of-way.  Commissioner Frady asked who
would move the sewer line should it ever need to be moved.  Mr.  Mallon informed the Commissioners the







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 17


normal procedure was for the owner of the utility to move the utility when it is in the right-of-way. 
Commissioner Frady asked if the sewer line would be located under the road, and was informed it would
be placed in parallel to the road for a distance of approximately 110 feet.  The Engineering Department,
Mr.  Mallon added, was supportive of the project, especially since the county could benefit in the arena of
emergency response.  He said the Engineering Department had worked with the Board of Education on a
number of projects for many years and they had been very good to work with by “bending over backward”
to meet voluntary and mandatory regulations.  


Commissioner Horgan asked what would happen to the sewer system and who would be responsible for
dismantling it.  Mr.  Mallon asked Mr.  Mike Satterfield of Fayette County’s Board of Education to answer
the question.  Mr.  Satterfield said the Board of Education had not made a final decision regarding what
would happen with the sewer or who would dismantle it, but added several options were available such as
selling parts of the sewer after it is dismantled.  He explained the sewer plant is 18 years old, but while it
has not needed any capital improvements, the time would come when many dollars would be spent to
maintain it.  He told the Commissioner’s the sewer plant costs $150,000 yearly to operate and it was
estimated the cost would be cut in half if only a sewer bill was paid.


Commissioner Frady, looking at a diagram, asked if it pictured the potential site for the force main.  Mr. 
Mallon said it did.  Commissioner Frady asked why the force main should not be placed as far away from
the concrete as possible.  Mr.  Mallon said the relation of the force main to the road and the right-of-way
was only for schematic purposes, but after approval is granted there would be a check of where existing
utilities are located.


Commissioner Horgan asked what was in the area adjacent to the proposed line.  Mr.  Satterfield replied
the line would extend across the southern end of the stadium, turn along the stadium’s west side, and
continue until it intersected with Jenkins Road, turn left where it passes a marshy area and a church where
it would then link into Tyrone’s sewer line.  Commissioner Horgan asked what size line was proposed.  Mr.
Mallon said since the line would be a force main, it would be small in diameter.  He mentioned once a
sewer is open in one area, it opens the opportunity for other people to tie into it.  


Commissioner Frady asked if only the high school would be connected to the sewer line.  Mr.  Satterfield
said three schools would be connected to the sewer line since gravity feed all three schools down to Sandy
Creek High School.  A pump station would be added, he mentioned, behind the softball fields in order to
establish a feed, and the work would entail boring under the football field.


Commissioner Maxwell said he had one fundamental question, and the question was “what is the
difference between a school and a church?”  He said this was the exact same issue addressed a month
earlier when a church wanted to tie into Peachtree City’s sewage line and the issue was denied by the
Board.  He informed the Commissioners of his desire to support the request, but did not know how to be
consistent when a church is denied the ability but a school is given approval.  He told the Commissioners
to “figure a way out of that box” and he would support the request and save the taxpayer’s money.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 18


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the request as presented so it could be further discussed,
and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith announced he had a motion and a second
to approve the request as presented.


Commissioner Maxwell asked if they knew the difference between a church and a school.  Mr.  Comer said
the school is public property and the church is private property, admitted his uncertainty if the distinction
would help in the discussion, then added an argument could be made stating the Board has a duty to
assist public entities as opposed to private entities.  Mr.  Comer suggested the county could also be in a
position to grant an easement to the school and there should be certain conditions placed upon the
easement regarding if there is a cost to the county should the sewer line be moved and the other condition
would be a prohibition against anyone tying onto the sewer line.


Chairman Smith asked Mr.  Satterfield what was his time frame for accomplishing this work since he was
concerned some legal implications would need to be addressed.  Mr.  Satterfield said the work was already
bid on and awarded so the work could begin at any time.  He added there was much work to do on the
property, so if it took three or four weeks to iron out any details, there would be no problem.  Chairman
Smith said the consensus he was getting from the Commissioners was they wanted to approve the
request, but they wanted to know they were not “stepping on their toes” by giving the approval.  He
suggested Mr.  Comer should work out the legal fine points with a special emphasis given to the distinction
between public and private entities.  Commissioner Maxwell said he agreed with Chairman Smith in a
global sense, but he was not going to support the request because it would effectively exempt a
government entity from regular rules resulting in bad public policy.  He concluded the Commissioners could
be inconsistent if they wanted, but wanted his objection on record.


Mr.  Mallon informed the Board Captain Pete Nelms had concluded there was a very real hazard
associated with chlorine gas on-site, and if the request was approved the threat of the gas would also be
eliminated.  Mr.  Krakeel asked if the site was currently using chlorine gas tablets.  Mr.  Satterfield said
chlorine gas tablets were in use at the site then informed the Commissioners a fire and occurred at the
plan about ten years ago and formed a small chlorine gas cloud.  


Chairman Smith asked Commissioner Frady if he would withdraw his motion so Mr.  Comer could look at
the request.  Commissioner Frady said he would not withdraw his motion.  Chairman Smith asked if there
was any other discussion.   Commissioner Frady asked what legal implications existed.  Chairman Smith
said there were at least two legal implications.  He said the first legal implication was based on public
entities versus private entities, although he understood there was a bona fide distinction.  The second legal
implication, he said, was due to running a line from county property to city property through a right-of-way. 
He clarified in one case there was fronting on private property, but in the other case there was no fronting. 
He admitted he did not know if there was a distinctive difference, but wanted a legal opinion on the matter. 
Commissioner Frady said he did not know how else it could be done since the right-of-way would be
affected in both cases.  Chairman Smith said the issue was an access issue, and if the sewer line is
running past private property access to the sewer line from the private property cannot be denied
regardless of whether or not the line is in the county’s right-of-way.  He said in this particular case, there







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 19


would be no fronting on private property since the line was going directly to Tyrone’s sewer system.  Mr. 
Satterfield asked Chairman Smith if he was referring to the 500' rule, and Chairman Smith said he was. 
Mr.  Satterfield said they would be within 500 feet of the Town of Tyrone’s line, since he recalled the
distance from their property to the line was about 100 feet.  Mr.  Krakeel said the work should require an
easement to go through the county’s right-of-way.


Chairman Smith asked if there was any further discussion, heard none, and called for a vote on the motion
to approve the request and grant an easement through county property.  The motion failed in a 2-3 vote
with Chairman Smith, Commissioner Pfeifer and Commissioner Maxwell voting in opposition to the motion.


The motion to approve the request as presented and to grant an easement through county property
failed in a 2-3 vote.  


J. Consideration of request from the Engineering Department to revise the Street Design
Standards and Specifications regarding Article III of the Development Regulation.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 22", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


Mr.  Jeremy Greenberg informed the Commissioners the Engineering Department is requesting permission
to proceed with revisions of Fayette County’s Design Standards and Specifications as outlined in Article III
in the Development Regulations.  He stated the request had been prompted by inconsistencies of
accepted engineering industry, by design professionals, and by the building community.  He added the
revisions were not mandated by state.  He listed some items would be revised such as 1) subdivision
entrance landscaping, 2) pile-ons, 3) median standards, 4) sidewalks, 5) street trees, 6) utility layouts, 7)
street lane requirements, 8) multi-use gas standards and 9) sight-distance issues.  He said there had been
input from the Storm Water Advisory Committee, the Engineering Department, the Planning Commission,
design professionals and county staff.  He mentioned this request could be handled by the Engineering
Department’s current staff so consultant costs could be avoided.


Commissioner Frady asked what the Engineering Department was going to do, and asked if the request
dealt with toppings.  Mr.  Mallon said the Engineering Department was going to conduct a comprehensive
review and would rewrite the entire street ordinance.  Mr.  Greenberg reiterated there were many
inconsistencies in the Design Standards, those inconsistencies confused design professionals, and there
was no current way to alleviate their confusion.


Commissioner Maxwell said he understood the work would be done solely by the Engineering
Department’s current staff, but did not see how it could be done.  Mr.  Mallon said he expected to work on
the revisions for the rest of the year, and he could only guess at the amount of hours the work would take. 
He guessed the amount of time would be close to 40 hours for himself and Mr.  Greenberg, not including
time to meet with representative groups.  Commissioner Maxwell asked how he would spend the 40 hours. 
Mr.  Mallon said there were a number of steps to complete.  The first step, he explained, would be to
review the existing ordinances and contrast them to surrounding counties and other areas around the
country to glean ideas.  The next step, he added, would be to sit down with the Storm Water Technical







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 20


Advisory Committee and hear their input of what works and what does not work.  He concluded the third
step would be to rewrite and draft the new ordinance.


Commissioner Maxwell asked if the need for revision was driven by functional and safety issues, or only by
aesthetic issues.  Mr.  Mallon replied the need was most functional and safety driven.  Commissioner
Maxwell replied he did not know how the revisions could not be done based on the answer given.  Mr. 
Mallon mentioned the need to revise the ordinance was well overdue.  Commissioner Maxwell asked for an
example of the problems being addressed.  Mr.  Mallon said one example was many developers want to
build a divided street in a landscaping development with trees or fountains, but there is nothing in the
ordinance related to their desire.  He explained the lack of information in the ordinance placed the
Engineering Department in a position of approving something not explicitly in the ordinance or telling the
developers they cannot build it even though the developers are willing to assume complete ownership.  Mr.
Mallon gave a second example about street trees, and how the ordinance does not regulate the species of
trees, how close they are planted to the street, or who will be responsible for them in the long run.  Mr. 
Mallon’s third example regarded the county’s sight-distance requirement.  He explained neither he nor any
other engineer to whom he had spoken could say why the county had a vertical and horizontal sight-
distance requirement.  He said the county’s sight-distance requirement should be based on stopping sight-
distance, and it should reference AASHTO (American Association of State Highway and Transportation
Officials).  He added he would hate to explain in court why the county’s standard is different from
AASHTO’s.  Commissioner Maxwell asked if there was a model they would utilize.  Mr.  Mallon said there
were no technical guidelines, but AASHTO, surrounding counties, and various cities would be referenced
as examples.  He reiterated there is no model ordinance.


Chairman Smith asked if the proposed revisions were a result of changing rules and regulations.  Mr. 
Mallon said the revisions were not based on changing rules and regulations, but rather because the
Engineering Department felt it should be done.  


Chairman Smith asked the Commissioners if they had any other questions, adding the Engineering
Department was only looking for direction.  After hearing no other discussion, Chairman Smith told Mr. 
Mallon and Mr.  Greenberg to “go forward and conquer.”  Mr.  Mallon informed the Commissioners he
would come back to them regarding this issue in either December or January.


The consensus of the Board was for the Engineering Department to continue with the proposed
revisions to the ordinance and to return in either December or January.


K. Discussion by Interim County Attorney Don Comer regarding the Georgia Security and
Immigration Compliance Act and consideration of approval of Resolution Number 2007-22
authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding between Fayette County and the United
States Department of Homeland Security providing for the County’s participation in the
Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements Program.  A copy of the request and Resolution
2007-22, identified as “Attachment 23", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 21


Mr.  Comer informed the Board certain Federal legislation has trickled down to the State concerning the
verification of immigration.  He told them the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) has a model
agreement they are sending to all counties enabling counties to verify certain immigration data.  He said it
is a “sign-on” situation, and if utilized there would be a small fee for the service.  He said business license
would be coming under this agreement since immigration status data will be required on all business
license renewals.  He mentioned he would be going to Athens, Georgia in a few days and would have
more information to give about this issue at a later date.  He said the resolution before the Board would
allow the county to use the services provided by DHS.  


Commissioner Horgan asked if other counties were involved.  Mr.  Comer said all counties would have to
do this.  He explained State law required immigration verification in respect to most services provided by
public entities, meaning virtually every department in the government would be affected since almost all of
them provide public services.  He said there are some exceptions and exemptions to the law.  He specified
medical information would be exempt from the law.  Commissioner Horgan asked if the Health Department
and schools were exempt.  Mr.  Comer said the Health Department would be exempt, but did not know if
schools were exempt.  He said the list of exemptions was lengthy, but he was certain business licenses
were not exempt.  


Commissioner Pfeifer said information provided by ACCG said the resolution had to be in effect from July
1, 2007.  Mr.  Comer said the agreement went into effect July 1, 2007, and added the county is well ahead
of the curve and county employees were doing what they were supposed to do.  He said many counties
and jurisdictions have not been in contact with DHS to get the model agreement.  He said the ACCG had
sent the information about the agreement to county attorneys and city attorneys informing them of their
obligations.  Commissioner Pfeifer asked if this procedure of verifying immigration status was still being
followed when a person was incarcerated.  Mr.  Comer said he was not sure then recapped the agreement
is simply a verification stating DHS has the data.  He explained the county would have the name, address,
Social Security number or whatever information was needed for DHS to take the information, process it,
and sent it back to the county.  He said, after DHS gives information to the county, the county could act on
it.


Commissioner Horgan asked if there was any contract currently in effect which would be immediately
affected if the county went forward with the agreement.  Mr.  Comer said the agreement had nothing to do
with contracts, but was only a means to allow immigration verification, but said its language still has to be
included in the contracts.  He clarified his answer to say if contracts involve companies with more than 500
employees, those contracts would be immediately affected.  Chairman Smith asked when would the county
need to make the determination.  Mr.  Comer said the county relied on DHS, but if the county’s knowledge
is contrary to the information supplied by DHS, the county would have a duty.  He stressed the county
would rely on DHS since it does not necessarily have the ability to go in and do an investigation to
determine whether or not a company has the requisite employees.


Chairman Smith asked if the verification process dealt only with new employees.  Mr.  Comer replied
verification process would not deal only with new employees since the agreement would be used in







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 22


relation to business licenses initially.  Mr.  Krakeel added the agreement allows the county to verify a
person a legal resident of the United States when they make application for a business license.  He added
DHS has a data base, and when the county submits information, DHS will run it through their data base
and give the results.  Mr.  Comer said the process is currently in place for all new county employees, it
would be an expansion of what is currently being done, and the agreement would assist the county.


Commissioner Maxwell motioned to adopt Resolution 2007-22 and was seconded by Commissioner
Pfeifer.  Commissioner Maxwell asked Mr.  Comer if he had read the agreement, and Mr.  Comer said he
had.  After hearing no further discussion, Chairman Smith called for a vote on the motion. 


The motion to approve Resolution 2007-22 passed with a unanimous vote.


L. Consideration of Water Committee recommendation to approve a proposed policy for Film
Permits.  A copy of the request and the Film Permitting Policy, identified as “Attachment 24",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Mr.  Parrott said making movies in Georgia is big business.  He said Georgia has a film bureau, and over
the years the bureau has requested the use of different locations for filming such as Starr’s Mill and the
Water System’s main tank.  He said the county did not have a policy for film permits, and so he wanted his
recommendation to extend to all the county departments and not be limited only to the Water Department. 
He said his recommendation was available for the Board’s review, and his recommendation standardized
the way for filming companies to apply for and obtain a permit, make sure they have appropriate insurance,
and ensure traffic situations are handled appropriately.


Commissioner Frady asked if there was a charge in place for a permit, and Mr.  Parrott replied there was
no charge.


Commissioner Pfeifer mentioned there had been a situation several years ago when someone wanted to
use Starr’s Mill for an inappropriate film about a rape at a party.  He said Starr’s Mill was not permitted for
the film.  He asked if someone was going to review the scripts.  Mr.  Parrott said staff review of the scripts
was outlined in the policy.  


Commissioner Horgan asked why there should be no fee for the permit in consideration of all of the
aspects involved in a filming project such as leaving the property clean, having insurance, and various
paperwork.  He recalled Mr.  Parrott had said making movies in Georgia is big business, and wondered
why there should be no fee.  Commissioner Frady agreed with Commissioner Horgan saying a fee should
be set for a permit.  Mr.  Parrott agreed a permit could be set for a film, but wanted the Commissioners to
consider when Sweet Home Alabama was filmed, the film crew painted the pump house and did work at
the park, so the county did benefit from their donation.  


Chairman Smith asked who was the Director of Facilities manager.  Mr.  Parrott said he was.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 23


Commissioner Maxwell wanted to know where Mr.  Parrott’s policy had come from and if Mr.  Parrott had
created it from scratch.  Mr.  Parrott said he did not create the policy from scratch, but he had based the
policy on existing policies in use by the City of Savannah and Coweta County.  Commissioner Maxwell said
he thought he read Coweta County charges a fee for film permits and asked if he was correct.  Chairman
Smith replied Coweta County has film permits for particular buildings, but not for everything.  The City of
Savannah, he added, charges a $1,000 fee if a historic building is used.


Commissioner Maxwell asked why Mr.  Parrott had not suggested a fee for the permit and asked if he
would be open to the idea.  Mr.  Parrott replied he was open to the idea of having a fee for film permits, but
did not recommend a fee since the film itself would bring income to the county.  Film companies, he
elaborated, handle most of their own expenses, handle their own trash cleanup, handle their own security,
handle their own electricity.  He explained since film companies take care of themselves, the county does
not experience any cost for services.  Commissioner Frady said the film companies would need a police
officer to direct traffic.  Mr.  Parrott agreed before adding the film company handles traffic and pays for
police service.


Commissioner Maxwell said he would like to be competitive with Coweta County.  He told the
Commissioners he had recently read a publication indicating the film business was about to increase in
Georgia due to tax incentives, and he wanted to be competitive with Senoia.  He suggested a fee should
be required for a film permit, but admitted he did not know how much to charge the criteria needed for a
charge.  Mr.  Krakeel said there is no real frequency of filming in the county, but reiterated the policy would
be countywide in scope and not limited only to the Water Department.  Commissioner Maxwell suggested
the fee would not need to be a specific amount, but rather could be negotiated.  Mr.  Krakeel said a
nominal fee could apply, and if a permit fee would be required for filming it should be similar to other permit
fees.  


Chairman Smith drew a distinction between general government buildings where work is routinely
performed as opposed to other governmental buildings where little to no work is routinely performed.  He
said if the film used general buildings such as the courthouse, it would bring certain disruption, so the fee
should be based on the buildings use and disruption.  He said he was uncertain about the amount of the
fee, but said the fee should be nominal since inspection would have to place to ensure the filming location
was clean and no damage had occurred.  Commissioner Frady added if a permit was required then
administrative time would also be required.  He suggested the permit fee should be $500 for buildings in
current use and $100 for all other locations with little governmental disruption.  Commissioner Pfeifer asked
if the permit should be negotiated on a case-by-case basis.  Mr.  Krakeel said by charging a fee on a case-
by-case basis the employees would be in a situation where they have to determine the rate.  He suggested
the permit fee should be a flat fee.  


Commissioner Maxwell said the courthouse would not be closed down, especially when judges are
present, for only $500 a day, so not only would the permit be controlled but the issuance of a permit would
also be controlled, clarifying there are times when it does not benefit the county to issue permits.  He
indicated he was also open to discuss fee amounts.  Commissioner Horgan said $500 sounded good to







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 24


him.  Mr.  Krakeel reiterated his preference for a flat fee with the caveat being if too much disruption
occurred or was expected the permit could be denied.  He explained it was very difficult to place a dollar
value on a crew who wanted to use all three floors of the courthouse compared to the use of only one floor,
and it was difficult to determine the cost for a person in the courthouse’s bell tower shooting a flaming
arrow versus a wedding staged on the courthouse grounds.  He admitted he was not sure what the cost
implications would be for the county.


Chairman Smith asked Mr.  Krakeel what amount he would recommend for a permit fee.  Mr.  Krakeel
recommended a flat fee of $500 for occupied building in Fayette County with the right to deny a permit if it
causes undue hardship on the continued operation of county government.  Commissioner Frady made a
motion based on Mr.  Krakeel’s suggestion. Commissioner Maxwell asked if passive buildings were going
to have a $100 permit fee and active buildings were going to have $500 permit fee, and wanted to know if
those suggestions were the basis for Commission Frady’s motion.  Commissioner Frady indicated
Commissioner Maxwell had heard the motion correctly and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  After
hearing no further discussion, Chairman Smith asked for a vote on the motion to approve the film permits
policy with the understanding the county would charge $100 a day for passive structures and $500 a day
for active structures and the county has the right to issue or deny the permit based on disruption of county
business and in cases not deemed in the county’s best interest.


The motion to approve the Film Permits policy with the noted amendments passed with a
unanimous vote.


M. Discussion of Employee Call-Back, Nepotism, and Whistleblower Policies.  A copy of the
request and the call-back, nepotism and whistleblower policies, identified as “Attachment 25",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Chairman Smith announced Item M under New Business was the next item of business and read its
introduction from the agenda.  In the course of this discussion, it was decided by the Commissioners each
of the items should be addressed and voted upon separately.  


Mr.  Lewis Patterson gave a general introduction for all three policies before paying particular attention to
the Employee Call-Back policy.  He informed the Commissioners the policies had been reviewed by legal
and senior staff.  He said the Call-Back and Nepotism policies are modifications of what are already in
place, but the whistleblower policy was a new policy.  


Mr.  Patterson said the proposed call-back policy was an attempt to get back to compliance with the Fair
Labor Standards Act, would establish the amount a person would be paid when called back, and would
apply only for emergency situations.  He added the policy would not be applicable when an employee is
called back due to a routine staffing shortage.


Commissioner Horgan asked if a list existed which described what is and is not an emergency.  Mr. 
Patterson said the definition of emergency duty is necessitated by a serious situation or an unexpected







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 25


occurrence requiring immediate action, and told the Commissioners the definition is the last sentence of
the call-back policy.  Commissioner Horgan asked who made the decision of whether or not a situation was
a true emergency.  Mr.  Krakeel said some of those decisions are automatic.  He gave an example of an
animal control officer who is off-duty when a person is bitten, saying a call-back could be warranted.  He
gave another example of a broken 12" water line, saying a supervisor might need to call in a crew to work
on its repair.  He contradicted those examples with a scenario when an employee is off-duty and is called
in because of an excessive number of sicknesses in a department, and clarified the situation as a non-
emergency.  He said, based on some situations, department heads or senior level managers would make
a decision based on an emergency, but at other times emergency call-back is automatic.


Commissioner Horgan asked if the employee’s time card would automatically record emergency duty or
would there be a process the employee would have to take.  Mr.  Krakeel said employees would record
their call-back hours the next day they come to work.


Commissioner Pfeifer asked if the call-back was part of the job description and if employees were subject
to it.  Mr.  Krakeel said call-back was part of the employees’ job description, but the call-back policy was
being handled by different departments in different ways.  He emphasized the discussion on the call-back
policy was an attempt to bring some consistency and uniformity to the process and to ensure all
departments are operating in concert with one policy in handling the issue.  


Chairman Smith asked what would be the financial impact the county would incur with the change.  Mr. 
Krakeel said he did not expect a substantially greater financial impact compared to what the county has
historically incurred.  He emphasized the policy was for emergency situations only.  He added another level
to the problem existing in the county, explaining at times an employee is paid from the time they leave their
house, at times an employee starts receiving pay after arriving at the work site, at times departments do
not pay the two-hour pay requirement, meaning different applications are at work throughout the county. 
The policy’s goal, he recapped, was to bring uniformity to the process and clarify the on-call provision.  


Commissioner Maxwell asked, if a person was called back and worked four hours, would they be paid for
four hours at a rate of one and one-half hours for two hours and have regular pay for the last two hours. 
Mr.  Krakeel said the employee would be paid for two hours at one and one-half times their regular rate
regardless whether they worked ten minutes or ten hours.  He explained if an employee works 40 hours in
a week, and then works an additional five hour due to a call-back situation, those additional five hours
would be paid at one and one-half hours of the regular rate.  Commissioner Maxwell asked what would
occur if the call-back began at the beginning of the week, and wanted to know if the employee’s hours
would be reduced to compensate for the hours worked for the call-back.  Mr.  Krakeel said the employee’s
hours would not be reduced resulting in a 45-hour work week for the employee.  Commissioner Horgan
asked if only two and one-half hours would be paid at time and a half.  Mr.  Krakeel reiterated all five
additional hours would be paid time and a half, adding anything in excess of 40 hours requires overtime
payment in accordance to the Fair Labor Standards Act.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 26


Chairman Smith asked if the fundamental reason for the policy was to standardize the minimum at two
hours.  Mr.  Krakeel said the policy needed to be standardized so there would be absolutely no question
how department heads need to handle the call-back policy since currently there are varying interpretations
on how to handle the policy.


Commissioner Maxwell said his concern was based on the law of unintended consequences, especially in
relation to financial implications.  He feared there would be more “emergencies” and wanted an ability to
track them.  Mr.  Patterson said the Human Resources department would ensure department heads would
comply to the ordinance.


Commissioner Pfeifer made a motion to adopt the call-back policy and was seconded by Commissioner
Horgan.  After hearing no discussion, Chairman Smith asked for a vote on the motion.


The motion to approve the Call-Back policy passed with a unanimous vote.


Mr.  Patterson said the Nepotism policy updates what is already in place regarding the employment of
immediate family working in the same department, and the policy removed the phrase “all other individuals
residing in the same household”.  


Commissioner Frady said he could not support family members working in the same departments since he
had experienced situations where one person would become disgruntled and all the family members leave
at once.  Mr.  Patterson read the policy to Commissioner Frady and said family members could not work in
the same department unless they are assigned to separate locations or on separate shifts.  Commissioner
Frady replied he had read the policy and recapped it saying the employee could work in the same
department but not side-by-side.  Mr.  Krakeel gave an example where an employee would work for the
Fire Department at Station Six in Brooks on the B shift and another family member could also work for the
Fire Department and assigned to Station One located at Highway 314 and Highway 279 and working the A
shift.


Commissioner Frady asked if every department would be affected.  Mr.  Krakeel said it would affect every
department, and it would limit the capability of employment for family members in certain departments like
the Finance Department since it has only one location and standard operating hours.  He contrasted the
Finance Department to Fire and Emergency Services as long as the Fire and Emergency Services
employees did not operate from the same location, work under the same level of supervision, worked in
different shifts, and were based at different locations.


Commissioner Pfeifer asked if this policy would affect poll workers.  Mr.  Boehnke said the county does not
consider poll workers to be county employees.  Mr.  Krakeel said the policy would apply only to full-time
county employees.  He gave examples of how the nepotism policy would work in the Water Department
and the Sheriff’s Department, stressing employees would not work side-by-side.  Commissioner Frady said
it was a shame relatives could not work side-by-side, but he had seen those situations before and how
they resulted in problems.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 27


Commissioner Horgan asked if this situation was already occurring.  Mr.  Krakeel said it was. 
Commissioner Horgan asked what would happen to the employees.  Mr.  Krakeel said the policy could not
be made retroactive, meaning those employees who already work for the county could not be terminated. 
Commissioner Horgan asked again if there was going to be a change.  Mr.  Krakeel said current
employees who are related are not working side-by-side.


Chairman Smith told the Commissioners his concern was similar to Commissioner Frady’s.  His concern
was an employee could work in different locations but have the same manned structure, so if an employee
was promoted to be a departmental manager, the manager could be indirectly responsible for a family
member.  Mr.  Krakeel said the situation is currently experienced in the county.  Commissioner Maxwell
said he did not expect any future problems related to the issue, but was concerned about the impact on
current employees.  He asked if there was documentation listing where problems exist.  Ms.  Boehnke said
a list was compiled several years ago detailing related employees, but none of the listed employees work
at the same location.  Commissioner Maxwell asked again if a list exists.  Ms.  Boehnke said a list exists
but it is old.  Commissioner Maxwell said he understood the policy would relate to new hires, but his
concern also dealt with employee promotions.  He wanted to know if related employees could never be
promoted.  Ms.  Boehnke said related employees could not be promoted unless they were employed at
different work locations.  


Ms.  Boehnke said the first two paragraphs of the Nepotism policy were basically seamless to the previous
policy, but changes existed stating the county administrator did not have to approve nepotism issues since
department heads would know the policy, and the prohibition against hiring employees residing in the
same household was removed since employees may live in the same household but not be related.  Mr. 
Krakeel clarified employees could share an apartment and not be related, while Ms.  Boehnke added
employees could live in a three-bedroom apartment and all three employees would share the apartment.


Chairman Smith asked if there were any unintended consequences.  Mr.  Krakeel asked ms.  Boehnke if
modifications were made to the definitions of immediate family.  Ms.  Boehnke replied no modifications
were made from the original policy and the only item taken out of the policy was the prohibition against
employees from living in the same household.  Mr.  Krakeel said while the prohibition had been applied to
the entire county, but proved to be a particular problem for Fire and Emergency Services employees.  He
explained two firefighters could split rent on an apartment, and even though they are not related, they still
could not be employed by the county.  


Chairman Smith said the removal of the prohibition of employees living in the same household was a
substantial change, and asked if there was another change.  Ms.  Boehnke said every time a department
head wanted to hire someone who was related, the department head would have to make a formal appeal
to the county administrator.  She explained the policy now would define the parameters of exactly what
could and could not be done.  Mr.  Krakeel said the policy did not allow for one decision to go one way and
another decision to go another way, and it would hinder discretion on anyone’s part.  He emphasized
decisions would either comply with the policy or they would not, and the policy would not allow for
pandering or some special appeals.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 28


Chairman Smith asked if the policy in discussion was the current plan.  He was informed it was the current
plan with the two changes just discussed.  Mr.  Krakeel informed the Commissioners of Mr.  Comer’s
suggestion for “mother-in-law” and “sister-in-law” to be written into the policy.  Commissioner Maxwell
asked if “mother-in-law” and “sister-in-law” were added to the policy would Mr.  Comer approve it.  Mr. 
Krakeel said the discussion had not gone to that extent since what was under discussion included son,
sister and brother.  He mentioned one previous policy had carried relationships as far as “great-great-great
grandfather-in law”, reaching the point where it was ridiculous.  Commissioner Maxwell asked if “mother-in-
law should be excluded from the policy or if “mother-in-law” or “father-in-law” should be added to the policy. 
He acknowledged if relationships were spelled out in a policy there would be some exclusion at some level
because there are reciprocal relationships.  Ms.  Boehnke replied reciprocal relationships were intended to
be covered with the “in-law” relationship provision.  Chairman Smith wanted to know for sure if addressing
reciprocal relationships was the intent of the “in-law” prohibition.  Mr.  Krakeel said it was the intent. 
Chairman Smith said the policy should include “son-in-law”.  Mr.  Krakeel said modification could be added,
and wanted to clarify the Nepotism policy would apply only for full-time Fayette County employees.


Commissioner Maxwell said he was in general agreement with the Nepotism policy since he understood
the problems with nepotism, but he was concerned with the raw numbers of employees who were related
to each other.  Ms.  Boehnke said there were many related employees, but related employees did not have
direct supervision, 90% of them worked in different locations, and there had been no problem.  She
mentioned the county administrator had approved every related employee for the past seven years. 
Commissioner Maxwell asked if the policy was not as strict as possible since it could prohibit relatives from
employment at every level, and he was told the policy was not as strict as possible.  Mr.  Krakeel said the
proposed policy would allow for some latitude.  Ms.  Boehnke said the policy was discussed at length with
senior staff, but the major issue focused on the immediate supervisor situation.  She clarified the
supervisor/non-supervisor relationship was the problem area.


Commissioner Pfeifer said he had some questions he would reserve for later, then made a motion to
approve the Nepotism policy.  He was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  Chairman Smith asked if the
motion was meant to include the in-law changes as outlined, and Commissioner Pfeifer said his motion
included the in-law changes.  Chairman Smith asked Mr.  Comer if adding in-law changes were
acceptable, and Mr.  Comer indicated it was fine.  Commissioner Pfeifer asked if his wife’s sister’s husband
was his brother-in-law or his wife’s brother-in-law.  Ms.  Boehnke said the person would be Commissioner
Pfeifer’s brother-in-law.  After hearing no further discussion, Chairman Smith called for a vote on the
motion to approve the Nepotism policy with the in-law additions, particularly to include “son-in-law” and
“daughter-in-law” and applying it only to full-time employees.  


The motion to approve the Nepotism Policy with the addition of “in-law” recommendations and with
application to only full-time employees passed with a 4-1 vote with Commissioner Frady voting in
opposition.


Mr.  Patterson informed the Commissioners the Whistleblower policy was a new policy which enabled
employees, in a non-retaliatory way, to report problems they may not believe to be acceptable or if they
know of violations of State law, Federal law, county code ordinances, abuse of authority, or a waste of







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 29


public money.  He explained the policy would allow the employee to go to the county attorney personally to
make the report, and the county attorney would be a nonpartisan entity to investigate and recommend the
type of action to take place resulting from the complaint.  He reiterated the policy would allow employees to
express their concerns and have them investigated fairly.  He also told the Commissioners the policy would
also subject the employee to disciplinary action if they reported something they knew to be false in an
attempt to “smear mud” or for any other reason deemed harmful to the county.  Chairman Smith asked
what would be the disciplinary action.  Mr.  Patterson replied it would be whatever the county attorney and
the county administrator would recommend based on the allegation.


Commissioner Maxwell said the county was moving from an outside attorney to an in-house attorney, since
the in-house attorney’s duty would be to the Board of Commissioners the attorney would be placed into an
immediate conflict situation.  Mr.  Comer added, in his opinion, whoever the outside attorney was, the
employee should go to an outside attorney instead of the in-house attorney.  Commissioner Maxwell
agreed but questioned how to determine who was the appropriate outside attorney to handle the case.  He
said if a person handpicks an attorney the person would get the desired results and the process for an
independent forum would be undermined.  He suggested the attorney should have no relationship at all
with the county so there could be total independence, and the outside attorney should work with the
expectation no further work would come from the county.  He said if a whistleblower policy was going to be
worth anything, it needed to be handled the way he suggested.


Chairman Smith asked if it was reasonable for the complaint to be vested with the Chief Judge of the
Superior Court and allow the judge to select the attorney.  Mr.  Comer said it could be done.  Chairman
Smith wondered if the chief judge would assume the responsibility.  Commissioner Horgan asked if what
was proposed was for the judge to conduct the investigation.  Chairman Smith envisioned the Chief Judge
would receive the complaint and would appoint an attorney who would investigate the complaint. 
Commissioner Pfeifer said it depended on what the complaint was about.  Mr.  Krakeel added the attorney
would be responsible for conducting the investigation and making a formal recommendation.


Commissioner Horgan asked what would give the chosen attorney the latitude to do what is required for an
investigation, and wanted to know the boundaries for the chosen attorney.  Commissioner Maxwell said the
policy would give the attorney some direction and would allow the attorney to review any State law or
waste of money.  Mr.  Krakeel said language could include time limitations for an investigation ensuring a
complaint is investigated withing 60 to 90 days.


Commissioner Frady asked if other counties have a similar policy.  Mr.  Krakeel replied many governments
have whistleblower policies and many do not.  Commissioner Frady wondered how other whistleblower
policies were enacted.


Chairman Smith said he would be more comfortable if staff reworked the policy and brought it back at a
later time.  Mr.  Krakeel said the policy would be reworked and brought back to the Commissioners at a
later date.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 30


The consensus of the Board was to rework the policy and bring it back to the Board at a later date.


Chairman Smith announced the Board had reached the end of the agenda, but reminded them Items C
and D were holding.  He reminded the Commissioners the meeting had been lengthy, saying he was
willing to postpone the discussion on the remaining two items until the next workshop meeting or the topics
could be addressed after a short recess.  Commissioner Horgan asked if they could be addressed at the
next regular meeting.  Chairman Smith said they could, and mentioned the regular meeting appeared to
have a light agenda.  Commissioner Pfeifer motioned to move Items C and D to the next regularly
scheduled meeting and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  After hearing no discussion, Chairman
Smith called for a vote on the motion.


The motion to move Items C and D to the next regularly scheduled meeting passed with a
unanimous vote.


Administrator’s Report:


Lengthy Agenda
Mr.  Krakeel thanked the Board for their indulgence for such a lengthy agenda, and explained it was
lengthy because a number of issues had been building up.  He said he would strive to not have such
lengthy agendas in the future unless absolutely necessary.


Attorney’s Report:


Refunds in Relation to State Law
Mr.  Comer said he had spoken to Mr.  Krakeel about advising the Board concerning refunds and the
guidance State law provided.  He acknowledged there had been problems related to property tax issues,
and the ordeal had been long for property owners.  He added the new laws soon to be enacted would
make matters worse.  He asked permission from the Board to return with a recommendation for
streamlining the refund process and find a way to remove the Commissioners from the process to the
extent the law allows.  Chairman Smith asked if any Commissioner objected, but no one did.


The consensus of the Board was to allow Mr.  Comer to return with a recommendation to
streamline the refund process and remove the Commissioners from the process to the extent
allowed by law.


Departmental Reports:


There were no departmental reports.







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 31


Executive Session:


Three Real-Estate Items and One Personnel Item
Mr.  Krakeel stated he had three real-estate items and one personnel matter to discuss.  Commissioner
Pfeifer motioned to adjourn to an executive session to discuss three real-estate items and one personnel
matter and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  After hearing no discussion, Chairman Smith called
for a vote on the motion. The motion to adjourn to an executive session to discuss three real-estate items
and one personnel matter passed unanimously.    The Workshop Meeting adjourned into an executive
session at 6:02 and resumed back into regular session at 7:22 p.m.  Chairman Smith called the Workshop
Meeting back into regular session.  He asked for the record to reflect three real-estate items and one
personnel item were discussed in an executive session and no action was taken on any item.


Executive Session Affidavit
Commissioner Frady motioned to authorize Chairman Smith to sign the executive session affidavit stating
three real-estate items and one personnel matter was discussed.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the
motion.  After hearing no discussion, Chairman Smith called for a vote on the motion.  The motion to
authorize Chairman Smith to sign the executive session affidavit stating three real-estate items and one
personnel matter was discussed passed with a unanimous vote.  The Executive Session Affidavit,
identified as “Attachment 26", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Adjournment:


Commissioner Maxwell motioned to adjourn the Workshop Meeting and was seconded by Commissioner
Horgan.  After hearing no discussion, Chairman Smith called for a vote on the motion.  


The motion to adjourn the Workshop Meeting passed unanimously.  The Workshop Meeting was
adjourned at 7:23 p.m.


_______________________                                                                   ____ ___________________
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk            Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia, held on the 2nd day of January, 2008.
.


________________________
Floyd L.  Jones, Deputy Clerk












The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia met in Official Session on November 29, 2007, at
7:00  p.m. in the public meeting room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.  


COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk 
Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


- - - - - - - - - - - - - -


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Pfeifer offered the Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance.  


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:
Commissioner Frady made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to accept the agenda
as presented, discussion followed.  


Chairman Smith requested that the agenda be amended and that the May 22, 2007 Board of Commissioners
budget meeting minutes as listed in item #13 be removed from the consent agenda and moved to old business
for discussion.  The motion carried 5-0. 


A.   RECOGNITION OF BILLY GUNNIN AS A MEMBER OF FAYETTE COUNTY PARKS AND
RECREATION COMMISSION:
The Board recognized Billy Gunnin and presented him with a plaque for his many years of service on the
Fayette County Parks and Recreation Commission.  


B.   RECOGNITION OF LIEUTENANT KEVIN COMBS:
The Board recognized Lieutenant Kevin Combs on his promotion to Fire Officer in the Fayette County Fire and
Emergency Services Department.


PUBLIC HEARING
Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the rules of procedure for public hearings.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 2


C.   PACKAGED BEER AND WINE SALES PERMIT FOR RELIABLE DEVELOPMENTS GROUP, INC.
APPROVED: 
Director of Community Development Pete Frisina asked for the Board’s consideration for a request for a
Packaged Beer and Wine Sales Permit for Reliable Developments Group, Inc. d/b/a BP Food Mart, 166
Corinth Road, Jonesboro, Georgia, Aamera N. Ahmed and Fayez Ahmed, Owners, and Aamera N. Ahmed,
Applicant.  He said this property was located in Land Lot 182 of the 5  District, fronted on Corinth Road andth


S.R. 54 East, and was zoned C-H.  He said the request was for a Change of Ownership only.
 


Chairman Smith asked if the applicant was present.  There was no one appearing on behalf of the request.
He then asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of the request.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished
to speak in opposition of the request.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  He
noted that this was a request for a Change of Ownership only.


Commissioner Frady made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to approve the request
as presented.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


D.   CONSIDERATION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO
INCLUDE THE DRAFT “FAYETTE COUNTY ANNUAL REPORT ON FIRE SERVICES IMPACT FEES,
INCLUDING FY 2007 IMPACT FEES FINANCIAL REPORT, FY 2008-FY 2010 SHORT TERM WORK
PROGRAM AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT”; AND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION NO. 2007-
23 FOR THE TRANSMITTAL OF SAID DRAFT DOCUMENT TO THE ATLANTA REGIONAL COMMISSION
AND THE GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS:
Assistant Director of Planning and Zoning Tom Williams remarked that this item for the Board’s consideration
was the proposed amendment to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan to include the DRAFT “Fayette
County Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, including FY 2007 Impact Fees Financial Report, FY
2008-FY 2010 Short Term Work Program and Capital Improvements Element”; and approval of a Resolution
for the transmittal of said DRAFT document to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Georgia Department
of Community Affairs for their review and approval.  He said the County was required to file these reports
annually and was a requirement of the Minimum Planning Standards Act and Impact Fee Act.  He noted that
since May of 2001 the County had collected over $2.2 million in impact fees and in FY 2007 the amount
collected totaled just over $200,000.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to approve Resolution No. 2007-
23 to transmit this document to the A.R.C. and the D.C.A. for State and Regional review.  He said at the end
of that review period this will come back to the Planning and Zoning Department and staff will then bring this
to the Board with a Resolution to adopt.   


Mr. Williams said staff had become aware of an error in the report regarding the project for fire and emergency
operation center including fire station no. 4.  He said the fiscal years had been changed to FY 2008 and FY
2009 and this was in keeping with the budget process.  


Chairman Smith asked if anyone wished to speak in favor or in opposition to this item.







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 3


Angela Hinton-Fonda remarked that she had downloaded the documents and read them in their entirety and
questioned if there were any differences from what she had reviewed on line with the document presented
tonight.  


Mr. Williams responded that the project start date for the fire headquarters and emergency operations center
would be FY 2008 with an end date of FY 2009.  He said these would be done as one entity and would
increase the cost from $2,225,000 to $3,600,000. He said the percentage of funding from impact fees would
result in a slight increase to $2,250,000 and the percentage would changed from 84% to 62.5%.  He said the
other item was on the Short Term Work Program and the completion year was shown as 2012.  He said this
was now shown as a start date of 2008 with an end year of 2009.  He said the estimated cost reflected the
$3.6 million and the fire tax was added to the impact fees.  


Commissioner Pfeifer made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to submit the draft
Fayette County Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees and authorize the Chairman to execute a
Resolution for transmittal to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Request.and Resolution No. 2007-23, identified as “Attachment
No. 2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.    


E.  CONSIDERATION OF PETITION NO. 1202-07, THOMAS B. CHANDLER, OWNER, AND GEORGE W.
WEST, AGENT, REQUEST TO REZONE 4.02 ACRES FROM A-R TO O-I TO DEVELOP A 12-BED
HOSPICE. THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOT 126 OF THE 5TH DISTRICT AND FRONTS ON
S.R. 54 WEST. STAFF RECOMMENDED APPROVAL.  THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED
APPROVAL 4-0:
Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the petition request as listed.  


Chairman Smith asked if the applicant or representative was present for this discussion.


Attorney Crandall Bray said he represented Mr. Chandler in this rezoning request.  He noted that Doctors
Hospice of Henry was actually the entity proposing the 12-bed hospice center to be located on S.R. 54
consisting of 4.02 acres.  He said there were actually two parcels of land that totaled the 4.02 acres.  He said
he would like to present the Board with a Constitutional Challenge to be filed in this matter.  A copy of the
Constitutional Challenge, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  He said Mr. Chandler and Mr. West were also present and would be glad to answer any questions that
the Board might have.  


Chairman Smith commented on the smaller tract of land and said the concrete shop building appeared to be
over the property line.


Attorney Bray replied yes, that was correct.  He said there was a boundary line agreement in the Fayette
County records.  He said this building was dilapidated and would be taken down.  He said the houses that used
to exist on this property had already been removed and the land prepared for the new construction. 







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 4


Chairman Smith asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of the petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone
wished to speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Frady made a motion and Commissioner Pfeifer seconded the motion to approve Petition No.
1202-07 as presented.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of Staff’s Analysis and Investigation, identified as
“Attachment No.  4, follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  A copy of the Ordinance and
Resolution approving Petition No. 1202-07, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are
made an official part here 


F.   CONSIDERATION OF PETITION NO. RDP-008-07, RIVER PARK SUBDIVISION, JOHN WIELAND
HOMES & NEIGHBORHOODS, INC., OWNER, AND LOU COURCHAINE, AGENT, REQUEST TO REVISE
THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO ALLOW RELOCATION OF THE AMENITY AREA PLUS THE ADDITION
OF A COMMON AREA AND INCREASED RIGHT-OF-WAY AT THE ENTRANCE AT S.R. 92 NORTH. THIS
PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOTS 194, 223, AND 224 OF THE 5TH DISTRICT, FRONTS ON S.R.
92 NORTH AND EASTIN ROAD, AND IS ZONED C-S.  STAFF RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH TWO
(2) CONDITIONS.  THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH TWO  (2)
CONDITIONS 4-0.
Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read Petition No. RDP-008-07 as listed.  


Chip Prochino, the South Division Vice President for John Wieland Homes & Neighborhoods, Inc., requested
a revision to the development plan to allow for the relocation of the amenity area.  He said at the request of
the County the applicant had made two changes to the plan which included the addition of the common area
and also an increase in the right-of-way at the S.R. 92 entrance.  He said applicant had already agreed and
completed the two additional items that were discussed at the Planning Commission hearing.  He said they
were currently at the final plat stage.  He said he would be glad to answer any questions or address any
concerns.


Commissioner Maxwell said it was his understanding that this would not increase the number of residential lots
and Mr. Prochino replied that was correct.  Mr. Prochino remarked that they were just switching two lots, taking
the amenity area from one area onto two lots and those two lots were going back to where the original amenity
area was.  He said there was no density change and no land change.  He noted that the conservation area
would remain the same.  


Chairman Smith asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of the petition.  Hearing none he asked if anyone
wished to speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion and Commissioner Pfeifer seconded the motion to approve RDP-008-07
with two recommendations as presented.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment No.  6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 5


PUBLIC COMMENT:
Rick Price:   Rick Price of Fayetteville expressed concern over the possibility of the Board adopting a defined
benefit program for County employees. He asked that ten questions he had for the Board to answer be read
into the minutes.  The questions are as follows:


1. Is the Board going to vote to implement a benefit plan change of any type before the end of
2007?


2. Will the Board vote to implement a defined benefit retirement plan without a series of public
meetings once the Board has made a decision to implement a defined benefit plan.


3. Can the Board explain why it has not hired an independent pension consultant.  When the
Board enhanced the existing defined contribution retirement plan in 1995, the Board hired an
independent consultant to evaluate the options for plan design, cost and eventual
coordination of the bidding process and finally the selection of a new defined contribution plan
company.  


4. Please explain why this Board has their stated goal that Fayette County employees retire with
100% of an employee’s preretirement salary.  He said he was aware that there was
integration with Social Security and this was part of the calculations.  Please name any major
private sector employer who has as their stated goal that their employees retire with 100%
of their preretirement salary.


5. Please explain why this particular Board was willing to commit future Boards and taxpayers
to the unfunded liabilities that are prevalent in most government defined benefit programs.


6. Is the Board aware that constitutional officers and emergency services personnel have other
options available in addition to the current County plan?


7. In the Board’s research, is the Board aware of Henry County’s defined benefit plan shortfall?
Is the Board aware that Henry County implemented their defined benefit plan four years ago
and now has a $25 million unfunded liability?


8. Can the Board explain why most major corporations in general and Delta Airlines in particular
have frozen or cancelled their defined benefit retirement plans but Fayette County was
reversing this trend by planning to add a defined benefit retirement plan?


9. Is the Board aware of the possible negative exposure a County employee’s spouse or
beneficiaries may have by participating in a defined benefit plan versus the current plan?







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 6


10. Please review the attachments on #10 that show the three local governments whose audits
show that even though they were funding their annual dollars at a100% of the actuarial
calculations that they all have shortfalls which will have to be paid by the taxpayers.  Will this
Board show the true cost of a defined benefit plan?


Mr. Price asked for the Board’s consideration to provide a response from the Board as a whole or individually
to his questions.


Angela Wright: Angela Wright of Senoia commented on the four wheeler track located on her property and
complaints that had been made to the Marshals Office.  She presented a petition to the Board.  A copy of the
petition, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follows these minutes and is an official part hereof.  


Richard Price: Richard Price of Fayetteville commented on the water level at Lake Horton and suggested this
would be a good time for the Water System to make repairs to the boat ramp.  He also commented on a  small
trench located in the grassy area at Lake Horton where people walk and play and the possibility of someone
falling down.  


Tim Thoms: Tim Thoms of Fayetteville said he would like to comment on the issue regarding water violations
and would do so under New Business on the agenda.


Angela Hinton Fonda: Angela Hinton Fonda discussed the issue of a defined benefits pension plan.   


CONSENT AGENDA:   Chairman Smith reminded the Board that the May 22, 2007 Board of Commissioners’
Budget Minutes had been removed and would be discussed under Old Business.


Commissioner Frady made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to approve consent
agenda item nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 with the exception of the May 22, 2007 Board of
Commissioners’ budget minutes.  The motion carried 5-0.  


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT                
1. Approval of staff’s recommendation for authorization to proceed with the acquisition of a new 2008


Ford Crown Victoria for the Sheriff’s Department’s new Compliance Officer position, including the
execution of tag and title documents, as approved in the FY 08 Budget.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT
2. Approval of staff’s recommendation for authorization to proceed with the acquisition of two new 2008


Ford Crown Victorias for the Traffic Enforcement Division of the Sheriff’s Department, including
execution of tag and title documents, for two new positions, as approved in the FY 08 Budget.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 7


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT
3. Approval of staff’s recommendation for authorization to proceed with the acquiring replacement titles


for three vehicles for the Sheriff’s Department which were acquired as seized property through the
court system.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.  


SOLICITOR’S OFFICE
4. Approval of staff’s recommendation for authorization to proceed with the acquisition of a Ford Crown


Victoria for the Solicitor’s Office, including the execution of tag and title documents, as approved in
the FY 08 Budget.    A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.11", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.     


FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES
5. Approval of Fire and Emergency Services’ request to trade an existing Hurst Power Unit to Municipal


Emergency Services, Inc. for a unit of equal value.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
No. 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


WATER COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
6. Approval of Water Committee recommendation for authorization for Mallett Consulting to draw up the


specifications and the bid work to install the fence at the mitigation site on Helmer Road.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


WATER COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
7. Approval of Water Committee’s recommendation to adopt the revised Reservoir Management Plan.


A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 14", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


LAKE MCINTOSH RESERVOIR PROJECT
8. Approval of “Proposal for Mitigation Site Assessments, Work Plan Preparations and Construction


Support Service” with Eco-South, Inc., Environmental Consultants, for work associated with the Lake
McIntosh Reservoir Project and authorization for the Chairman to execute said document.  A copy of
the request and contract, identified as “Attachment No. 15", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


TAX ABATEMENTS
9. Approval of recommended disposition of tax abatement requests as presented.  A copy of the list of


tax abatement requests, identified as “Attachment No. 16", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 8


TAX REFUNDS
10. Approval of recommended disposition of tax refund requests as presented.  A copy of the list of tax


refund requests, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  


PARKS AND RECREATION
11. Approval of budget adjustment for the Parks and Recreation Department in the amount of  $5,230.05


to account 10060110  541320 for a donation from the Youth Softball Association to be used for
improvements to softball facilities.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 18", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.     


VOICE AND CABLING BID AWARDED TO TELESOURCE, INC.
12. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #636 for the Stonewall Administrative Complex Voice


and Data Cabling to the low bidder TeleSource, Inc. in the amount of $27,400.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment No. 19", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


MINUTES
13. Approval of minutes for the Board of Commissioners’ Budget Meeting held on May 22, 2007, Board


of Commissioners’ regular meeting held on October 25, 2007 and Board of Commissioners’ Special
Called Meeting held on November 19, 2007.  (May 22, 2007 Board of Commissioners’ Budget Meeting
Minutes were moved to the Old Business section of the agenda for discussion).


OLD BUSINESS:
G.      CONSIDERATION OF ALLOWING THE ACQUISITION AND INSTALLATION OF WATERLESS
URINALS THROUGHOUT COUNTY BUILDINGS:
Director of Building and Grounds Maintenance Greg Ownby asked for the Board’s consideration to proceed
with the acquisition and installation of 53 waterless urinals throughout County buildings and for the funds to
be taken from the County’s contingency fund account.  He remarked that the waterless urinals could save the
County approximately 38,200 gallons of water per urinal or 53 times that amount for a total of 2,024,608
gallons of water.  He felt his recommendation would create moreless a lifestyle in saving water instead of just
being concerned with the current drought situation.  He noted that installation would be done by the
Maintenance Department employees.  


Commissioner Frady made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to approve the
acquisition and installation of waterless urinals throughout County buildings in the amount of $15,000 to come
out of the contingency fund.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 
20", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 9


H.          CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST BY THE ROAD DEPARTMENT TO HIRE A CIVIL ENGINEER TO
 ASSIST WITH S.P.L.O.S.T. AND C.I.P. ROAD DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT
ACTIVITIES:
Director of Public Works Phil Mallon asked for the Board’s consideration to hire a Civil Engineer to assist with
S.P.L.O.S.T. and C.I.P. road design, construction and project management activities.  He said he had created
a job description for this position and it had been reviewed by the Human Resources Department.  He said the
individual would have a work space at the Public Works Department and would share a vehicle.  He said the
individual would need a computer station and some design software as well.  He noted the majority of this
individual’s time would be spent on S.P.L.O.S.T. projects and he could charge against this fund to pay for the
individual’s salary.  He said the balance of the salary would have to come out of the contingency fund.  


Commissioner Pfeifer questioned the experience requirements listed.  He said it stated the requirement as over
four years and up to and including eight years.  He asked if the individual had ten years, would they be hired
and Mr. Mallon replied yes.  Mr. Mallon said the form also stated experience was preferred and the check
boxes were there just to give an idea of the years of experience.  


Chairman Smith asked Mr. Mallon if he felt the addition of this position would in any way decrease the County’s
reliance on the external engineer that the County currently uses and Mr. Mallon replied yes.  Mr. Mallon felt
over time with some of the existing projects and most notably the West Fayetteville Bypass, McIntosh bridge
replacement and the capital improvement project for Snead Road which were already in the pipeline for the
consultant but other projects could certainly be done in house.  He interjected that Human Resources had
indicated that this position should be advertised depending upon experience and qualifications.  


Commissioner Pfeifer made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to approve the request
to hire a civil engineer to assist with the S.P.L.O.S.T. and C.I.P. road design, construction and project
management activities.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 21",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Addition of May 22, 2007 Board of Commissioners’ Budget Minutes to the Agenda:
Chairman Smith asked for the Board’s consideration to amend the May 22, 2007 Board of Commissioners’
Budget Meeting Minutes regarding the discussion by the representatives of the Development Authority.  He
said they had not only talked about their budget but they also discussed the location of a Chinese Company
that would be locating in Fayette County.  He asked that the minutes be amended to reflect that discussion.


Chairman Smith made a motion and Commissioner Frady seconded the motion to amend the May 22, 2007
Board of Commissioners’ budget meeting minutes to include the discussion by the representatives of the
Fayette County Development Authority regarding the location of a Chinese company that would be locating
in Fayette County.  The motion carried 5-0.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 10


NEW BUSINESS:
I.          DISCUSSION OF THE MUTUAL AID AND AUTOMATIC AID AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF
FAIRBURN:
Interim Public Safety Director  Allen McCullough and Chief of Operations Tom Bartlett and the Chief of the
Fairburn Fire Department Jody Weller asked for the Board’s consideration to enter into a Mutual Aid and
Automatic Aid Agreement with the City of Fairburn.  He noted that in 1994, Fayette County had entered into
an automatic as well as mutual aid agreement with the Fulton County Fire Department.  He noted that Fulton
County no longer houses apparatus in the Fairburn fire station and under the proposed agreement Fayette
County would supply one engine company to Fairburn in a specified response area.  Fayette County would
also have a predetermined area where Fairburn would respond to a specified area. He said this agreement
would not be extended for emergency medical services and was for fire and rescue operations only.   


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion and Commissioner Frady seconded the motion to enter into a Mutual
Aid and Automatic Aid Agreement with the City of Fairburn, discussion followed.


Commissioner Maxwell remarked that he noticed a termination clause three months before the end of the year
and then the County would be entering into a new one that would take the County to the end of next year.  He
asked Chief McCullough to give the Board an updated status report in August of 2008.


The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request and Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 22", follows these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


J.        CONSIDERATION OF A PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE COUNTY’S WATER RESTRICTIONS
ORDINANCE THAT WOULD ALLOW FOR A THREE-TIER FINE SCHEDULE FOR VIOLATIONS. 
Director of the Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott asked for the Board’s consideration to adopt an
amendment to the County’s water restrictions ordinance that would allow for a three-tier fine schedule for
violations.  He noted that there would be a warning for the first violation, a $500 fine for the second violation
and a $1,000 fine for a third violation with service disconnected until the fine and any additional fines were
paid.  He said because this was an administrative program, any appeal would be to the Board of
Commissioners.  He said the request also included the option for the Water System to terminate the service
to irrigation meters during this Level IV drought.  He said after any professional landscaping was done, a
citizen would only have thirty days to water the new landscaping.  He said after the thirty day period, the Water
System would turn off these irrigation meters.  He said there were approximately 260 irrigation meters that still
had active service.  


Chairman Smith said it was not this Board’s intention to prevent watering on new landscaping installations. 


Commissioner Frady said he did not favor this Board sitting in judgment and felt that should be something the
courts would handle.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 11


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion and Commissioner Frady seconded the motion that this would be dealt
with in the State Court system with a three tier level with a warning, a $500 fine and a $1,000 fine, discussion
followed.


Chairman Smith suggested an ordinance be drawn up and brought back to the Board at the December 5th


Board meeting for review and adoption.


Commissioner Maxwell withdrew his motion.


It was the consensus of the Board that staff draw up an ordinance and come back to the Board at the
December 5, 2007 workshop meeting for further discussion.  


Chairman Smith asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak on this issue.


Brian Arnold said he represented Nature’s Nursery and expressed concern over the Level IV water ban and
the turning off of irrigation meters and the impact on their business..


Karen Siever said she represented Andy’s Nursery and expressed concerned with the water restrictions and
the impact on their business.  


John Newman said he was a landscape architect from the University of Georgia and he discussed some of
his irrigation concerns.


Tim Thoms questioned the amendments involved in the water ordinance and felt more thought needed to go
into this.


Mr. Parrott remarked that one of the biggest issues was the County having to meet the 10% reduction in water
consumption.


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to lock all irrigation
meters and discontinue service on these meters beginning the week of December 3, 2007.  The motion carried
3-2 with Commissioner Frady and Commissioner Pfeifer voting in opposition.  


K.      DISCUSSION OF SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT FIELD OPERATIONS DIVISION’S REQUEST TO SELL
207 GLOCK HANDGUNS TO AUTREY’S ARMORY IN THE AMOUNT OF $54,582.00; AND TO USE THE
PROCEEDS TO REPLACE EMERGENCY LIGHTING EQUIPMENT, RADIOS, IN-CAR CAMERAS, ETC.
Captain Barry Babb asked for the Board’s consideration to sell 207 Glock handguns to Autrey’s Armory in the
amount of $54,582 and use the proceeds to replace emergency lighting equipment, radios, and in-car cameras
and return these funds back to the Sheriff’s Department Field Operations Division to improve the equipment
in the patrol fleet.  He said these guns were not currently in use and were stored at the Armory.







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 12


Commissioner Pfeifer expressed concern that the taxpayers had paid for these weapons and now they were
being sold.  He felt the proceeds should go back into the General Fund and any needs from this department
should be budgeted during the budget discussions.   


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion and Commissioner Frady seconded the motion to approve the Sheriff’s
Department Field Operations Division’s request to sell 207 Glock handguns to Autrey’s Armory in the amount
of $54,582.00 and to use the proceeds to replace emergency lighting equipment, and radios in the Sheriff’s
Department.  The motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner Pfeifer voting in opposition.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment No. 23", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
None.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT
None.


BOARD REPORTS
None.


STAFF REPORTS:
None.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:   County Attorney Scott Bennett requested an Executive Session to discuss one
litigation matter.


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to adjourn to
Executive Session to discuss one litigation matter.  The motion carried 5-0.


LITIGATION:   County Attorney Scott Bennett discussed a litigation matter with the Board.


Chairman Smith reconvened the meeting at this time.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion and Commissioner Frady seconded the motion to authorize the
Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming that one legal matter was discussed in Executive
Session.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Affidavit, identified as “Attachment No. 24", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Smith said the Board had directed the County Attorney to proceed in the legal matter.  







Board of Commissioners’ Minutes
November 29, 2007
Page 13


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion to adjourn the meeting
at 9:50 p.m.  The motion carried 5-0.  


_________________________________ _________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk          Jack R. Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia, held on the 2  day of January, 2008.nd


_________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Topic:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


STAFF USE ONLY


Wording for the Agenda:


Finance Review Complete Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Print Form


911 Communications Cheryl Rogers


Cheryl Rogers January 2, 2007


 


Request the approval of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on the Motorola, Inc. contract in the amount of $97,677.


The purpose of the contract is to provide two calltaker positions in the 911 Center.  These two call taking positions will provide for 


more efficient training of call taking functions within the radio room.  Often when trainers are working with new employees they 


must continue to take emergency calls for service creating constant interruptions to the training process.  These interruptions 


provide a less than quality training experience.  These two positions will also allow the radio room access to WEBOC which provides 


real time exchange of information during emergency situations when the EOC is open.  This expenditure was approved by the 


Board as a Capital Project (Project#: 37230800-542420-8215A) on the current fiscal year budget.  The original cost of the project was 


estimated at $110,000, realizing a savings of $12,323. 


 


The Fayette County Attorney has already reviewed this contract prior to this consent request.


Approval of the Contract.  This contract has already been signed by Motorola, Inc. representative, Mr. Marshall Wright, MSSI Vice 


President on December 11, 2007.  A copy of the signature page is included as part of this proposal.  Two original contracts are 


provided to the Fayette County Administrative offices for original signature by BOC Chairman Jack Smith.


Funding has already been approved in the current fiscal year budget (Project# 37230800-542420-82152A).


Yes June, 2007


No


Emergency 911 requests permission for the Commission Chairman to sign the contract with Morotola, Inc. for two calltaker 


positions for 911 Center.


●●


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


●







 
 
 
 


 TO:      Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
 


        FROM: Cheryl L. Rogers 
 


         DATE: December 18, 2007 


 


RE: Request for signature of Contract 
 
 
 


This is to request your approval for the Commission Chairman to sign the attached 
contract with Motorola, Inc.  The purpose of the contract is to provide two call taker 
positions in the 9-1-1 Center.  This was approved by the Board as a Capital Project in the 
current fiscal year budget.  The original cost of the project was estimated at $110,000.  
actual costs are $97,677.  Funds are set aside for this project.   The County Attorney has 
reviewed the contract and his requested changes have been completed. 
 
Your favorable consideration of this request is appreciated.  If you have any questions or 
desire any additional information, please call me. 


 


          FAYETTE COUNTY DIVISION 
      OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
        E911 COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT 
 





		Motorola-Agenda Request File

		BOC Approval for Call Taking Positions 1.2.2008

		1.1.2.2008 Motorola Contract-Call Taking Positions

		2. Memo to Bd of Comm for call takers positions

		3. VESTA PALLAS call taking positon contract - motorola 12.7.2007

		4.vestapallassignaturepage












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Finance Review Complete


Administrative Staff Review CompleteLegal Review Complete


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Purchasing Review Complete


Back-up Material Submitted?


Print Form


County Commissioners Carol Chandler


Same, if needed January 2, 2008


Approval of proposed meeting schedule for 2008.


Each year, the Board adopts its meeting schedule in order to be published.


Approval of proposed meeting schedule.


No


Yes


Yes







2008 APPROVED MEETING SCHEDULE


THIS SCHEDULE REFLECTS THE CURRENT MEETING FORMAT AS FOLLOWS:


1ST WEDNESDAY OF EACH MONTH AT  3:30 P.M.: Though open to the public, these meetings are intended for
matters of a somewhat routine nature, briefings by the County Administrator or  department heads, and “house-
keeping” kinds of issues. Official action by the Commission can be taken. Public hearings never occur as a part
of these sessions. Generally speaking, individuals or groups do not appear before the Board to be heard during
these meetings unless invited by the County Administrator, a Department Head or Commissioner. Agendas
are prepared in advance. All sessions are attended by members of the Press.


2ND AND 4TH THURSDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 7 P.M.: Agendas for these meetings can include any subject but in
particular, matters of interest to the general public such as public hearings on rezoning petitions, budget
discussions, etc. Also, individuals or groups may schedule time to appear before the Commission during these
meetings to discuss any matter of concern. Agendas are prepared in advance. All sessions are attended by
members of the Press.


Canceled meetings, special called meetings and special topic workshops will be announced in accordance with
requirements of State law.


DATE TIME DATE TIME


January 2 - W 3:30 pm July 10 - T 7 pm


January 10 - T 7 pm July 24 - T 7 pm


January 24 - T 7  pm August 6 - W 3:30 pm


February 6 - W 3:30 pm August 14  - T 7 pm


February 14 - T 7  pm NO MTG. August 28 - T 7 pm


February 28- T 7 pm September 3 - W 3:30 pm


March 5 - W 3:30 pm September 11 - T 7:00 pm


March 13 - T 7 pm NO MTG. September 25 - T 7 pm


March 27 - T 7 pm October 1 - W 3:30 pm


April 2 - W 3:30 pm October 9 - T 7 pm


April 10- T 7 pm October 23 - T 7 pm


April 24 - T 7 pm November 5 - W 3:30 pm


May 7 - W 3:30 pm November 13 - T 7 pm NO MTG.


May 22 - T 7 pm November 27 Thanksgiving


June 4 - W 3:30 pm December 3 - W 3:30 pm


June 12 - W 7 pm December 11 - T 7 pm


June 26 - T 7 pm December 25 Christmas NO MTG.


July 2  - T 3:30 pm





		Meeting Schedule Agenda Request File

		Meeting Schedule 2008







